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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EIEHRESE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to
present the annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

2020 is an extraordinary year, in which the COVID-19 pandemic
brought unprecedented challenges to the global economic and
social development, and a wide spectrum of industries has been
affected for a long time as a result of the material impact of the
pandemic. The Group directly faced the severe challenges arising
from the impact of the pandemic especially in its loan financing
and financial guarantee series as the Group’s customers are
unavoidably affected by such adverse situation and encountered
very tight cashflow position.

However, the Group strived to uncover business opportunity
amid all these challenges and completed the acquisition of the
entire issued capital of Xin Yunlian Investment Limited (“Xin
Yunlian”) and its subsidiaries and associated company (collectively,
“Xin Yunlian Group”). Xin Yunlian, through its 51% equity
interests in each of 7 )T ¥ =8t 8 F Bl & B R 2 & (Zhejiang
Xin Yunlian Digital Technology Company Limited*) (“Xin Yunlian
Digital”) and #I#T EBE R AR A F (Zhejiang Xin Yunlian
Cloud Technology Company Limited*) (“Xin Yunlian Cloud”),
is principally engaged in operation of an e-commerce platform
and the provision of financial services targeted to the 5.6 million
tobacco retailers in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").
Following the completion of the acquisition, the business of the
newly acquired Xin Yunlian Group is consolidated to the Group
which helped to strengthen the existing loan financing and
referral segments.

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the economy environment in the world remains
uncertain and challenging but we see gradual and steady bounce
back and strong recovery in the PRC. Since 2019, a series
of practical initiative concerning inclusive finance have been
introduced the central government of the PRC with the aim to
effectively encourage lending to small and micro-sized business.

We believe that the newly completed acquisition of Xin Yunlian
Group allows the Group to be well-positioned to capture the
business opportunities in, among others, supply chain financing
services associated with the government'’s initiative in the small
and micro enterprises financing sector.
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In addition, the acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group also presents
the opportunity for the Group to partner with China Tobacco
Corporation through the e-commerce platform and expand its
loan financing segment into the 5.6 million tobacco retailers
in the PRC; and could increase the Group’s market share and
geographical presence in the PRC by consolidating the business
of Xin Yunlian Group thus expanding the Group's loan financing
business in the PRC in both breadth and depth.

The Group is also taking proactive measures and making active
responses in an effort to sustain the business and actively
diversify or expand its customer base and product base to
broaden the sources of revenue and diversify business risk.

We will continue to strive a balance among the interests of
shareholders, employees and customers, and pursue long-term
and sustainable development for the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to thank our
shareholders, business partners, customers and professional
parties for their continued support. | would also like to express
my gratitude to our management team and staff for their
contribution to the Group.

Liu Kequan
Chairman
Hong Kong

30 March 2021

* for identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M}EJE“-J' &73 *ﬁ'

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding, industrial
property development, general trading of consumable goods,
securities brokerage, insurance brokerage, asset management
and loan financing operation including loan financing, financial

guarantee services, loan referral and consultancy services.

Revenue and segment results of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2020 (“FY2020") are stated in the table below:

EBOE

AEEFEREREER ITXAMEER
HEMN—KRES BHLL RegwLe &
EEBEREFREXR (REERHRE BE
ERRS EREN RERARS)

AEBBE_T_TF+_A=t—HLILF
E(ZZ=_FWF ) NRARDBEEEIRN
=&

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLEE

2020 2019
—E-%F —FNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHEIT
Revenue from: REUATEEZKA:

Industrial property development TERAMEER 11,279 13,444
General trading —RESH 15,093 66,002
Securities brokerage BHELRL 69 405
Insurance brokerage R4 4,641 8,596
Asset management EEERE 43 138
Loan financing | (Note 1) ERmEE (fsE1) 337,978 62,420
Loan financing Il (Note 2) EREEN (MsE2) 20,072 -
Others HAh 3,145 -
392,320 151,005

Segment (loss) profit from: REUTEEZ2E (E5E) BEF
Industrial property development THRAMEERRE (7,372) (5,949)
General trading —RES (9.451) 2,872
Securities brokerage el e (1,434) (2,470)
Insurance brokerage Rip &4 34 267
Asset management EEERE (1,183) (2,983)
Loan financing | (Note 1) BEREE (F3E1) (201,289) (82,800)
Loan financing Il (Note 2) BEXEEN(HE2) (1,464) -
Others HAh, (1,286) -
(223,445) (91,063)

Note 1: Loan financing | represents the provision of loan financing,
financial guarantee services, loan referral and consultancy
services in Hong Kong and Beijing.

Note 2: Loan financing Il represents the provision of micro-financing,
loan referral and consultancy services in Ningbo.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industrial Property Development

Revenue from the segment mainly represents warehouse storage
income generated from warehouse operation. The Group's
warehouse is located in Taicang, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. It is
divided into 6 units and the total area is approximately 48,600
square meters. Revenue from warehouse operation recorded a
decrease of HK$2,165,000 from approximately HK$13,444,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 ("FY2019") to
approximately HK$11,279,000 for FY2020, resulted in a segment
loss of approximately HK$7,372,000 for FY2020 (FY2019:
segment loss of approximately HK$5,949,000). The average
occupancy rate of the Group's warehouse during FY2020 was
over 74% and primarily used as storage of household appliances,
motor vehicle spare parts and textile products.

As affected by the outbreak of a respiratory disease caused by
the novel coronavirus (the “COVID-19 pandemic”) in the PRC,
the Group's warehouse operation was restrained as instructed
by the local government in February 2020 after the Chinese
New Year holiday. Due to the rigorous quarantine measures, the
process of renewal of the Group's warehouse storage services
was suspended in the first quarter of 2020 and resumed in the
second quarter of 2020. The occupancy rate slowly recovered
and reached over 90% in the last quarter of 2020. Management
of the Company expects the average occupancy rate will
maintain at over 90% in 2021 and will continue to identify new
customers as tenants for the Group's warehouse operation.

General Trading

The Group continued to co-operate with a major distribution
agent of Moutai, a reputable distilled Chinese liquor brand,
to sell Moutai and other popular Chinese liquors in 2020.
Revenue generated from liquors trading for FY2020 amounted
to approximately HK$15,903,000 (FY2019: approximately
HK$66,002,000), resulted in a segment loss of approximately
HK$9,451,000 (FY2019: segment profit of approximately
HK$2,872,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

The significant decrease in revenue and the segment loss
recorded in FY2020 was mainly due to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic since January 2020. The imposing of
quarantine orders on certain residents, heightened hygiene and
pandemic prevention measures in factories and offices, and
the extended social distancing measures implemented by the
PRC government had adverse impact on customer demand for
Chinese liquors. Management of the Company anticipates that
the market demand for Chinese liquors will gradually return
to normal as China recovers from the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Group will continue its liquors trading business and
further develop its sales network to increase sales volume and
profitability in 2021.

Securities Brokerage

The Group's securities brokerage business in Hong Kong
comprises securities brokerage, securities trading and margin
financing. Revenue from the segment for FY2020 was
approximately HK$69,000 (FY2019: approximately HK$405,000),
resulted in a segment loss of approximately HK$1,434,000
(FY2019: segment loss of approximately HK$2,470,000). Investor
confidence was significantly affected by the COVID-19 pandemic
in 2020. The Group's operation is facing keen competition in
the industry with low profit margin on regular securities trading
business. In addition, the Hong Kong government will increase
the stamp duty on stock trading by both buyers and sellers to
0.13 per cent in August 2021 which will inevitably hit the trading
volume in the short run. In order to tackle the challenges, the
Group will continue to strengthen cost control measures to
reduce unnecessary expenditure.

Insurance Brokerage

During FY2020, the Group’s insurance brokerage business in
Hong Kong continued to provide tailor-made financial solutions
and independent advisory services in connection with insurance
products to its clients, operated long-term (including linked long-
term) insurance and general insurance business and offered
Mandatory Provident Fund products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue from the segment for FY2020 was approximately
HK$4,641,000 (FY2019: approximately HK$8,596,000), resulted
in a segment profit of approximately HK$34,000 (FY2019:
segment profit of approximately HK$267,000). The decrease in
revenue and profit from the insurance brokerage business was
mainly due to the continued restrictions on cross border travel
in 2020 as a result of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic.
According to the provisional statistics of Hong Kong insurance
industry in 2020 issued by the Insurance Authority of Hong
Kong, long term business policies premium contributed by
Mainland visitors decreased by 84.3% from HK$43.3 billion in
2019 to HK$6.8 billion in 2020. Despite the challenges caused
by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group's sales team continued
to discover new products and new customers, together with
the stringent cost control measures, the Group's insurance
brokerage business recorded profit in such adverse environment.
Looking forward, the Group will continue to strengthen its
existing sales team and to develop different clientele and foster
close relationship with insurance companies and offer diversified
products to customers in order to stay competitive in the market
until the COVID-19 pandemic is under control.

Asset Management

The Group's asset management segment manages a hedge
fund established in the Cayman Islands, “Spruce Light Absolute
Return Fund” (the “Fund”). The Fund primarily invests in equity
and equity related instruments of companies listed in Hong Kong
and the PRC and its net value of assets under management as at
31 December 2020 was approximately US$3.7 million. Revenue
from the segment for FY2020 was approximately HK$43,000
(FY2019: approximately HK$138,000), resulted in a segment
loss of approximately HK$1,183,000 (FY2019: segment loss of
approximately HK$2,983,000). Due to the redemption made
by certain fund investors during FY2020, the size of the Fund
decreased by approximately 32% in 2020. As a result, the
management fee income for the asset management segment
decreased significantly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Looking forward to 2021, it is expected that the COVID-19
pandemic will continue to lay negative impact on the global
economy. The relationship between the two major economies
of China and the United States may be subject to potential new
impacts after the election of United States president in 2020.
The world’'s economy shows great uncertainty. Due to China’s
huge domestic demand, strong government policy support and
relatively low dependence on other countries, the domestic
economy is still recovering continuously, experiencing twists and
turns but not lacking opportunities. Therefore, in the long run,
Chinese enterprises with excellent management and competitive
pattern will still achieve excellent performance growth. On
the other hand, companies that cannot keep up with the
development and changes of the market may not be able to cope
with the continuous challenges. The Group’s asset management
team strives to create new investment strategies and continues to
seek opportunities to promote the steady development of scale
and performance.

Loan Financing |

The Group's loan financing | services comprise the provision of
loan financing, financing guarantee services, loan referral and
consultancy services in Hong Kong and Beijing. Revenue from
the segment for FY2020 was approximately HK$337,978,000
(FY2019: approximately HK$62,420,000), resulted in a segment
loss of approximately HK$201,289,000 (FY2019: segment loss
of approximately HK$82,800,000). The increase in segment
revenue was mainly due to the new business opportunity
with new asset and fund partners including but not limited to
individual customers from personal electronic consumer platform.
The segment loss was mainly due to the increase in provision
against the outstanding guarantee issued and impairment loss
on loans and interest receivable as the Group’s customers were
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. The provision for financial
guarantees increased from approximately HK$84,120,000 during
FY2019 to approximately HK$121,453,000 during FY2020. The
impairment loss on loans and interest receivable for FY2020
was approximately HK$110,574,000 (FY2019: approximately
HK$14,100,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loan Financing Business in Beijing

During 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic swept across the world
and the overall economy slowed down. All kinds of enterprises
were squeezed by income reduction and cost rigidity. The
vulnerability of micro, small and medium-sized enterprises
became more prominent, mainly due to shortage of funds
and liquidity crisis. Micro, small and medium-sized enterprises
and individuals are the main customer groups in the financing
guarantee industry. On the one hand, the COVID-19 pandemic
has brought pressure on financing guarantee companies such as
the increase of non-performing rate, and on the other hand, it
has also brought new development opportunities. It is a pressing
issue for financing guarantee companies to solve how to seize
the opportunities of reshuffling companies within the industry,
improve industry supervision and increasing customer capital
demand, continuously optimize iterative products, upgrade
risk control strategies and tools, and provide better services for
customers.

Loan Financing Business in Hong Kong

The Group's loan financing operations in Hong Kong is mainly
the provision of mortgage loan. To remain competitive while
mitigating the overall credit risk, the Group adopted a stringent
credit approval policy and worked closely with external property
valuation professionals in valuing the subject property to ensure
the loan to value ratio of the relevant properties are maintained
at a reasonable level. In addition, the Group installed tools to
monitor the trend in the property market, which will alert its
credit team in case of significant fluctuation or irregularity in
respect of the mortgage under supervision. Credit assessment
includes full review of credit history and credit report of
the potential customers issued by a third party credit rating
institution, TransUnion. The Group will continue to implement
a prudent strategy with stringent internal loan management
system, including credit assessment and risk management,
and cooperate closely with external professionals for property
valuation, credit check and legal counsel and maintain the
Group's focus on high net worth customers through its
partnership with business partners such as loan referral agents.
As at 31 December 2020, all the outstanding loans were repaid
and there was no new loan drawdown.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Loan Financing I

The Group's loan financing Il services comprise the provision of
micro-financing, loan referral and consultancy services in Ningbo,
PRC. Revenue from the segment for FY2020 was approximately
HK$20,072,000, resulted in a segment loss of approximately
HK$1,464,000. The provision for financial guarantees issued was
approximately HK$1,091,000 for FY2020.

The acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group was completed on 31 July
2020. The major activities of Xin Yunlian Group are the operation
of an e-commerce platform and the provision of financial services
(including micro-financing and financing referral operations) and
advertising business. All operations are targeted to the 5.6 million
tobacco retailers in the PRC. Currently, there are approximately
4.4 million tobacco retailers registered on the e-commence
platform of Xin Yunlian Group. The Company’s management
believes that the above acquisition will achieve synergies, where
the Group can leverage its knowledge, know-how, experience
in the loan financing business in the PRC and financial resources
to lead and empower Xin Yunlian Group in developing new loan
financing business. The combined network of client base and
financial institutions covered by the Group is expected to form a
stronger platform for cross-selling and growth in the loan referral
business and the small and micro enterprises finance business. In
addition, the profit guarantee of not less than RMB153 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$168 million) for the five years
ending 31 December 2024 will also provide a positive impact on
the financial position of the Group as a whole in the years ahead.

Further details in respect of the acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Report — Acquisition
of Xin Yunlian Group” in this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Model

M EBReRE | RS (I) AR A A (Wangxin Xin
Yunlian Financial Information Service (Zhejiang) Company
Limited*, “Xin Yunlian Financial”) is the exclusive financial
service provider of A & %775 BB & F 7 % A BR A 7] (Zhongyan Xin
Shangmeng E-commerce Limited*, “Zhongyan E-commerce”).
Xin Yunlian Financial is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xin Yunlian
Cloud , which is indirectly controlled as to 51% by Xin Yunlian.
Zhongyan E-commerce is owned as to 49% by Xin Yunlian
Digital, which is owned as to 51% by Xin Yunlian. Xin Yunlian
Financial offers promotion on e-commerce platform, official
accounts and other new media platforms as well as through
tobacco monopoly administration at province and city levels.
With the authorization of registered users of the e-commerce
platform, Xin Yunlian Financial can access the readily available
customer database. The Group also provides financial service to
qualified tobacco retailer customers in need that are identified
through telephone marketing or site visiting.

The services provided by Xin Yunlian Financial include the referral
of potential borrowers for loan services to financial institutions
with a focus on retailers licensed to distribute tobacco products
in the PRC. Considering the financial needs of tobacco retailers in
making tobacco orders, store improvement and other operating
matters, Xin Yunlian Financial has launched a tobacco credit loan
service, which can be applied on-line with tobacco retail license.
Target clients can directly contact Xin Yunlian Financial through
the e-commerce platform, or to inquire about loan services
through the Xin Yunlian Financial mobile application.

After a review of the funding needs of potential borrowers
and a preliminary assessment of their credit profile, Xin Yunlian
Financial will refer the potential borrowers to appropriate banks
for suitable financial products. The banks in cooperation with Xin
Yunlian Financial will, based on their respective concerns, mitigate
credit risks in further by assessing such potential borrowers. For
the customers passing risk assessment, those banks will remit
loans to the account designated by the borrowers. Since credit
risk is the main risk inherent in the financial services business,
with the support of the e-commerce platform, Xin Yunlian
Financial has the ability to effectively manage and supervise the
credit risk of potential borrowers to be referred by Xin Yunlian
Financial to financial institutions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M}EJE“-J' &73 *ﬁ'

In terms of loan transactions through referral, Xin Yunlian
Financial, as an intermediary agency, will charge referral fees.

In 2020, Xin Yunlian Financial co-operated with regional banks in
the PRC to provide funding to the potential borrowers. The loan
products include both credit loan with semi-annual terms and
repayment of principal and interest in a lump sum at maturity
and customized loan products with a term of one year and
repayment of principal and interest by installment. The interest
rate ranges from 7.5% to 24% per annum depending on the
credit assessment of each individual borrower. A referral fee of
approximately 3% is charged by Xin Yunlian Financial depending
on the terms of the banks.

From a regional perspective, the top ten provinces with the
largest business scale are Guangdong Province, Sichuan Province,
Hunan Province, Guizhou Province, Henan Province, Shaanxi
Province, Yunnan Province, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region, Hubei Province and Shandong Province.

Policy

In 2020, in order to implement the decisions and arrangements
of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council for
expanding domestic demand, stabilizing employment, and
benefiting people’s livelihood, strengthen the fundamental
role of consumption in economic development, and drive the
diversified and innovative development of the economy, seven
national departments, including the Ministry of Commerce and
the Ministry of Finance jointly issued the “Notice of Launching
the Action for Advancing the Small-store Economy” ( B 5
R/NEOEHEITERBA) ) . It is stressed in “IV. Safeguard
Measures” that the current policies to support small and micro
enterprises, self-employed individuals, including tax reduction and
fee reduction, financial support, and optimization of the business
environment, shall be implemented in all localities. Support is
offered to financial institutions in their cooperating with core
enterprises in the supply chain and e-commerce platforms;
financial institutions are also supported in, according to laws and
regulations, providing small stores with credit loans and supply
chain financial products such as orders, warehouse receipts, and
accounts receivable financing, based on the credit relationship
between enterprises. Financial institutions are encouraged to
optimise the evaluation methods and incentive mechanisms
for small stores’ credit support, further improve the quality and
efficiency of financial services for small stores, reduce their overall
finance costs, and develop inclusive financial products for them
in line with their asset-light attribute.
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Leveraging on this opportunity, Xin Yunlian Financial will
continuously commit to the fields of technology and finance, and
in 2021, it will also provide more diversified financial products
and services by co-operating with various banks. Xin Yunlian
Financial endeavors to build an inclusive financial technology
enterprise that provides comprehensive internet financial services
covering loans, supply chain finance, insurance, etc., with serving
tobacco retailers as its feature.

For the micro-financing operation, as at 31 December 2020,
loans and interest receivables of the Group was approximately
HK$359,938,000 (2019: approximately HK$152,449,000), with
interest rates ranging from 5% to 24% (2019: 5% to 20.4%)
per annum.

Other Segment

Other segment comprise of provision of advertising services and
trading of non-consumable goods activities which were acquired
in the acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group in 2020. As the nature of
these two business activities are different from the main business
of the Group and the income generated only accounts for a very
small percentage, management of the Company designated
this part of the business as other segment. Revenue from the
segment for FY2020 was approximately HK$3,145,000, resulted
in segment loss of approximately HK$1,286,000.

Litigation
PRC

(1) The Company has engaged PRC legal advisers in respect
of the applications for arbitration in enforcing the variable
interest entity contracts (the “VIE Contracts”), which have
been filed and accepted by L /8% %% 8 € (Shanghai
Arbitration Commission, “SAC”) in August 2016 (the
“Arbitration”). Details of the applications are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 18 August 2016.
On 22 February 2017, the Company’s PRC legal advisers
received three decisions issued by the SAC to suspend
the Arbitration as (i) /8 %7 B # 2 & [R 2 7] (Shanghai
Xinsheng Pawnshop Limited*, “Xinsheng”), - /&R E#%
& (£ 3) AR 2 F (Shanghai Kuailu Investment Group
Company Limited*, “Shanghai Kuailu”) and _E & & )7 8
& A BR A 7] (Shanghai Zhongyuan Pawnshop Company
Limited*, “Zhongyuan”) are involved in a criminal
investigation conducted by the public security authority
of Shanghai, the PRC; and (ii) the shares of Xinsheng
and Zhongyuan were frozen by such public security
authority. Hence, the Arbitration has been suspended since
21 February 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In respect of the case against Shanghai Kuailu, the
Company's PRC legal advisers understood from SAC that
SAC received a court decision in respect of the criminal
case against Shanghai Kuailu, its chairman and the certain
parties, pursuant to which they are convicted of fraud, in
late 2019. Subsequently, SAC provided the Company's
PRC legal advisers copies of the court decisions. In
respect of the case against Xinsheng and Zhongyuan, the
Company’s PRC legal advisers has not received any oral
or written updates from SAC on the Arbitration nor the
criminal investigation.

Based on the information publicly available, Shanghai
Kuailu does not have sufficient financial resources to
settle all penalties on their conviction while Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan have been suspended for business for over
a year and the financial positions are unknown. In view
of this, the Company’s management considered that the
cost to be incurred in resuming the Arbitration is expected
to be significantly above the benefits the Group could be
obtained and thus decided that the Arbitration would not
be proceeded.

The financial impacts of the de-consolidation resulting
from the incident has been fully reflected in the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 and the suspension of the
Arbitration is not expected to create any adverse impact
on the Group as whole.

In May 2020, a PRC subsidiary of the Company, which
primarily engages in the financing guarantee business,
was notified that it was one of the defendants in certain
legal cases in the PRC. The cases were involved with loans
borrowed by the clients via a P2P platform in Beijing, the
PRC, which was claimed to be currently owned by the
plaintiff through certain loan transfer agreements. The
Company considered that the legality of the loan transfer
agreements was in question and it does not expect the
cases will have a significant financial impact on the Group
as a whole.

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT IMPAIRMENTS

During FY2020, the impairment losses on goodwill of HK$32.7
million comprised of impairment losses on the goodwill of the:
(i) financing referral cash generating unit ("CGU") of HK$12.4
million; (ii) financial guarantee CGU of HK$13.6 million; (iii)
asset management CGU of HK$5.2 million; and (iv) insurance
brokerage CGU of HK$1.5 million. The impairment losses on
loans and interest receivables of HK$114 million comprised
impairment losses on loans and interest receivables from various
customers engaged in the trading of parallel imported vehicle
business of HK$106.9 million and customers from financing and
asset management industry of HK$3.6 million were recognised.

The operation of both financing referral CGU and financial
guarantee CGU is mainly to act as a financing arrangement
intermediary between the asset partners (the “Asset Partners”)
and the fund partners (the “Fund Partners”) to provide financial
referral, financial guarantee services and financing service in the
PRC. The CGUs had long established a strategic cooperation
with a major Asset Partners engaged in the import of parallel
import vehicles business (the “Parallel Importer”) through which
the Parallel Importer will introduce its customers engaged in
the trading of parallel imported vehicle business (the “Parallel
Trader”) to the CGUs for financing arrangement and the Parallel
Importer has agreed to provide counter-guarantees with collateral
to the CGUs for the Parallel Traders introduced by them to the
CGUs.

Impairment loss on Goodwiill

In considering the impairment loss on the goodwill of the
financing referral CGU and financial guarantee CGU, the Board
has taken into account the steep downward economic trend in
the PRC as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic commencing in
the first quarter of 2020 and worsened in the second quarter of
2020 and the escalating US-Sino trade war and the credit supply
shortage which put significant pressure on the capital chain for
both the Asset Partners and the Fund Partners, and thus affecting
the business of the CGUs in their results for the first half of 2020
as well as the projected cash flow and operation. As a result, the
recoverable amount of each of the CGUs decreased and thus
impairment loss on the goodwill is recognized.
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For the insurance brokerage CGU and asset management CGU,
the operations are mainly based in Hong Kong which is also
severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and business
dropped significantly as a result. Based on the cashflow forecast
of these CGUs, an impairment loss on goodwill of the insurance
brokerage CGU of HK$1.5 million and asset management CGU
of HK$5.2 million were recognized for FY2020 respectively.

The fair value of the CGUs was determined with reference to
the valuation performed by an independent valuer, which has
prepared the valuation in accordance with the HKIS Valuation
Standards 2020 (the "HKIS Valuation Standards”) published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and the International
Valuation Standards (Effective 31 January 2020) (the "IVS")
published by the International Valuation Standards Council and
with reference to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"),
where applicable.

The valuation method of discounted cash flow was adopted
for the calculation of the value-in-use (“VIU") of the CGUs. In
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, the recoverable
amount should be the higher of (i) the fair value less costs of
disposal, and (ii) the VIU. After assessing both the VIU and the
fair value, the valuation opted for the VIU because it was the
higher between the two figures. VIU is based on the estimated
future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGUs
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGUs. In assessing the
valuation of the respective CGUs, the Group would consider the
recoverable amount of the CGUs which is determined based on a
VIU calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the Directors and the major
underlying assumptions on which management has based in the
preparation of cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill are summarised below:

— Discount rate per annum - the discount rates used are
before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the respective
industries.

— Budgeted revenue and gross margin — management
determined budgeted revenue and gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development.

— Terminal value growth rate — the rate used is based on the
average projected inflation rate of the geographical area in
which the business of the CGU operates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

There is no change to the valuation method adopted in the
financial years of 2019 and 2020.

Financing Referral CGU

The key assumptions and input used in the VIU calculation for
impairment assessment of the financing referral CGU includes:

— average budget revenue of approximately RMB7.5 million
(31 December 2019: RMB12 million) covering a three-year
period;

— at a discount rate of 17.40% (31 December 2019: 16.93%);
and

— terminal value growth rate of 3% (31 December 2019:
3%) for the cash flows after the three-year period, after
considering the economic conditions of the market.

Impairment loss was mainly caused by the decrease in budget
revenue from financing referral business which was significantly
affected by the following adverse circumstances in 2020. The
Directors revised forecasts downwards in light of the following
events and conditions:

(@) the economic slowdown in the PRC due to the ongoing Sino-
US trade war in 2020 and the COVID-19 pandemic;

(b) the deterioration in operation of the major customers of
the CGU as they encountered financial difficulties from
the negative market conditions related to the COVID-19
pandemic; and

() the expected time required for the major customers to
resume normal operation.

Before impairment testing, the carrying amount of goodwill
allocated the financing referral CGU was HK$12.4 million. The
recoverable amount of the CGU was zero and the whole amount
of the CGU was fully impaired for FY2020.

Financial Guarantee CGU

The key assumptions and input used in the VIU calculation for
impairment assessment of the financial guarantee CGU includes:

— average budget revenue of RMB32.5 million (31 December
2019: RMB27.8 million) covering a three-year period,;

— at adiscount rate of 14.91% (31 December 2019: 17.38%);
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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— terminal value growth rate of 3% (31 December 2019:

3%) for the cash flows after the three-year period, after
considering the economic conditions of the market; and

— anincrease in credit risk of the guarantee customers and the

20

expected cash outflow due to possible default payments on
financial guarantee issued in current period.

Impairment loss was mainly caused by the increase in budget
cash outflow on default payment for financial guarantee
business which was significantly affected by the following
adverse circumstances in 2020. The Directors revised forecasts
downwards in light of the following events and conditions:

(@) the economic slowdown in the PRC due to the ongoing Sino-
US trade war in 2020 and the COVID-19 pandemic;

(b) the deterioration in operation of the major customers of
the CGU as they encountered financial difficulties from
the negative market conditions related to the COVID-19
pandemic;

(c) increase of non-performing rate of guaranteed customers;
and

(d) the expected time required for the major customers to
resume normal operation.

Before impairment testing, the carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to the financial guarantee CGU was HK$13.6 million.
The recoverable amount of the CGU was zero and the whole
amount of the CGU was fully impaired for FY2020.

Tobacco Financial CGU

The tobacco financial CGU was acquired by the Group in
July 2020 and an impairment test was performed. The key
assumptions and input used in the VIU calculation for impairment
assessment of the tobacco financial CGU includes:

— average budget revenue of approximately RMB179.3 million
covering a four-year period;

— at adiscount rate of 17.33%; and

— terminal value growth rate of 3% for the cash flows after the
three-year period, after considering the economic conditions
of the market.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was approximately
HK$418.8 million and no impairment was required.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Asset Management CGU

The key assumptions and input used in the VIU calculation for
impairment assessment of the asset management CGU includes:

- average budget revenue of HK$1.7 million (31 December
2019: HK$3.9 million) covering a three-year period;

- at a discount rate of 18.23% (31 December 2019:
16.95%); and

- terminal value growth rate of 3% (31 December 2019:
3%) for the cash flows after the three-year period, after
considering the economic conditions of the market.

Impairment loss was mainly caused by decrease in budget
revenue from asset management business which was significantly
affected by following adverse circumstances in 2020. The
Directors revised forecasts downwards in light of the following
events and conditions:

(@)  the COVID-19 pandemic will continue to lay negative
impact on the global economy; and

(b)  due to the redemption made by certain fund investors
during FY2020, the size of the Fund decreased. The
management fee income for the asset management
segment decreased significantly.

Before impairment testing, the carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to the asset management CGU was HK$5.2 million.
As the recoverable amount of the asset management CGU was
zero, the Directors are in opinion that impairment loss of HK$5.2
million was considered for FY 2020.
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Due to continuous losses recorded in the asset management
CGU as a result of low volume of management fee received from
fund management than previously forecasted and after taking
into account the expected operating environment and market
conditions, the asset management CGU was fully impaired as at
31 December 2020.

Insurance Brokerage CGU

The key assumptions and input used in the VIU calculation for
impairment assessment of the insurance brokerage CGU includes:

- average budget revenue of HK$5.3 million (31 December
2019: HK$9.8 million) covering a five-year period,;

- at a discount rate of 20.77% (31 December 2019:
19.02%); and

- terminal value growth rate of 3% (31 December 2019:
3%) for the cash flows after the five-year period, after
considering the economic conditions of the market.

Impairment loss was mainly caused by decrease in budget
revenue from insurance brokerage business which was
significantly affected by following adverse circumstances in
2020. The Directors revised forecasts downwards in light of the
following events and conditions:

(@) decrease in revenue and profit from the insurance
brokerage business which was mainly due to the continued
restrictions on cross border travel in 2020 as a result of the
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic; and

long term business policies premium contributed by
Mainland China visitors decreased according to the
provisional statistics of Hong Kong insurance industry in
2020 issued by the Insurance Authority of Hong Kong;

Before impairment testing, the carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to the insurance brokerage CGU was HK$1.5 million.
As the recoverable amount of the insurance brokerage CGU was
zero, the Directors are in opinion that impairment loss of HK$1.5
million was considered for FY 2020.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the restrictions on cross-border
travel is expected to remain for a period of time. The local
economy is unlikely to recover quickly in the short term. There
are still many uncertain factors in the ongoing Sino-US trade
war, coupled with fierce competition in the insurance brokerage
market locally. The insurance brokerage CGU was fully impaired
as at 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impairment loss on loans and interest receivables and trade
and other receivables

For FY2020, the impairment loss on loans and interest receivables
of approximately HK$114 million (FY2019: HK$14 million) and
impairment loss on trade and other receivables of approximately
HK$29 million (FY2019: HK$4 million) were recognized.

For the impairment loss on the loans and interest receivables
and trade and other receivables, the impairment loss is mainly
recognized on the loans to and consultancy fee receivable from
the Parallel Traders in which counter-guarantee is provided by the
Parallel Importer. The Board has taken into account the severe
downward economic trend in the PRC due to the COVID-19
pandemic which substantially hit the domestic demand in the
parallel import vehicles market especially during and after the
Chinese New Year in 2020. As a result, the operation of the
Parallel Traders are negatively affected and they are suffered
with great pressure on their own capital and cash flow chain.
At the same time, the Parallel Importer from which the counter-
guarantee is provided was also adversely affected by the sudden
and sharp economic downturn and encountered credit supply
shortage combined with cash flow crisis and was involved in
certain lawsuits from other parties. Given the adverse credit
risk exposure of both the Parallel Traders and the Parallel
Importer and the downturn for the demand of parallel import
vehicles which is considered as an overall industry risk, the
Board is of the view that credit risk in the loan receivables have
significant increased and the debtors are vulnerable to non-
payment. Therefore, stage 3 in which a probability of default
of approximately 53%, representing a credit rating of CC as
sourced from Thomson Reuters, is assigned to all the relevant
loan receivables to the Parallel Traders, regardless if the loans are
past due or not, resulting in an impairment loss recognized on
loans and interest receivables of approximately HK$114 million
(FY2019: HK$14 million).

The trade and other receivables mainly represented the financial
referral and consulting fee in relation to the financial referral
services provided by us to our customers and the guarantee
service fee for the guarantee services provided by us to our
customers. Of the impairment loss of HK$29 million, there was
approximately HK$13 million, or 45% of the total impairment,
was derived from the Parallel Traders and Parallel Importers
transactions while approximately HK$9 million, or 31% of the
total impairment was derived from the Tobacco Retailers as a
result of the consolidation of the newly acquired subsidiaries
which are engaged in financial referral and loan provision to
the tobacco retailers in the PRC during the year. The rest of the
impairment are related to customers involved in various industries
including trading, electronic accessories, corporate consultancy,
asset management, media and culture, etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Before approving and authorizing the relevant loans and/or
the provision of financing arrangement services, all potential
Asset Partners will undergo an evaluation process with factors
considered including:

(1) corporate and team structure of the Asset Partners (and its
referral);

(2)  internal risk management;

(3) historical financial records;

(4)  position of the Asset Partners in the industry; and
(5)  availability of collaterals.

Only those with satisfactory evaluation results will be accepted as
borrowers and granted the loan receivables and/or accepted as
the Group's customers for financial referral or financial guarantee
services.

The assessment has been prepared in accordance with the
HKFRS and HKAS, specifically HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
("HKFRS 9"). Expected credit losses are defined in HKFRS 9 as
the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
a default occurring as the weights.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

HKFRS 9 outlines a three stage model (the general model)
for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial
recognition and the use of historical credit loss experience and
forward looking information to establish the loss rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The expected credit losses of the loans and interest receivables
are derived from probability of default (“PD") extracted from the
credit risk model and loss given default ("LGD") according to
empirical researches provided by the independent professional

party.

The Group applies general approach to measure expected credit
loss (“ECL") on loans and interest receivables in compliance with
HKFRS 9. Under the general approach, financial assets migrate
through the following three stages based on the change in credit
risk since initial recognition: Stage 1: 12-month ECL, Stage 2:
lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired and Stage 3: lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired.

Impairment on loans and interest receivables is mainly recognized
on the loans to the Parallel Traders in which counter-guarantee
is provided by the Parallel Importer and their credit rating has
been transferred from stage 2 on 31 December 2019 to stage
3 on 31 December 2020. The Board has taken into account the
followings when considering the impairment:

(@ downward economic trend in the PRC due to the
COVID-19 pandemic which substantially hit the domestic
demand in the parallel imported vehicles market especially
during and after the Chinese New Year in February 2020;

(b) adverse effect by the sudden and sharp economic
downturn and encountered credit supply shortage
combined with cash flow crisis to the Parallel Importer
from which the counter-guarantee is provided;

(a) lawsuits from other parties were involved; and

(d)  the slow or no payment progress from the overdue Parallel
Traders for the 12 months ended 31 December 2020,
which implies an increased credit risk.

The basis, assumption and the valuation method adopted for
FY2020 are same as those followed in the preparation of the
Group's annual financial statements for FY2019.

The Group has set up an internal execution team to focus on
handling the collection of long overdue receivables and will
closely monitor the financial position and the operation of its
customers and will continue to communicate actively with the
customers in terms of repayment schedule and progress. At the
same time, the Group will also work closely with its legal advisor
to explore solutions to enforce the repayment of the customers
and legal actions will be taken if necessary in order to minimize
the potential risk of the Group.
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Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative expenses include office utilities and
administration, legal and professional fee, employee benefit
expenses, depreciation of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment and amortization. Other operating expenses
mainly consist of operating expenses of industrial property
development, general trading, loan financing, securities
brokerage and insurance brokerage. Administrative and other
operating expenses amounted to approximately HK$126,060,000
during FY2020, representing a decreased of HK$15,582,000 as
compared to approximately HK$141,642,000 during FY2019.
Although the Group acquired Xin Yunlian Group during the
year, the administrative and other operating expenses decreased
mainly due to the optimization of relevant business flows
and implementation of reform measures to lower cost and to
enhance efficiency. The Company’s management will continue
to act on its stringent measures on costs control to maintain the
administrative and other operating expenses at a reasonable
level.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased from approximately HK$8,232,000 during
FY2019 to approximately HK$14,226,000 during FY2020. The
increase in the finance costs was mainly caused by the effective
interest on the convertible notes issued in connection with the
acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group and the interest paid on other
loans from such newly acquired group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group adopts the policy of prudence in managing its
working capital. The operation of the Group was primarily
financed by internally generated cash flow and external
financing. As at 31 December 2020, the shareholders’ fund and
net current assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$348,677,000 (2019: approximately HK$451,737,000)
and approximately HK$295,593,000 (2019: approximately
HK$300,624,000) respectively. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$90,241,000 (2019: approximately HK$205,530,000) which
were principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
and the current ratio was 1.59 (2019: 2.16). The main reason for
the decrease in bank balances was the increase in restricted bank
deposits paid for the loan financing business and the increase in
loans receivable during FY2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$132,426,000 (2019:
approximately HK$78,302,000) of which approximately
HK$73,046,000 is repayable within 1 year, approximately
HK$11,876,000 is repayable between 1 to 2 years, and
approximately HK$47,504,000 is repayable between 2 to 5 years.
The Group’s borrowings were denominated in RMB at interest
rates ranging between 4.95% to 10.55%. The gearing ratio,
measured on the basis of total borrowings over net assets, was
23.5% as at 31 December 2020 (2019: 17.3%). The increase
in borrowings was mainly attributable to the newly acquired
Xin Yunlian Group which had approximately HK$55,232,000
of borrowings as at 31 December 2020. There was no capital
commitment in respect of the acquisition and construction of
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
nil).

Fund Investments

The Group's investment portfolio is classified according to HKFRS
9. The carrying amounts of the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of the investment portfolio were
approximately HK$11,175,000 and HK$20,203,000 respectively
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: approximately HK$6,369,000
and HK$30,260,000). The investment portfolio includes (i)
unlisted investment funds, which primarily invests in listed equity
in the PRC and Hong Kong; (ii) listed equity in the PRC and
Hong Kong; and (iii) unlisted investment fund, which primarily
represents an investment in 20% equity interest in the registered
capital of an unlisted company incorporated in the PRC which is
engaged in property development project in the PRC.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

Save for the completion of the acquisition of Xin Yunlian
Group as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Report
— Acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group”, the Group had no other
significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures as at 31 December
2020.
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Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have immediate
plans for material investments or capital assets.

Contingent Liabilities

There are no significant contingent liabilities noted as at
31 December 2020 other than the financial guarantees issued.

Guarantee Issued

For FY2020, the Group's total financial guarantees issued was
approximately RMB2,305,928,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,738,521,000) (FY2019: approximately RMB875,709,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$979,568,000)).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company with a par value of HK$0.001 each
(the “Shares”) was 7,775,357,621 (31 December 20109:
6,924,077,621).

Charges on Assets

The Group’s warehouse located in Taicang, the PRC with the
following carrying amounts have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group:
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For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t—BLEE

2020 2019

e —NF

HKS$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHEIT

Property, plant and equipment M- BB MR E 79,087 82,650
Right-of-use assets — leasehold lands FHRREE-—MHELTH 22,515 21,914
101,602 104,564

Save for the above, the Group did not charge other assets to
secure its borrowings as at 31 December 2020.

BRIAERTIUEIN R _BF+-_A=+—
A-AEEYELGREBEENRGEEES-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign currency exposure

As confirmed by the Directors, the Group's present operations
are mainly carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong, and all of the
Group's receipts and payments in relation to the operations are
basically denominated in RMB and Hong Kong dollars. The Group
does not anticipate any material foreign exchange exposure and
therefore no derivative financial instruments were used to hedge
its foreign currency risks as at 31 December 2020. Management
of the Company will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and take appropriate measures if needed.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 188 employees
(31 December 2019: 174 employees). Remuneration is
determined by reference to their respective qualifications and
experiences and according to the prevailing industry practice. In
addition to salary payments, the Group's staff benefits include
contribution of mandatory provident fund, a discretionary
bonus program and a share option scheme. As required by
the regulations in the PRC, the Group makes contributions to
mandatory social security funds for the benefit of the Group’s
employees in the PRC, including pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, personal injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing funds.

Closure of Register of Members

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2021 AGM") is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 10 June
2021. For determining the entitlement of shareholders of the
Company (the "Shareholders") to attend and vote at the 2021
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 7 June 2021 to Thursday, 10 June 2021, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2021 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 June 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Non-fulfiliment of profit guarantee of Sino Wealth Group

Pursuant to the agreements in relation to the acquisition of Sino
Wealth Investment Co., Limited (“Sino Wealth"”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Sino Wealth Group”), New Wealth Investment
Co., Limited (the “Sino Wealth Vendor”) had guaranteed that the
audited net profit after tax of It REZREITHE ERER A A
(Beijing An Jin Shi Hang Financing Guarantee Company Limited*)
("AJSH") for FY2019 would be not less than RMB30 million.

Due to the adverse situation in the financial sector in the PRC,
which has tightened the funding source, the operation of the
provision of financing guarantee and the consultancy services
of Sino Wealth Group had encountered severe challenges,
particularly in souring funds and generating revenue.

According to the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Sino Wealth Group issued by HLM CPA Limited on 24 March
2020, the audited net loss after tax of AJSH and its direct wholly-
owned subsidiary for FY2019 were approximately RMB33 million.
As such, the RMB30 million profit guarantee given by Sino
Wealth Vendor is not fulfilled. Accordingly, Sino Wealth Vendor
paid to Harmonic Edge Limited (the “Harmonic Edge”), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, a cash compensation
in the sum of approximately HK$33.6 million, which being
1.2 times of the profit guarantee of RMB30 million and after
deducting the third installment of the consideration HK$6 million
to be paid by Harmonic Edge to Sino Wealth Vendor.

* for identification purposes only

Sino Wealth £ B & /& 17 % Rl 4R &

1R 4% A B8 Y88 Sino Wealth Investment Co.,
Limited ([Sino Wealth | - #E R E KB A7) * £
75 [Sino Wealth &£ & | ) Z 1% 3% ' New Wealth
Investment Co., Limited ([Sino Wealth & 77 |)
ERFIRLERUEITREERERAT ([&
RMIT 2T A FLEEXBRBEE T
F R ME R A K #30,000,0007T ©

HRFEHESRMITEMRAEEZEHNE S RIREK
2 - Sino Wealth & B 12 f 8 & #£{R & B R
BHEREEAGRRKKE CERESKE
SRFEREERAFTE-

BEERESHMITERARNR-ZE_ZTF=
B =+ A T3 7 Sino Wealth £ B & &= 1% 43
BUBRE TRUETREEEE2EWNB AT
RIE—NMFZREEZRBBERFELY
A AR #33,000,0007T ° A L * Sino Wealth &
TR A s FIR 75 A R #630,000,0007T K &=
B o B Il > Sino Wealth E 5 B [AIANA &) 2 B
ZEWNBRARIMEER AR ([FEE]) R
% BE 8 4858 933,600,000 7T+ Bl MR A
R #30,000,0007T 2 1.2 » I &£ 30 Fr AN 6% 52
7 F Sino Wealth & 75 #) % = £ /X (86,000,000
ETT
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Kequan, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 June 2016. He was re-designated as an executive
Director (the "ED"), chief executive officer of the Company (the
“CEO") and the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) on
30 June 2016. Mr. Liu ceased to act as the CEO on 8 June 2018
and remains as the Chairman and continue to serve as an ED. He
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu
was previously the chief executive officer of Z g F Jt & B i%
13 A BR A 8] (Yunnan Ziyuan Group Co., Ltd.), a conglomerate
specialising in investment, real estate development, tourism
development and bio-pharmaceutical biotechnology industry
and has extensive management experience. He graduated from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a major in Applied Chemistry
in July 1994. Mr. Liu also obtained an Executive Master of
Business Administration degree from Tsinghua University in July
2005.

Mr. Yang Dayong, aged 45, was appointed as an ED and CEO
on 8 June 2018. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Yang is the founder of it R & KR t 17 g & & 1%
AR~ 7] (Beijing Anjia Shihang Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.).
He has more than 20 years of experience in the field of fintech
investment, risk management and merger and acquisition.
Mr. Yang graduated from Peking University with a degree in
Economics. He received a Master’'s degree in Economics from
Tsinghua University and a Doctoral degree in Economics from
Renmin University of China.

Mr. Zhang Peidong, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He was re-designated
as an ED on 5 July 2016. Mr. Zhang is currently the managing
director of Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Limited which was
previously owned by a Hong Kong listed company. He has over
20 years of experience in investment, corporate management
and international trade industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from Jilin
University of Technology (now known as Jilin University) with a
major in Metallic Materials Engineering.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 May 2015. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwan
has over 10 years of experience in corporate accounting and
worked in a number of listed companies. He holds a Master’s
degree in Accounting from Curtin University of Technology (now
known as Curtin University).

Dr. Lyu Ziang, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 July 2016. He is currently the
deputy technical head of R&D division of /BB EBRBEKE 5
A BR A &) (Shanghai Kuajingtong International Trade Co., Ltd.).
Dr. Lyu has years of experience in identification and control
of trade and financial risks. He worked at managerial level of
certain technology companies. Dr. Lyu graduated from Tsinghua
University with a degree in Thermo-Dynamic Engineering and
Control in July 1994 and also received a Master’s degree in
Computer Software and Theory as well as a Doctoral degree
in Computer Technology Application from Beijing Jiaotong
University in May 2003 and July 2012 respectively.

Mr. Zhou Liangyu, aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He is currently the
managing director of JRIIBALREME FBR A A (H&H
Microelectronics Co., Ltd.), a company specialising in ODM
service and overall supply chain management service in
electronics industry. Mr. Zhou has over 20 years of experience in
investment, corporate management and technology industry. He
graduated from BRPE& FHMEFIZET (Shaanxi Province Foreign
Training College) with a major in Foreign Trade English.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the conduct of
management of the Company as well as protecting the interests
of all Shareholders. The Company has always recognised the
importance of the transparency and accountability towards the
Shareholders. It is the belief of the Board that Shareholders can
maximise their benefits from good corporate governance.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions (the “Code Provision(s)”) as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board recognizes that an increasing diversity at the Board
level is inductive to the attainment of the Company's strategic
objectives and the Company’s sustainable development. All
Directors share their competence to bring sustainable growth
to the Company. Recognizing diversity is a wider issue than
just gender diversity, the Board aims to achieve diversity on the
Board in other respects including age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicities, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. In identifying suitable candidates for
appointments to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
take into consideration the Company’s business models and
specific needs. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity criteria and perspectives. The Nomination Committee
will consider the balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowledge of the Board and the diversity representation of the
Board, how the Board works together as a unit, and other factors
relevant to its effectiveness.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code throughout FY2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, being
Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman), Mr. Yang Dayong (Chief Executive
Officer) and Mr. Zhang Peidong, and three independent
non-executive Directors, being Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, Dr. Lyu Ziang
and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.

Five board meetings and two general meeting were held during
the year. The individual attendance record is as follows:

£5E

EEeRlm-UNTERIRREE (XFE) -
BARBRE (TTHRAE) RERMREL AR
“UBIHFNTEFRERLEE aFHREL

FRABRTAXREFEEZIMABREKX
g o fERIR B &Y B RCER AN T

Board General

Meetings Meetings

Attended/ Attended/

Eligible to Eligible to

Directors attend attend

BHE BHE

EEREE SEBUE

E=xg IRER

=4 BERE RERE

Executive Directors: HiTESE -

Mr. Liu Kequan B REE 5/5 2/2

Mr. Yang Dayong BARBLEE 5/5 2/2

Mr. Zhang Peidong oM R S A 5/5 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors: HUIHNTESE

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor BAERELE 5/5 2/2

Dr. Lyu Ziang BFHREL 5/5 2/2

Mr. Zhou Liangyu BRFRAE 5/5 2/2

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performances, but the day-to-day management
is delegated to the three executive Directors, Mr. Liu Kequan,
Mr. Yang Dayong and Mr. Zhang Peidong, who also assume the
roles of senior management of the Company.

The Company has distinguished the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in accordance with
the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company are Mr. Liu Kequan and
Mr. Yang Dayong respectively.

The Board will regularly review the effectiveness of the
segregation of roles to ensure its appropriateness under the
Group'’s prevailing circumstances.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material relationship) among any other members of the
Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The list of Directors and their roles and functions is posted on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Directors are given timely access to relevant information prior
to each board meeting. Directors are given the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings. At the
same time, Directors are entitled to have access to board papers
and related materials to allow them to make informed decisions
on matters arising from board meetings.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of other committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company and are open
for inspection by Directors.

Each of the non-executive Directors is appointed for a term
of three years and is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors are persons of
high caliber with academic and professional qualifications in
accounting, financial, management and various business fields
which provide the Group with a wide range of valuable expertise.
With their experience gained from senior positions held in other
organisations, they provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, an independent non-executive Director,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise states under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company is of the view that all the independent
non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence in accordance with the prevailing Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. Individual Director is encouraged to
attend courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
listed company director or further enhancement of professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online
aids or reading relevant materials. The company secretary
of the Company continuously updates all Directors on the
latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. During the year under
review, the current Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Kequan, Mr. Yang
Dayong, Mr. Zhang Peidong, Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, Dr. Lyu Ziang
and Mr. Zhou Liangyu had participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending training courses
or by reading materials.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules and Code Provisions of the CG Code. The duties
of the Audit Committee are to review and monitor the financial
reporting and risk management and internal control systems of
the Company. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kwan Kei Chor
(Chairman), Dr. Lyu Ziang and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.

During FY2020, the Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management and the auditor the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and discussed the auditing,
risk management, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements of the
Group for FY2019 and the unaudited interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

In additional, the Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for FY2020 and the related results
announcement and auditor’s report, and made recommendation
to the Board that the same be approved.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N\ Al NN
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Two Audit Committee meetings were convened during the year. F R ZBHMAIBEZEZE S - ERIKE
The individual attendance records are as follows: B FE R BRI T

Number of

Directors attendance
B HERE
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor (Chairman) BERLE (F/F) 2/2
Dr. Lyu Ziang BFHEL 2/2
Mr. Zhou Liangyu BRFRAE 2/2
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE HM=E g

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Listing Rules and Code Provisions of the CG
Code. The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
advise and recommend the Board on the remuneration policy and
framework of the Company’s Directors and senior management,
as well as review and determine the remuneration of individual
executive Directors and senior management with reference to
the Company’s objectives from time to time. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Dr. Lyu Ziang (Chairman) and Mr. Kwan Kei
Chor and one executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhang Peidong.

During FY2020, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration policy and framework of the Company’s
Directors and senior management, assessed the performance of
executive Directors and determined the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management with
reference to the Company’s objectives.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was convened during the
year. The individual attendance records are as follows:
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R-Z_THUF FHEESC RN ARAE
EREREEENTFMBREME  FFERT
EFNRT W2EARFN B REE @R
TEERRBRERBNFINEFS-

ERN-EEAR-RFMESRRR-ERIKE
B R I T

Number of
Directors attendance
= R &
Dr. Lyu Ziang (Chairman) BFRiEL (£/EF) 11
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor BERELEE 1/1
Mr. Zhang Peidong SFOMR L E 11
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

ANNUAL REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE
MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for FY2020 is as follows:

N
iz

ENESREEE 2 FE N

R-T-THE BRELS 2 EREEER
B FEHEMT

Number of
Remuneration bands (HK$) Individual
MeeE (Bx) A8
350,000 - 1,000,000 350,000% 1,000,000 1
1,000,001 - 2,500,000 1,000,001%2,500,000 1
2,500,001 - 4,000,000 2,500,001%4,000,000 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The duties
of the Nomination Committee are (a) to review the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity) of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, with due regard to the diversity of the Board;
(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
(c) to assess the independence of INEDs and to review the
INEDs" annual confirmation on their independence; (d) to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors; and (e) before appointments are made by the Board,
to evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
on the Board, and, in the light of this evaluation to prepare a
description of the roles and capabilities required for a particular
appointment. The Nomination Committee currently comprises
one executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Lyu Ziang
and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.

During FY2020, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
size, structure, composition as well as diversity of the Board,
assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and considered the re-election of the Directors. The
Nomination Committee has also reviewed the board diversity
policy to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group
has achieved the objectives of the board diversity policy during
the year under review.
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Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee follows its established nomination
policy in the selection of candidates for director appointments.
The Bye-Laws of the Company set out the process for the
appointment of Board members. In the event that the vacancy
to be filled is a casual vacancy, or an additional Director is to be
appointed, the Board will make the appointment of the Director
in accordance with the Bye-laws. In the event that the vacancy
has arisen as a result of normal retirement or rotation, the Board
shall present the candidates to the shareholders for election in
accordance with the Bye-laws. The Board shall avail sufficient
information to enable the shareholders to make an informed
choice. When a vacancy arises on the Board (through resignation,
rotation etc) or in the event that an additional Director is to
be appointed, the Nomination Committee shall consider the
Board’s needs in terms of skills, competencies and other diversity
considerations with due regard to any on-going major projects
and develop a profile of the required candidate. The Nomination
Committee shall invite Board members to submit to it profiles of
interested potential Board members. The Nomination Committee
shall consider the profiles received and select candidates
whom it shall interview to assess suitability for the position. In
selecting the potential candidates, the Nomination Committee
shall consider, in addition to the requirements in the Bye-Laws
of the Company, the mandatory regulatory requirements. The
candidate is required to expressly disclose the nature and extent
of other activities or appointments which may give rise to conflict
of interests, and hence his/her independence. The Nomination
Committee shall make its recommendation on the candidate to
the Board, and ultimately to the shareholders if required.

The Company values, promotes, and observes the Board diversity
policy in the composition of its Board of Directors. The Company
implements the policy as a part of the recruitment and selection
process in appointment of a member of the Board. The Company
is initiating the use of a matrix to facilitate a review of the skills,
competencies, experience and other attributes of the Board
members to establish a baseline. Selection of a candidate is
generally made based on a range of diversity objectives against
the baseline in the Board diversity policy. Particular regard will
be paid to the benefits of balance of skills, knowledge and
experience, and perspective differentiations introduced to
the Board from the candidates, including varied educational
background, and extensive expertise, knowledge and experience
in technology, investment, trade and financial risks identification
and control, international trade, corporate management to
professional qualification in accounting and other professional
fields.
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One Nomination Committee meeting was convened during the
year. The individual attendance records are as follows:

FR BARA-XRBZESSH -ERKE
BB RCER AT

Number of
Directors attendance
= H R IR B
Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman) BlmRESE (F/E) 1
Dr. Lyu Ziang BFHEL 1/1
Mr. Zhou Liangyu ARFRE 11

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole performs the corporate governance duties
set out in Code Provision D.3.1 which include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practice on corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For FY2020, the fees in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group by the Company’s auditor, HLM
CPA Limited, amounted to HK$1,450,000 and HK$400,000
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of interim
results review and other reporting services.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Company'’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for FY2020 is set out
in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” of this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During FY2020, the company secretary of the Company is
Ms. Chan Siu Mun who had taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formal channels, which include interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars. The Company'’s published
documents together with the latest corporate information and
news are also made available on the website of the Company.
The Company also welcomes comments and questions from
Shareholders at its annual general meeting.

Shareholders are given the opportunity to participate and vote in
Shareholder’s meetings. According to Bye-law 57 of the bye-laws
of the Company, any 2 or more Shareholders holding at the
date of the deposit of a written requisition in aggregate not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board. Such requisition must
state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at Company'’s head office in Hong
Kong.
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Pursuant to Bye-law 89 of the bye-laws of the Company, no
person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office
of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing
by some Shareholders (not being the person to be proposed)
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given of his intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected shall have been given to the Company provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting. The written notice
must state that person’s biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number and postal address,
which could be found on Company’s website, in order to enable
them to make any query that they may have with respect to
the Company. They can also send their enquiries to the Board
through these means.

During FY2020, there had not been any changes in the
Company'’s constitutional documents. The Company’s bye-laws
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and
the Company's assets and reviewing their effectiveness at
least annually. Review of the Group’s internal controls include
major financial, operational and compliance controls, as well
as risk management functions. The risk management and
internal control system are designed to manage, not eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve business objective, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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The key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to ensure their effectiveness include
providing a clear policies and procedure, as well as a reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks across
business operations.

The Group’s risk management policy includes the following
elements:

e I|dentification of significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those;

e Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
e Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

Risks that affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives are
identified, evaluated and prioritized by department managers.
Management will assess the nature and impact of those risks, risk
register are then established. The Audit Committee is responsible
to manage the risk management process. Risks which cannot be
accepted by the Group are transferred, eliminated or controlled
through risk mitigation measures. Each risk mitigation measure
has a risk owner who is a department manager or designated
person who will be assigned to ensure accountability. Risks
owners are also responsible for monitoring the status of the risk
mitigation measures for risks under their areas of responsibility.

Due to the size of the Group and cost effectiveness consideration,
the Group does not have an internal audit function. Instead, the
Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to assist
the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of
internal control systems of the Group, assessing the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems and in
performing the internal audit functions for the Group. The review
covers major activities of the Group in rotation basis and also the
risk management functions. Deficiencies (if any) are identified
and improvement recommendations as well as remedial actions
are proposed.

TEERRE

AEERBREEMABEESENBERER
BRERERR  BIEEEEMBER R F N
MEEmES M ASRBEERAEEBLER
R A E R o

AEENEBREEBRREE MITE:

o BRAKERERETOENER M
H

1
8

s BUMmHEIBUEEZFZAR: &
o ERMBNZFHEENARIE-

IS EER A REBAEAZRTEAREEE
BRERNRAR EEESTHLFRLAEE
ke HERIRBELM - BEZLZE2H
EEERREERE AEREZEINEAR
ﬂ—riﬁLﬂﬁ JERIE MRS  JHBR SR o B I8

Rk EREEEIRE —GRBAREA EAI

FICIB ST ZREBRERENETA LT Al
BEANEAERERAMATRARERNE
BB RIS HEIE S o

ERAEERERR AR EZEBEAR AEE
WEAFFEZBE -HR AREEZRE -4
BYBXBRNAGHEEENERREER
BERASENNIEZEGE  FEREREE
Ko ) HB BS 2 %'Jf%)ﬂixﬁ(%&?%ﬁﬁliﬂﬁlﬁ
MEZBRE R BERKIORERNEEEER
ﬁ%u&ﬂﬁgi@ﬁﬁé cZEE G RAIT T B
(20F) W 1R i & 3 o M s HE i

RPESHMERBRAT | —T_FFFR

43



44

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

Audit Committee and the Board receives the risk management
report and internal control report by the independent professional
advisor annually. The Board, through the Audit Committee, had
performed annual review on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and considers them to effective and adequate for FY2020.

Regarding the procedure and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Group is aware of
its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The handling
and dissemination of inside information are regulated to ensure
the information is kept strictly confidential before disclosure is
appropriately approved. Only personnel at appropriate level can
get reach of inside information. The Group will immediately
disclose the information to the public if it believes that the
confidentiality may have been breached.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board does not have a policy to pay any fixed dividend or
a pre-determined future dividend distribution policy. The Board
has absolute discretion to recommend any dividend declaration.
Dividend will depend on our financial conditions, results of
operations, cash availability, statutory and regulatory restrictions
in relation thereto, future prospects, and any other factors that
the directors may consider relevant. In any event, the Company
will not be in a position to pay or declare dividends until such
time as it has profits available for that purpose as determined in
accordance with the applicable law.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for FY2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provide corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Detailed review and the future development of the Group's
business are set out in the Chairman’s Statement and the
Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this report.
Those sections form part of this “Directors’ Report”.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for FY2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 77 and 78.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for FY2020 (2019: nil).

There is no arrangement that any Shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 259 and
260 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in notes 47 and 48 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to HK$nil (2019: nil).

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, there were no purchase, sale or redemption of
the Company'’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers accounted for approximately
3.9% and 9.2% of the Group's total revenue for the year
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 86.4% and 97.7% of the Group's total purchases
for the year respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for FY2020
are disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions as set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements prescribed in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions entered into
by the Group during FY2020.

G4

FRAAEBMARNRRFEENESHEHNGEE Y
TEIMRMTFT47 1248 o

RZEBE-_EF+_A=1+—8 XxQaf#o
KT ERANBEASEL(ZE—NF E)-

BE LELERLHES

FAARBREEAMEARRERE 1
EHBOAREN ETES-

TERPRHER

AEBBGARFEAAREFNEERTE DR
HAREBFRNBIWALIZ.9% £9.2%  NEE
RABEHEARBEEEEBERES GEAR
SEF AR RREAS6.4% &97.7% °

MEBER RENBBEAIRLESHAEE X
NAEIAR5% A _E R EAI AR A S B A K i
EREP PR T

B T R 5

ERAAEER _Z_ZNF 2@
FHBINERE MR M E44 B B -

FREAVBEBRRMEM BB T ZRZE T
BRARBRNETRAFI4ATIR N ZE
ROBFFEEAER S - ARFEET LETRE
FUAEERAKBERN T _TMFFIULLZ
REXFAFEMEIF MR ENREEL -

X5

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2020



DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Dayong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Peidong

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor
Dr. Lyu Ziang
Mr. Zhou Liangyu

Pursuant to Bye-laws 99(B) of the bye-laws of the Company,
Mr. Zhang Peidong (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Kwan Kei Chor
(“Mr. Kwan”) will retire from office as Directors at the 2021
AGM and Mr. Zhang and Mr. Kwan, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company confirms that it has received an annual
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors regarding his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company still considers all the existing
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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ERGIBEBBRXESEREFXNRABESNE
MK A) Bk (b) ARSI IR IR 7B 5 & HR &
FIGEBEEF 2 BB (o) IRIFEZ
EFRIBMNEARR BRI ERDT

\\\\

REQXTARGREBRO 2HFR

Total number Approximate

Number of Number of of shares and percentage
issued shares underlying underlying of the issued
Director Nature of Interests held shares held shares voting shares
EE#T
CEES
FisE B&17 P e R R ROBL
B BEME ROHE RO#A ROEH Bk
Liu Kequan ("Mr. Liu") Corporate interests 1,447,750,000 - 1,447,750,000 18.62%
(Note 1)
mR ([8%4%]) EERER (BzET)
Yang Dayong (“Mr. Yang") Corporate and 614,826,000 - 614,826,000 7.91%
family interests (Note 2)
BARE([HEE]) EER R GER (PEE2)
Notes: {ix=a
1. The interests are held by Eastern Spring Global Limited. Mr. Liu 1. ZERDAREREXERAAEE B

is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of

Eastern Spring Global Limited.

N The interests include (i) 612,810,000 shares held by Eternally
Sunny Limited and (ii) 2,016,000 shares held by Mrs. Yang,
being the spouse of Mr. Yang. Mr. Yang is the beneficial owner
of the entire issued share capital of Eternally Sunny Limited.

ERRRBRFARAR M HITHRAD
BEmBEAA

2. ZEREBREEGERRAAFEEN
612,810,000/% % 10 M (i) 15 7t £ 2 B 1B 15
ZEHEHE2,016,0000 DGR EBE
BERAREHFCHITRANESHEEF A
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company’s associated corporations
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REQXREBEERORERRO ZHER

Approximate

percentage
Number of to issued
shares/amount  voting shares/
of registered registered
Director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest  Class capital capital
HERT
BREERD
ROBE/ EREAZ
B B EEEE BEtE 5 dAMELTE BOESH
Mr. Liu Intraday Financial Information Corporate interests  Ordinary 55 shares 55%
Service Limited (Note 3)
B4 ERERESBRBERAF EERR (HE3) LRk 55k
aBCD Enterprise Limited Corporate interests ~ Ordinary 3 shares 100%
(Note 3)
EERR (HE3) LRk 38k
SERBNREZA(LB)BRAA Corporate interests  Registered capital RMB31,000,000 100%
(Dingtai Runhe Investment (Note 3)
Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.)  ZE#z (H:3) HMEX AR
31,000,0007T
Note: B =T -
3. 65.80% of the issued share capital of Long Tu Limited (“Long 3. EEERAR([EEBE]EBEITRAN

Tu") is owned by Mr. Liu. Long Tu is the legal and beneficial
owner of 55 shares of Intraday Financial Information Service
Limited (“Intraday”), which is 55% of its issued share capital,
whilst the remaining 45 shares, which represents 45% of the
issued share capital of Intraday, is owned by the Company.
Intraday is the legal and beneficial owner of 3 shares of aBCD
Enterprise Limited (“aBCD"), which is 100% of its issued share
capital. aBCD is the holder of RMB31,000,000 of the registered
capital of Dingtai Runhe Investment Consulting (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., which is its entire equity interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors, chief executive or their associates had any interests and
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c)
were otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

65.80% NHAZEEREE -EBERERS
BMEERBBERAR ([EXE/])Z55
B m (BEBEITIRANZ55%) ZEE
EnEBAA- ff1ﬁ§§5TE']45HXJQXTﬁ(/75'flA
%iﬁﬂa?‘ﬁﬂxﬁzéw%)ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
A % X< @ JyaBCD Enterprise Limited
(laBCD 1) 23l th (REE2HE BTR
R)ZEERE=BEE A aBCD RRRH
MIEEHA (LB ARAFTZAMERA

R #31,000,0007c (BEZERAER) 2
FHA
BrENXHEEEN RZE_EFF+_A=+—
H 8T TETHRABIBENBEA

RARB S EEMEREE (EERLESF R
HAE RIS XV #8) /9 B fn ~ HRE A SR HE RE
RHB QREZESFLIEGRIIEXVEFETR
£80 BBAME AN F) N Bt X B eV (E Al #E 2 Ko
ﬁﬁ(@?ﬁﬁ%‘“ﬁh%&ﬁﬁfﬂﬂ |+ 8 1!%??5‘2
FWEFSRSEBNERSLIXR) KT
BRNRIRE %“&Hﬂfﬂﬂﬂ%3521“2/\3?2“
aC B BY 12 23 SR 5 Bk (o) R IR AR 2 <F R A
SARE ME R FH TS FORR o

RPESHMERBRAT | —T_FFFR
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements and the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares”, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. The effect of such arrangements would enable the
Director involved to be the Shareholder.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement and contracts of significance to
which (i) the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party with
a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries and (ii) in
which the Directors or an entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN A COMPETING

During FY2020 and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, the persons/companies, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

BE R SEEREN L

BRAR e MR MR E N BRE S
RIEZERTBITHRABRRN MBI
T’é 8 SORR ] —EIZ AN AR S E AT Y B
NAERFREMARE L ERR - A E
B R AR A QA SR E A B # B

HEEEMES - FRELHNAN A REHE
ERRBRR

EFERNRG  RPFERENFTHIE

/\

Bk

ARRABBLER L) AR B HE M ER
%EEP R T B — R Hxﬂxﬁiﬁﬁcﬁﬁﬁ%
RARMNESHEESAMENTRER L
BEEABAE D MR FRIF AERERE
DAFENEARS RHEEL-

EENHFEBHAOER

R-Z_ZPFRBEAREAN BEES
AN ERKE R BREENEFEKE
FRALBRBFNEFTHEAEED (TR
REMRA) -

PR Ko #8 B8 A% 1 o #e

FEK
m&?ﬁ%

R-E_ZTF+_F=1+—H BEERAR
Tz T BT A AR R AR K 48 B8 A%
EP%;ﬁmﬁfﬁ"%&ﬁﬁiﬂwﬂ%xv%B%z&
FE3D EEME BRI AR B XTI 5 0 5K
—afﬂAz}x AR IR E %&H ifﬂﬂmfﬁa%%z\
TEZszaHﬁH’Ng SHEORBRBIAL RE) (B
ERAR BITEMABBRIN WO
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EEEmE
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the REATDROGREBERG ZHFR
Company
Approximate
percentage to
No. of issued
Name Nature of interest shares held voting share
B BT
BEREERA
“l HE EEME FriER 6588 BANBEDH
Eastern Spring Global Limited Beneficial owner 1,447,750,000 18.62%
RRRRER QA EREAA
Skill Rich Limited (“Skill Rich™) Beneficial owner 1,000,000,000 12.86%
NHRBRRR ([H#E]) EnER A
Chen Zheng Corporate interest 1,000,000,000 12.86%
(Note 1)
PRAE EERE R (M$3E1)
Eternally Sunny Limited Beneficial owner 612,810,000 7.88%
B AR A A EnlEBA
Ms. Liang Miaoxin Beneficial owner and family interests 614,826,000 7.91%
(Note 2)
BB L BEnEB ARRIEER (Mt5E2)
Chu Lam Yiu Beneficial owner and Corporate interest 691,000,000 8.89%
(Note 3)
RREE EnEE AR EEER (M$5E3)
Wardour International Limited Beneficial owner 125,184,000 1.61%
("Wardour")
Wardour International Limited EmEAA

(['wardour |)

RAESHMERBRIF | — T _ZTFFRH
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Notes:

1. Mr. Chen Zheng owned the entire issued share capital of Skill Rich
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in
which Skill Rich was interested.

2. Ms. Liang Miaoxin is the spouse of Mr. Yang Dayong. By virtue of
the SFO, Ms. Liang is deemed to be interested in the Company’s
shares held by Mr. Yang.

3. Ms. Chu Lam Yiu owned the entire issued share capital of Wardour
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in
which Wardour was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far as is
known to the Directors and chief executive of the Company,
no other parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

ACQUISITION OF XIN YUNLIAN GROUP

References are made to the Company’'s announcements
dated 16 November 2019, 29 June 2020, 22 July 2020 and
31 July 2020, and the circular dated 30 June 2020 in relation
to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital and the
assignment of the shareholder’s loan of Xin Yunlian Group (the
“Acquisition”).

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement dated 16 November 2019
as amended by the supplemental agreement dated 29 June 2020
(the “Acquisition Agreement”) in relation to the Acquisition,
the consideration for the Acquisition was HK$360 million and
settled by the Company as to HK$200 million by the issue of the
convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) and as to HK$160
million by the issue of 800,000,000 new Shares (the “New
Shares”). The Acquisition was completed on 31 July 2020 (the
“Issue Date”).

B & -
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Convertible Notes

On the Issue Date, the Company issued the Convertible Notes in
the principal amount of HK$200 million which will mature on the
fifth anniversary of the Issue Date (the “Maturity Date”). Subject
to the fulfillment of certain profit guarantee arrangement, from
the third anniversary of the Issue Date up to the day immediately
before the fifth anniversary of the Issue Date, up to 30% of the
principal amount of each Convertible Note can be converted.
On the Maturity Date, the outstanding principal amount of each
convertible note can be converted in full. The conversion price
of the Convertible Notes shall be HK$1.0 per conversion Share,
subject to adjustment pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the Convertible Notes. Based on the initial conversion price of
HK$1.0 per conversion Share, 200 million new Shares will be
alloted and issued upon exercise of the Convertible Notes in full,
representing approximately 2.57% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this report.

The interest rate is nil for the period commencing upon the Issue
Date and expiring on the first anniversary of the Issue Date. The
interest rate is 1% per annum for the period commencing from
the first anniversary of the Issue Date and expiring on the second
anniversary of the Issue Date. The interest rate is 4% per annum
for the period commencing from the second anniversary of the
Issue Date and expiring on the third anniversary of the Issue Date.
The interest rate is 6% per annum for the period commencing
from the third anniversary of the Issue Date and expiring on the
Maturity Date. The interest accrued on the Convertible Notes will
be payable on the Maturity Date.

As at 31 December 2020, no Convertible Note was converted
during the year and no new Share was allotted and issued by the
Company pursuant thereto.

Details of the Convertible Notes are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movement of the Convertible Notes during FY2020 are

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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as follows: ™
Number of share
Balance as at Granted Exercised allotted and Balance as at
1 January during during issued 31 December
Holder 2020 the year the year Conversion price upon conversion 2020
R-ZB-ZE RB#RE RIBE-2F
-A—HBHi B%k +=A=t+-H
BEA 3 RERRE RERTE BRE RORGEE 14 g4
Vendor of the Acquisition Agreement - HK$200,000,000 = HK$1.0 - HK$200,000,000
WERENER 200,000,000/ 7T 1.0%7T 200,000,000 7
RAPESBIZERBRAT | — T _ZTFFR
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The New Shares

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, part of the consideration
shall be satisfied by the Company as to HK$160 million by the
issue of the New Shares at the issue price of HK$0.2 per Share,
which were issued by the Company upon completion of the
Acquisition on 31 July 2020. The New Shares are subject to a
lock-up for a period commencing on the Issue Date and ending
on the day immediately before the first anniversary of the Issue
Date.

Consideration Shares

Pursuant to the consultancy agreement dated 16 November
2019 as amended by a supplemental agreement dated 29 June
2020 (the “Consultancy Agreement”), the consultant, being
an individual providing consultancy service to the Group (the
“Consultant”) agreed to provide consultancy service to the
Company in relation to the Acquisition Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder. The consultancy fee shall
be HK$10 million which shall be settled by the Company by way
of issuing 50,000,000 consideration shares (the “Consideration
Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.2 per Share which were
issued by the Company upon completion of the Acquisition on
31 July 2020.

Profit Guarantee in respect of the Acquisition Agreement

In respect of the Acquisition Agreement, the vendor undertook
that the audited consolidated net profit of Xin Yunlian Group
for the five years ending 31 December 2024 in aggregate shall
be not less than RMB153 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$167.5 million) (the “Guaranteed Profit”). The vendor
represents that the aggregate consolidated net profit of Xin
Yunlian Digital and Xin Yunlian Cloud for the five years ending
31 December 2024 is expected to be not less than RMB300
million (equivalent to approximately HK$328.4 million). If the
actual audited consolidated net profit of Xin Yunlian Group
for the five years ending 31 December 2024 in aggregate (the
“Actual Profit”) falls short of the Guaranteed Profit, the vendor
will make up the shortfall to be determined in the manner set
out in the paragraph headed “(2) Profit guarantee” in the circular
of the Company dated 30 June 2020.
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Profit Guarantee in respect of the Consultancy Agreement

In respect of the Consultancy Agreement, the Consultant
undertook that if the Actual Profit falls short of the Guaranteed
Profit, the Consultant will irrevocably assigns the Company to sell
the Consideration Shares, and the sale proceeds will be applied
to compensate the Company for the shortfall.

The Company will publish further announcements in a timely
manner to inform Shareholders of the fulfillment of the profit
guarantee and where applicable, the Company's action upon
non-fulfillment failure of the profit guarantee.

Incentive payment

To incentivize the vendor to contribute in the development of Xin
Yunlian Group after completion of the Acquisition, the Company
agreed to issue to the vendor convertible notes to settle the
incentive payment or to pay the vendor in cash at the request
of the vendor in the event that the Actual Profit exceeds the
Guaranteed Profit, details of which are set out in the paragraph
headed “Incentive Payment” in the circular of the Company
dated 30 June 2020.

For details of the Acquisition, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 16 November 2019, 29 June 2020, 22 July
2020 and 31 July 2020, and the circular dated 30 June 2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to the Shareholders’ resolution passed on
20 June 2011.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.
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The participants of the Scheme are as follow:

(a)

any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries and any invested entity;

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any invested entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any invested
entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any invested entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of the Group or
any invested entity; and

any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute, by way of joint venture,
business alliance, other business arrangement or otherwise,
to the development and growth of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 687,191,917 which comprises
300,000,000 shares to be issued under the outstanding options
unexercised and 387,191,917 shares to be issued under the
options not yet being granted, representing approximately 8.84%
of the issued share capital (i.e. 7,775,857,621 shares).

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options and the share options
granted under any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised or outstanding share options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, save that such period shall
end in any event not later than ten years from the date of grant
of the option and subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

There is no minimum period required under the Scheme for
holding of the share options before it can be exercised, unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
of the grant of share options to a grantee. An option may be
accepted by a participant within 28 days from the date of the
offer of grant of the option by payment from the participant and
receipt by the Company of HK$1.00 prior to or on the last date
of the said 28 day period.

The exercise price will be a price to be determined by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The Scheme will expire on 19 June 2021.

Details of the Scheme are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Details of movements in the share options granted under the R -ZE_ZTHFREFTERHZBERENE
Scheme during FY2020 were as follows: BN
Number of share options held
FrisBRERR
Closing
Price of
share
immediately
Balance as Balance before
at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at Exercise  the date of Weighted
1 January during during during 31 December Price grant of average
Category Date of grant 2020 the period the period the period 2020 Exercise Period of Share Options HKS  share options  closing price
R
R -ECEF RORSE
It St 32 = BRERH
-B-H =t-B L3 Rt mEFH
55 RaAH &8 BaRke BRiR HBREX &5 BRENGES A W& L
Employees 20 March 2018 104,500,000 - (1,280,000 (11,720,000) 91,500,000 Any time within 20/3/2018 to 19/3/2021 0.188 0.187 0.197
ES “Z-\¥ZR=1H ZE-\EZR-THECB--EZATARHRARR
30 December 2020 - 142,300,000 - - 142,300,000  Any time within 30/12/2021 to 29/12/2025 0.200 0.200 -
S 22 s o ZE--F+ZAS+BECRCRFTACTAA
HEREE
Consultants 20 March 2018 336,080,000 - - - 336,080,000 Any time within 20/3/2018 to 19/3/2021 0.188 0.187 -
B “E-\fZA=tH ZE-\EZACTREIZC-EZATARSREARE
30 December 2020 - 150,000,000 - - 150,000,000  Any time within 30/12/2021 to 29/12/2025 0.200 0.200 o
ZECEETCASHH Z3--5+-A=+BE-T-RETA-tAR
HR Rk
Director
£
Dr. Lyu Ziang 30 December 2020 - 7,700,000 - - 7,700,000 Any time within 30/12/2021 to 29/12/2025 0.200 0.200 -
RTREL ZE-ZF4-f=1H ZE -+ AZtREZECREFTZAZTAA
B
Tota\ 440,580,000 300,000,000 (1,280,000)  (11,720,000) 727,580,000
E“»
QUL s 4] F7 2
EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENT N& ¥ 1 8 177 7
Save for the Acquisition Agreement, the Consultancy Agreement B} - ST # 58~ W BB #p:% - BB 1993 M ek st &I
and the Scheme as disclosed above, the Company had not  4h- EA%Z ;Zé T=% ¢ +ZA=+—HIF
entered into other equity-linked agreement during the year €' &R E s a1 o
ended 31 December 2020.
IPZAN faras
EMOLUMENT POLICY B Bk 26
The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is A& E K E E &

set up by the Board and is based on their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the share
option scheme is set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMEREHESTSREENK
H: éTD/\ Ej]g i"

EEMemFHZESRARAKERE @
ARBE KA L& %%HJ%‘?ﬁﬁ/k;E 0

ARRIERMBREFEINEBESRAE
RER BREFIFBHNEEMBRRNW

EZAN

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2020



RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group's retirement benefit scheme are set out
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statement. As at
31 December 2020, no forfeited contributions were available to
reduce the existing level of contributions payable by the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified by the Company out of the assets
of the Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities which he may sustain or incur or about the execution
and discharge of his duties or in relation thereto. Directors’
liability insurance policies containing permitted indemnity
provisions have been taken out and maintained in force during
the financial year and as at the date of approval of this report to
provide appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group in respect of the relevant liabilities and
costs associated with legal proceedings against them.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During FY2020, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group provides a harmonious and professional working
environment to employees and ensures they all are reasonable
remunerated. The Company regular reviews and updates its
policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety.

The Group also recognises that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners and customers to achieve
its long-term goals. During the year, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners.

RPESRMERERAF
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
adheres to the principle of recycling and reducing. Double-sided
printing and copying, using recycled paper and reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance are being implemented in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from
time to time and will consider further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has reviewed the possible risks and uncertainties
which may affect its businesses, financial condition, operations
and prospects. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Strategy Risk Risk Description

RRBR KRB

AEEFNRERE Y RBRERBRHNMEL
RAI- EMITEN RAEH - EARERARNE B
AR T L ENRANESR AR D ERERES
EREESERRGMET

AEEB TR LIRFERED A GEE
ErERE—SHERRIERIEERED-

TEEABLTHARRNE

AEBE DR Al B H X5 MR - 2 0&
AR ER T BRI BER R M AAARESE - A
TAAEEMENTI2RER N AHARESE K
TXAFEN REFEARBEALRIEXE

RIAEETERERKAEESERENEMAE
B M RRAR E -

Risk Mitigation
Bee 1E€ FL B

— The Group should develop emergency
responses policies and procedures for
management and staffs to follow if those
incidents do occur. For example in the
recent pandemic, take measures to prevent
transmission of disease such as work
from home, physical distancing, regular
environmental cleaning and disinfection,
and limiting unnecessary travel etc.
AEBEGNTETEREERBE I ERANLSE
EHREERNESNEMEZF - Fln-
e BR ) = 1B R ER B % TR HE i TR B K R
WEE BREERNA RESEBER
TEEIEATIRIZ R R AE S A K& R &l %
E: NN

— The Group should take adequate insurance
coverages.

AEBEBEEENRBRE-

R W B B | Bes i

Unpredictable Major disasters or unpredictable incidents,
incidents or such as pandemic, natural disaster, fire
disasters etc. may impact the group’s operation

AT TR B89 3K capabilities and impacting the financial
SEE performance of the Group.

ARIT - BARAKE - AKFEBRLHERT
AFEANEGr e EREN L ED
NWHEREBOMEERE -
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Risk Description
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Risk Mitigation
e

Acquisition risk

Wi R R

The Group from time to time needs to

expand by acquiring new line of business.
If the acquisition is not done properly it
could impact the Group financially and
in reputation. Some of the M&A issues
are: overvalue of the target company,
insufficient operational experience, no
in-house expertise, underestimation of
time and resources required to run the
business, and the target Group fails to
perform etc.
REETRREREWBE N EBRIBARR -
MW BAREZEET REHAEEE
R BB E —LHBERERRE:
BEARMGERS SELBTE B
TABEERME KL TEEXBMT
WRMERNBREBREBLOE -

— Before investing in a new project or

acquiring new business, the Board should
perform full management assessment and
due diligence on the project/new business,
its business models, financial performance,
market trend, growth opportunities,
business valuations etc.
EREMBERRWBENERZ 2N EFE
I ER HEBERX  BEE
mHEBY EEREE XBHEFETE
HOWERBRMGANERASE-

External consultants/experts/valuers/
advisors/professionals that are expert
in the business to be commissioned to
support technical evaluations or provide
independent assessment.
ZREABEAEBHINBEER, R
BERDFEAAN BEATZFRMTESR
REHBI AT -

The management should continue to
monitor the progress of the acquisition
to ensure it is on time and within the
expected financial performance. Any
material discrepancy will need to inform
the Board immediately.
ERER/BERNBEE ARRIKEE
RIFERPUBRE - ERNEAEZEY
BVERMESE -

The management should independently
assess the adequacy of all the critical
internal control points and risk areas of the
newly acquired business to ensure all the
controls and risk mitigations are in place.
ERERB T EMNBEROMERM
S 7 B0 2 oI B % R B SR EY FE 0 M - DA T
RIE B P A 12 6 N B B R B 4R e
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Strategy Risk
SR G B By

Risk Description
| B 4

Risk Mitigation
e

Cyber risk
SR

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2020

The Group is involved in loan financing,
loan referral and consultancy, provision
of credit-based financing guarantee,
securities brokerage business, asset
management and insurance brokerage.
Some of these businesses rely much on IT
technologies to keep track of customer
information, transaction records, personal
and financial data of customers etc. All
of those records are highly confidential.
Any leakage of those information will
have serious consequences to the Group
and the customers. IT issues, cyber-
attack, system failure or interruption
of business-critical IT systems or digital
infrastructure could compromise the
Group’s business operations, reputation,
and financial position.

AEERFERRE ERENLFER-
RHEENGEENRERR BFLLE
B EEEBEMMRBREL -HOEB T
DEBEERMRRETFELR -XH
Lk BEFNEARTBEREF A
HZELHIBERT - ZFERNEM
BEHGHASERTPEKERER
R-EERMEE BRKE RN
[E AR EBHNEERMEARABTE
BRETEAIESBEAEENEKE
EBERMBARR -

The Group should continue to monitor and
upgrade its software and systems to the
latest cyber-attack prevention version.
AEERKEEZEEBRENERIL S B H
WEBER TGN ARG AR
RN o

Systems vulnerability and penetration
testing should be carried out regularly
to ensure that data are protected from
unauthorized access.

BT RORRAMNZE R ABRE
BXIRE EXREEENER-

The Group should develop a companywide
cyber risk policy and emergency procedures
in case of security breach.

7N £ B FE I E A R B T A9 A 4% R B SR
M2 RRE =R

Technical team should receive updates and
training relating to cyber risk and business
continuity.

i 1) B 8 T2 B W R AR 48 Rl B D 2
G MR 2 B R AN

All the critical data should be backed up
on a regular basis and all backup should
be stored in secure and safe places.
FEEEERETEHED  MATEHBHDE
REEAEZE2HMT -
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Strategy Risk

Risk Description Risk Mitigation

SR G B By | B 4 e
Counterparty risks For the provision of financial guarantee, — The Group should continue to monitor

REEFER

loan financing, loan referral and
consultancy services highly depends on
counter parties/partners to perform credit
check, monitoring of credit performance
of the borrowers, collection of loans,
and reporting of loan status etc. If the
partners fail to perform or does not act
in an ethical manner, it might lead to
dispute and litigation with the counter
parties/partners.

RIEHBEER EXRE ERXENT R
BARBEME EeEEREXZHF
BIERHETEERZSE BEEERAN
BFERE  EREREERMRRERS
WMEERHETBITIOR B IABET AT
£ AP REEBREZIHF SHEBRH
B A 4y AR FA ©

RPESBMERABRIF | —T_FTFFH 63

the performance of the counterparties/
partners. Any sign of issue will need to
inform management or the Board to take
appropriate actions.
AEBERBBEERRGHTF SEEH
BRI -MEREMEE BARANEREE
HESSUNERIEZE1TE -

The Group should perform frequent check
on the counter parties/partners on their
work in credit checking, monitoring of
credit performance of the borrowers,
collection of loans, and reporting of loan
status are according to the policy and
procedures set out by the Company.
REERRRBRAQRGENBRMEF
HRIZHF AERHNEERSES BT
BRANEERR EXREKEEFRR
[ERETIEETRERE -

Ongoing monitor and regular review of
the Company’s financial and operation
exposure to the lending platforms and find
ways to mitigate or lessen the impacts.

T ERRTEHEEARARFEBETA
R R EE R I = PR AR ORI ER
TENT L
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Strategy Risk Risk Description
SR G B By 2| B 4 3t

Risk Mitigation
e

Loan guarantee risks ~ One of the Company’s business is engaged
ERERRR in the provision of credit-based financing
guarantee. The business depends on
their partners to perform credit check.
The Group’s monitoring of those partners
credit checking performance is utmost
important. If the credit checking of those
partners is not executed properly, it could
lead to default.
ARRMER-—BEBRR{EEEREE
FRoZEBIHRRESIERHANITEE
FLE AEEERLSAERHGEES
ENRAEZHEZ - WHZEAIERH
MEEBEEARZENTT RIFT B BUE
#) o
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— To strengthen the key aspects of the

lending policy and procedures to ensure a
thorough and comprehensive credit checks
should be performed before granting of
the guarantee.

MM E B R M2 FFH RS [ - R
HERIETRE 2EANEESRSE-

To perform regular monitoring of the
financial position of the borrowers as well
as the lending platforms.

TEHEAIE KA R E T &m0 B -

The Group should perform frequent check
on the counter parties/partners on their
work in credit checking, monitoring of
credit performance of the borrowers,
collection of loans, and reporting of loan
status are according to the policy and
procedures set out by the Group.

NE B ERE A& B FE R BRNMEF
BEREHF AEEHNEESTE #
RAGERBREE EXROKEEFTRR
R TE-

Detect leading indicators of problems
early. Any sign of material issue should be
reported to the management immediately
for actions.

MPEERBENEITER WEEFNERX
MR RN EE R ELRRITE -

The Group should continue monitor
the Group’s credit risk management
strategy and credit checking policy on
those partners. Those strategy and credit
checking policy should be reviewed and
updated on a regular basis.
AEERFBEBEEEAEEUREAER
HEITHEERRERERBREERS
BUR - 2SR NEEBERRETE HiR
BPEEIE

To develop a standardized follow up and
recovery procedures for bad loans.
il 7E A7 &0 6 128 AR BR #E N Bl Y A2 - o
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Risk Mitigation
e

Loan, prepayment,
deposit, and trade
receivable risk

B AR I
®e R EWERR
JE

Regulatory updates
and compliance
risks

EBEEMREA
N

The Group currently has prepayment for
the consumable goods trading, deposit
paid to consumer financing guarantee
platform, and bank for loan guarantee.
There is risk of prepayment, deposit, and
loan receivable recoverability that could
lead to write-off and affect the Group's
financial performance.

REBERBEEMEHNRANRE T
HEEMEERTONRSARN TR
TERERERNE S - FHEENFIA -
e K& EWE R AT @ Y EL B - A] AR
BHMERTERAEENT BRI -

The frequent updates on disclosure
requirements, other supervision
regulations in listing rules, accounting
standards, financial reporting and
others, the Group may have omissions
or non-compliance risks. Further, change
in regulation could make the unit’'s
current business models unprofitable
or unsustainable. This is evidenced
by the PRC authorities tighten up
the regulations in lending platforms.
Compliance failures could lead to
criminal and civil prosecution, fines, loss
of rights, reputational damage etc.

PREEN EMRAMNKERE HMEE
RO ER MBRE REMBRE
AEESEFHEERITERAR UL
S IR BRI B & < B AL A IR B T
BREEZBNATAIHE PHE@EE
RWEREF R e E @A ZEH - N
ETEREN AEBE R REEEERMSE R

REREZE S EANRK BEXR
%‘Vo

The Group should continue to monitor the
deposit paid and receivable on a regular
basis. Any sign of issue should report to
management for actions.
rEEREETHERENRE REK
FE - HBEFMEESREERNEEER
HEHREITE

The Group should set up a team to review
new disclosure requirements and other
regulations in the listing rules, accounting
rules etc. Any material changes that could
impact the Group will need to report
to senior management or the Board for
actions.

7N 5 B FE R S B X B T AR R Y R
BRELHMHRD S5t EF - A
RYERAEENENERES FHRES
REBRBREETSHRITH-

The Group should regularly assess the
financial exposure on those business
lines that could be affected by regulatory
changes.
AEBREHIGARREEEITE
B E TS ARV B TS R bR o

i

Provide regular training to staff on new
regulatory and compliance requirement.
EERREIRHMABFEENRARE
K -
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Strategy Risk

Risk Description

Risk Mitigation

R e L B B B i 3t e 1EC L B
Licensing & Risk of licensing and other regulatory - Licenses and regulatory team to be

regulatory risk
hE IR K BB LB

requirements not being met. The
Company’s business such as loan
guarantee, securities brokerage, asset
management, loan financing, loan
referral and consulting services are highly
regulated business. They need licenses
and continue compliance of the rules
and regulation. There is risk of non-
compliance by the Group.

TR SR & 7T Al M CH fh B2 & 2SRk e EL
RRABH)ER (BIINE FRER Eif%%%é
o EBEER -BEREE ERENKHE
ﬂﬂlﬁ“)ﬁ'ﬁ HEREENREB - ZF
EBFERRRBEETER KRG
ZIS%@??EZE%EEL i o

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of this report, there are no important events
affecting the Group after FY2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2020
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supported by external consultants such
as lawyers and accountants to monitors
licenses and regulatory requirements that
could affect the Group guarantee and
lending businesses.

W IR I B2 B B Bt e SN R BA RS (Il an 722 B
N&FHAm) X LA§*T %&?ﬁﬁ = ¥
REBEEBOER R

— To develop procedure in internal control

and monitoring process regularly assesses

operation to ensure licensing compliance

and monitoring existing and new

regulatory requirements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float under the
Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2020
have been audited by HLM CPA Limited. A resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the 2021 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Kequan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Rooms 1501-8, 15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,

181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
FUEF AL L POA181 98 KA R 1581501-8 %
Tel FE7f: (852) 3103 6980

Fax {8 EL: (852) 3104 0170

E-mail 7 #: info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GREATER CHINA FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
RPESRERERAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 77 to 258, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BARPESHERAERATRRE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHENRE

s ET 1A

FARBTFEERERMOEXAE RAY
REGEVBERRNBHIRAEENTE &
LEFEERMEBAERBEAVERR LT
AEERRETEEN -BM T ELEEIE
HEBNHER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREETEER

BMNESTNMEEARENSTRETEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

7B YRl (B R

Referring to notes 18 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the Company
had performed an impairment review in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” in relation
to the Group's goodwill belonging to the groups of
cash-generating units (“CGU") comprising insurance
brokerage CGU, assets management CGU, financing
referral CGU, financial guarantee CGU and tobacco
financing CGU. The Group had recognised an
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$32,722,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2020 as a result of the
impairment review.

DHEEMBmERMTI8R20 BERFREREEDR
BEEESAEAFECR [EEREI Y SEENHE
CELBM ((ReEELEN] AR BERRLELHE
PELBEN AEEERSEAEML REENRS
ELEN REERASELEUNEERERTE
H B BRI EEBETRERN - BRIBRERN S &
SEERHEE_T_ZEF+ _A=T—"HILFEER
2R (B E51832,722,000/ 7T ©

The assessment of the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs required involvement of significant judgements
and assumptions by management concerning the
estimated future cash flows and other key inputs and
involved high level of estimation uncertainty.

AR ELABUNARO BT ZERERMGFAR
IR T E N H A RS A BURIEH EAHE KRR
WF k=B TR -

Accordingly, we have identified management’s
impairment assessment of the goodwill as a key audit
matter.

Bt HAEEREEH B ENREN B A —IRE
RETTFIR

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BMREEZFAMERNNEERF B

e discussing with and, where applicable, sought
corroborative supporting information from the
management of the Company and the independent
valuer engaged by the Company (the “Valuer”)
regarding the reasonableness of the valuation
methodologies adopted and the key inputs used,;

e B BERFEBHEER BEARZENBEZAEM

(TEERD]) BT ER A (EE T A R TR A RS 8 A

FENSEMETHmE (MER)MESKEE

XFFER

e discussing with the management of the Company
and the Valuer about the key assumptions used in
forming the CGU's value-in-use calculation including
the cash flow projections and discount rates used
and evaluating the relevance and reasonableness
of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

o E“TaﬁF&ﬁﬁ%J RIS ELE
Rz AEES %%%M%%F“‘@%ﬁim
ERANAMARE R WERERMABEBENITE
TR ERARRROBEBRIERSIEL &

e assessing the competency and experience of the
Valuer.

o FHABERMENRER-
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREESER

BANFTNAHBARE S HETEE

Impairment assessment of receivables and
provision of guarantee losses

FEWRRERENERERERRE

Referring to notes 4, 8, 25, 26, 27 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group had recognised
impairment losses, net of reversal, on loans and
interest receivables, trade and other receivables, other
deposits and provision for financial guarantees of
HK$113,594,000, HK$28,626,000, HK$9,337,000 and
HK$122,544,000 respectively.

2B E-_T_TF+_A=1+T—BHLEFEZHFE
s mAM TS -8-25-26-27K32 BEEHERE
RIEWE A B~ B U BR 51 Ko H A & e kI8 - HoAtb
Bz REEBR (RELD) RBEZERE®S A
113,594,000/ JT + 28,626,000/% 7T * 9,337,000/% 7T &
122,544,000/ 7T °

Impairment assessment of receivables and provision
of guarantee losses is a key area due to the level of
judgement exercised by the management in determining
the amount of allowance and provisions.

HREEEEETRENEGRSNERRFTRZEAR
% H i - WMWK IR E R i R R RE R RS T

FHS o

The balances of impairment allowance for the
receivables and provision of guarantee losses represent
the management'’s best estimates of expected credit
losses (“ECL") at the reporting date under the expected
credit loss models.

JEW R IB R ER B N EREIBEENERDERER
BEEREEFER(AHEEEBEREARKRE R Y
HEBMEEBBENREMET-

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BPREEZEEMKRNNEERFBHE:

e assessing the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls from approval to recording
and monitoring of receivables and financial
guarantees issued, the credit assessment process,
the identification and timeliness of identifying
impairment indicators, continuous re-assessment
of the appropriateness of assumptions used in the
collective assessment model and the management's
specific provisions for individual receivables and
guarantee losses;

o FMABURERDEHMERRNBHRIIARR
BB IRE BRI R EER - EER
A2 BB R B8 5l S BB 2y - AR BB AP (R AR =X
FABRREEMNHEENTHLEEERER
FEU R IR S R REIESHR S E B

e comparing the total balances of the receivables
list and guarantee list, which contain information
used by management to assess impairment losses
for loans and interest receivables and provisions
for guarantee losses, with the general ledger
and comparing individual loans and guarantees
information, on a sample basis, with the underlying
loan and guarantee agreements and other related
documentation to assess the presentation of the
information in the due diligence report, risk control
report and the loan list and guarantee list;

o UHEEERNRIMERERLAERMEEER
BEREEEBNEURESRIERSKRARER
AR SN — B AWM AL ERE
PIERMBEREH EYEE R R ERGEMNEM
MR — B A ERBRAETRE  BEER
EMERRLERSERAERNTIRISRN
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RREESER

BT NAHBAREN S HETEE

Impairment assessment of receivables and
provision of guarantee losses (Continued)

FEWSCERENGRERBERE (&)

The measurement models of ECL involves significant
management judgements and assumptions, primarily
including the following:
EHREEEENAEREAAEEEELEXRAE KR
®ROEFEBEUATRIEA:

— Criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk, or a default or
impairment loss was incurred;

ETEERREEEZEM

A A

FREHELEEON

— Economic indicators for
measurement, and applicable
and weightings.
ARAEUETENREESR UKER
K e -

forward-looking
economic scenarios

QiR I B2
KEER

We have identified management’'s impairment
assessments of the ECL of receivables and provision
of guarantee as a key audit matter because of the
significant amounts of the receivables and provision
for financial guarantees to the financial position of
the Group and the management judgement and
assumption.

BB EREHEWRIBEREEBBNRERN G X
EREBEGAN A —HBARETFE EhAEY EF
EHfBERAME BRFBELRBREERBEM S
HEAAZEZEREELHE RRFZ-

e evaluating and assessing the consistency and
reasonableness of assumptions adopted in
management’s calculation of impairment losses
for receivables and provisions for guarantee losses
by critically assessing input parameters involving
subjective judgement, seeking corroborative
evidence from external sources and comparing
historical losses against the Group's other internal
records and prior year records. We also assessed
the emergence period by tracing the life-cycle of
overdue accounts from the specific credit events
to downgrading the accounts to non-performing
receivables and guarantees;

e FMEEEEERUFBERERSEREREBER
ERAAARKH —BMEREEE AXAEHEN
MR EFBAGOB A2 FRINBEE - W
ikl BEXEEHMAPRER E—FEH
RERETEH T - BN BPIRBRMB RS REH
FEEAFEHHLIKERERSTREWRFKIAM
ERODBH KGO

e reviewing ageing analysis of the receivables
prepared by management of the Company and
discussing with the management of the Company
whether the amounts are recoverable on a sample
basis;

s RMEEAEFHR
ZBRER AT - I B
A AL

B R EE IR E iR B e Wk IR
BERREEENRAERER
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREESER

BANFTNAHBARE S HETEE

Impairment assessment of receivables and
provision of guarantee losses (Continued)

FEWSCERENGRERBERE (#)

e examining the management’s estimation on
the ECL of individual balances on sample basis
and the expected loss rate of each category
groups and evaluating the basis and factors
used in the estimation to the appropriateness of
the management’s identification of significant
increase in credit risk, defaults and credit impaired
receivables;

s KRMEEAERSEREUEMNGRETHEBRE
EBEBRMAAALRSRARNNEREIEX ST E
Lt P ERNEERE R UFEEEEHEE

2 B R 23 00 5B 4 I R BRAE ERUE Y B MR IR
EY BRI B 1R 2

e recalculating the amount of impairment losses for
receivables and provisions for guarantee losses; and

s ENFERUFIEREBEMEREEREGSR:
M

e checking subsequent settlements of receivables and
guarantees on a sample basis.

s MEREBUFIBARERNERE

/rA—EE

Purchase price allocation of a business combination

EBEHZBEEIE

Referring to note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
completed the acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group for the
aggregate purchase consideration was HK$360,000,000
by issuance of convertible notes and ordinary shares on
31 July 2020 (“Completion Date”). The fair value of the
identifiable net assets of Xin Yunlian Group amounted
to HK$122,652,000 and the fair value consideration
of HK$321,283,000 on the Completion Date, with
goodwill of HK$326,582,000 recognised from the
acquisition.

SHEREMBMEMIAI R _FFLtA=+T—
BTEXBEH]) ARFA—HE2EMNBRABEEE
TR EENEBR K KENEBMEE  BBE
1B 73360,000,000/8 70 5T H 81 - $T 2Rt SR B &Y
AR E EFE A TFEAR122,652,0008 7T A FER
{B73321,283,0008 T R AWBEHMERDEOR
326,582,000/ 7T ©

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

HARREZFEMRBNTIERFEHE:

o evaluating the valuation methodologies and
assumptions adopted by the external valuer in
the purchase price allocation by (i) examining
the terms of the relevant agreements; (ii)
assessing the valuation methodologies adopted
for the purpose of determining the fair values
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed; (iii) assessing the assumptions used
in the discounted cash flow projections; and
(iv) benchmarking the key parameters, such as
discount rate and interest rate, against market
data;

. 3B () 1 AT B R W a mO GRS (i) AT AR R EE E PR
H&E%T@*%Uéﬁ?&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ*%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁE’Méﬁ?ﬁ‘
V£ 5 (i) AT TERI AT IR 3R € R P AR VR R 0 K (iv)
KE2EE (MITRE LX) B 5 BIRET

HELE FHEIEEEMRBEE SRR
ZWE’J%TEHH&ME““ '
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RREESER

BT NAHBAREN S HETEE

Purchase price allocation of a business combination
(Continued)

EBREHBEEIE (&)

The Group engaged an independent external valuer
to perform the purchase price allocation on the fair
values of the purchase consideration, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the business
combination. The purchase price allocation is significant
to our audit due to (i) significant judgement involved
in the identification of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed; and (ii) the determination of the fair values
of the purchase consideration, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed is dependent on
a number of estimates, including, among others,
estimated future cash flows, discount rate and interest
rate.

AEEBZR-ZBIIINMEEMEBERESIEEE
BeaHTBEREZATE FKEAEREE KM
AENBE- BEEIRERMOBEFMEBEKN
ThE TR () B nll P s B & 2 R P BB R K
MINEETBEREBEZRFE PRKERHREE NPT
AEEABEIURNZIAME 81 (HP 81 M RK

BERE HRERNX.

o considering the independence, objectivity and
competence of the external valuer engaged by
management; and

. ZRERBMERERNIISEEMNBLIME &
BMELREE: &

o assessing the adequacy of disclosures in
connection with the business combination.

. AR A RBENTEIE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

H At & #t

BERRAEFAHAMEHNAT -HMEH B
?Uﬁ)%if‘#&ﬁtlﬁﬁ’]éfﬂ BEREIELEL TS

WR LBV BEN RS o
BHHEEMBERENBERL TREEME
£t ﬁff‘ﬁﬁ?%ﬁuxﬁ/\ﬂﬂ REREMEAN
BB e

EaRMEREMBERRNET RANEE
EHEEMER  EIERET EEEMER
ELRESAVBEBRABRMERTBREPAHN
THROBRAGFEEREBREUTFFEEAXN

E R R B - ER T PIT HITH TAE - 40

%ﬁiﬁf BEMiﬁﬂﬁEéﬁﬁ%%ﬂ%%ﬁ'ﬁﬁ
FEREZFE-EESE BRIVRB TR

=)

VAR B WL S R R A

EEN
1T

i

BERREFARARBETEGTA RS HAM
B (BAMBHREEL]) &E/a (R aEB
MRBEZREEEEMRENGRAMBERE
T BERREZFARRESREMBERERDN
BRETFEHRNRGFRERMEBNEKNE
AR FTE R REREHIR & -

ERBEFEMBERRE ESRENE 8%
BFELENEE ) YHEERBER THRE RS
%““%«MEF’QE‘J%IE ARERGEEE RS
BoFRIF BERAREFAER BEXEEER

IF e IR BEAMERNBERTER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence, that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

38 3 B BT R S

ZHBAD LB R 4R B M IS R AT
M E 1T

BMNBER EHGRAMBHRREEBRES T
T BP0 BRRF S8l AR T G B A B K 88 SRRt
REEEARE YRR (BREQRER) £90
fFRREEREBEREARERMERLD
BB RS o BR UL IASN - AT S AR A {E
Ht Ak e RPIAL T AHRE 2 AR M HE
i AT AEEAEEREREANES - SER
EREKENREZ BETRRIBER(BESR
AR EITHER EX - ERERRALT
FERS AR REZE IR o SR R BR AL A] LA AR HREF Sk #E BR 5
B RAERMEMEBRERLRAER
ERAVBRREMERBEZSTHEE M BR
RATYE L VDR TE - BRI B HO 88 3R BR L 7T 4%
BIEEK-

ERE (BAEEL) ETHEBARS
BFERTERHE RETHEXRREE-
ZAPI IR -

o BRIMFAERNMFFABERMEBZRAY
BRERGFESERBREAENRR R R
MITETIEF A RE G LA - A R
FRMEBEENENRE FARAZED
AR -mRNEFARINER BE BR
B ERRM - OB R ARG 2 £
PRIt R BE 3 30 R HRRF T B B B K84 R IR
ARERSNAEERNERMERNE
R B8 AR BR st ) LB

o TRREERGHEBMANIMES  URFTEE

MBS REF EENLIFE SEBAR
EHNEREERER -

o HMEEEHMRASERNREERER
SR AR MEERENSIEE-

RAESHMERBRIF | — T _ZTFFRH

75



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RBERE

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

YIP YUEN NGA

Practising Certificate Number: P05908
Hong Kong

30 March 2021

s HEERARKERKLSHERNBEEE
hEm - RIBEMEDRNETBRE BER
BFERESHENBERNEENERTEES
KmAEEHY SEEENFELLEED
ELEEARBE -MRAMBA/AFEEKRDT
FEE M BB 6 BB R E T IRRE
AEIRGAVBEBRRTNEBERE R
FREENRETR RIRFMESERIFE
REBEBR -HANEREERNZEERS
HIEFTEGEETBRE AT KRKFERE
HIERAREES EEBTREFELE-

s FEFAMBHMRNERINH®IN BB
MAR BREREBEE UANGEEHBHRRE
BHAERBRBBRRIZMER-

e B EXEERNERBIXBEDNVHBKER
ERMRR BENETERE NEKEAH
BHREBERER-RMEE BEEERFG
BT BB B MBMIT M AER B R A
EREEE-

BREMEIRIN R ERR T ENE
AEE KR EARAEERS BN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meRakEMEEKSER

T_TFE+_HA=1T—HLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

2020 2019
—EBE-BF _—ZTNF
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
B RE FE T FET
Revenue WA 5 392,320 151,005
Cost of sales 3 & AR (279,008) (62,402)
Gross profit E 7 113,312 88,603
Other income, gains and losses E A - Was e 18 7 37,544 63,476
Administrative and other operating ITER R A& LR
expenses (126,060) (141,642)
Share-based payment expenses AR AT RRIE R XX (13)
Provision for financial guarantees R E IR 32 (122,544) (84,120)
Impairment loss, net of reversal BRI - kR M 8 (147,323) (18,384)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEZREEE 18 (32,722) (111,257)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BILEE ZREFE 19 (1,618) (5,722)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEE CREEIE 17 (7,607) =
Finance costs B 7% A AR 9 (14,226) (8,232)
Loss before taxation BRTLAIE 1R (301,257) (217,278)
Income tax (expense) credit FTigft (X)) % 10 (21,021) 10,883
Loss for the year FRER 11 (322,278) (206,395)
Other comprehensive income H2HEWA (BX) > MIBRBIE
(expense), net of tax
Item that will not be reclassified BT B D EEEmA
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Change in fair value of financial BEAFEFAHEMEZAREZ
assets at fair value through TREEATEZE
other comprehensive income 22 4,353 (1,961)
Item that may be reclassified HEAfEEH D EE B mmIEE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation EMmEBEBANINEBMEERN
of operations outside Hong Kong PEW =% 36,482 (5,797)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKA (%)
(expense) for the year 40,835 (7,758)
Total comprehensive expense FR2MAZARHE
for the year (281,443) (214,153)
(Loss) profit for the year LTATEEER (BE)ER:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABRHE A (335,628) (206,395)
Non-controlling interests IR = 13,350 -
(322,278) (206,395)
RPESRIERERAT | —ZT_TFFW
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEBRakEtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—BIBF _—ZT-NF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FET
Total comprehensive income (expense) AT AT EEFAZEUBA
for the year attributable to: (BX) 4%
Owners of the Company KABHEE A (307,619) (214,153)
Non-controlling interests IR S 26,176 =
(281,443) (214,153)
HK cents HK cents
B 7L
Loss per share BREE 15
Basic BN (4.61) (2.98)
Diluted e (4.61) (2.98)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

%?_A

BA ISR L 2R

At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF+-_F=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEHF T —NF
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
M st FET FAETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz B RRE 16 83,235 86,351
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 22,515 43,075
Goodwill (RS 18 326,582 32,722
Intangible assets mLAE 19 500 2,277
Interests in associates NN oL v ey 21 - S
Financial assets at fair value through  #ZAFEFH A E M2 E U
other comprehensive income TREE 22 11,175 6,369
Financial assets at fair value through & AFEFAEBZENERMEE
profit or loss 23 26,309 28,664
Deferred tax assets BT IBE E 36 17,402 22,555
Deposits Re 27 255 3,505
487,973 225,518
Current assets REEE
Loans and interest receivables JEWE R B 25 359,938 152,449
Trade and other receivables YRR Ziiiﬁﬁf‘ﬂ& 26 52,297 24,895
Prepayments and deposits TR FRIARIE® 27 72,496 81,487
Loans and interest receivables to FEM —IEFEIE IR 2 BRI F B
a non-controlling interest 44 56,550 -
Loans and interest receivables to W —EEsE AR 2 BERRFE
an associate 44 7,562 -
Financial assets at fair value through AT EF ABEZNEREE
profit or loss 23 35,583 1,596
Contingent consideration receivable — FEURSKAK(E 24 - 39,136
Tax receivables JE U 7R T8 9 517
Cash held on behalf of clients REFFENE: 28 1,015 843
Restricted bank deposits R HIERITE 29 117,430 54,056
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBELFEY 30 90,241 205,530
793,121 560,509
Assets classified as held for sale DEABELENEE 40 5,563 -
798,684 560,509
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables, other payables, FEATRR TR - EoAth JE AT FRIE -
deposits received and accruals B ER e kETE R 31 169,664 133,564
Contract liabilities BHEE 141 52
Lease liabilities HEAE 35 7,922 14,536
Liabilities from financial guarantees RMEEREE 32 231,294 94,594
Amount due to non-controlling JE I IE PR AR 2 R 1A
interests 44 9,975 -
Deferred consideration EERE 33 - 5,853
Borrowings Ft% 34 73,046 11,186
Tax payables JE TR IR 6,588 100
498,630 259,885
Liabilities associated with assets HOEARIELENEE
classified as held for sale BEAMNEE 40 4,461 =
503,091 259,885
Net current assets RBEEFE 295,593 300,624
Total assets less current liabilities #EERRBAS 783,566 526,142

RPESHERARAF |
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

S A L3
RE MR R
At 31 December 2020 W_Z_Z&F+_-_H=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EFE —T-NF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(=2 FHET FAET
Non-current liabilities FRBAMS
Lease liabilities HERE 35 55 7,289
Borrowings BE 34 59,380 67,116
Convertible notes RRER 37 161,707 -
221,142 74,405
Net assets EEFE 562,424 451,737
Capital and reserve BERR B
Share capital AR 38 7,775 6,924
Reserves Gk 340,902 444,813
Equity attributable to owners of RAGIHER ARIEER
the Company 348,677 451,737
Non-controlling interests FEVERR 213,747 -
Total equity RERBET 562,424 451,737

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 258 were R E77E E258H Y A MBRE K ES
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on eN_E-—F=-F=+H#tERERERT

30 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: YHEREERE:
Mr. Liu Kequan Mr. Yang Dayong
ARREE BRERXE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BE BE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial — BEMIBI s BZEMEHRER 2 — 3D °
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAEL
Share  Convertible Non-
Share Share option  notesequity  Translation  Revaluation Statutory  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
TEREE
e RABE  BRERE ERRE ERGE Efifit EERE iR Mt FERER @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FiEn AL TET TEL TAL AL TAL TEL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-N5-F-H 6,915 1,966,768 40,509 - (38,380) (144,452) 8,586 (1,175,719 664,227 - 664,227
Loss for the year FABR - - - - - - - (206,395) (206,395) - (206,395)
Other comprehensive expense Ep2ERX
- Change i financial assets at -RATEFALZERE
fair value through other LEREERY
comprehensive income - - - - - (1,961) - - (1,91) - (1,961)
- Exchange differences on -EREERIMNREK
translation of operations MEENELZE
outside Hong Kong - - - - (5,797) - - - (5,797) - (5,797)
Total comprehensive expense ENZERYER
for the year - - - - (5,797) (1,961) - (206,395) (214,153) - (214,153)
Issue of shares upon exercise of  RTREREREHTRG
share options 9 2443 (789) - - - - - 1,663 - 1,663
Share options lapsed during the year 7B % &R 2 - S (912) - - - - 912 - - -
Release of revaluation reserve upon 1 ER AT A
disposal of financial asset at B2 ENE eREER
fair value through other BEEfREE
comprehensive income - - - - - 9% - (95) = = =
At 31 December 2019 R=E-NE+-R=t-H 6,924 1,969,211 38,808 - (44.177) (146,318) 8,586 (1,381,297) 451,737 - 451,737
Loss for the year FABR - - - - - - - (335,628) (335,628) 13,350 (322,278)
Other comprehensive expense Ef2ERY
- Change i financial assets at -RATEF AL ZERE
fair value through other LEREERY
comprehensive income - - - - - 4353 - - 4353 - 4353
- Exchange differences on -EREERNIMREK
translation of operations MEENELZE
outside Hong Kong - - - - 23,656 - - - 23,656 12,826 36,482
Total comprehensive expense ENZERYER
for the year - - - - 23,656 4353 - (335,628) (307,619) 26,176 (281,443)
Recognition of non-controling ERRENELRNELEN
interest arising on acquisition FRRER
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 187,571 187,571
Issue of shares upon acquisition of MR B2 BB BT {
subsidiaries 850 150,004 = o o o = S 150,854 o 150,854
Issue of convertible notes on RUERR A AR ETTRR
acquisition of subsidiaries 28 - - - 53,452 - - - - 53,452 - 53,452
Recognition of equity-settled AHREEERAZAHE
share-based payment expenses X = - 13 - - - - - 13 - 13
Issue of shares upon exercise of ~ R{TERREBHARH
share options 1 352 (113) - - - - - 240 - 240
Share options lapsed during the year B kMR E - o (1,046) - - - - 1,046 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTETHE - - - - = S 704 (704) = S =
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-FE+ZA=1-R 7,775 2,119,567 37,662 53,452 (20,521) (141,965) 9,290 (1,716,583 348,677 213,747 562,424
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\éiﬁrﬁiiﬁa%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-EFE —T-NF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(=2 FET FHET
Operating activities RETR
Loss before taxation B AT E 1R (301,257) (217,278)
Adjustments for: M TFNIEEEL 2 FAE
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 19 255 1,113
Consultancy fee expenses BHEMX 38(a) 4,446 -
Depreciation of property, plant and WE BERRETE
equipment 16 11,215 11,494
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 17 15,112 12,971
Fair value change on: BEATFEES:
Contingent consideration receivables FEW S ARAE 7,24 (495) (34,602)
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABER
profit or loss TRIEE 7 (7,052) (682)
Interest income ISR N (22,138) (15,693)
Realised loss on financial assets RO EF ABRD
at fair value through profit or loss TRMEECLEEREBE 7 579 -
Share-based payment expenses AR 9 2 A ;R I A 2 13 -
Provision for financial guarantees & EREE 32 122,544 84,120
Investment income REWA 7 (130) (321)
Impairment loss on amounts due JE W —FEHk & AR RIE 2
from an associate BIEEE 7 - 10
Impairment loss, net of reversal REEE (FkR#ER) 8 147,323 18,384
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE 18 32,722 111,257
Impairment loss on intangible assets BICEERMEER 19 1,618 5,722
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEERESE 17 7,607 -~
Finance costs LUR IO 9 14,226 8,232
Net foreign exchange (gain) loss [N (e ) B BFRE 7 (32) 27
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ T -ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-BE —ET-hHF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHET FHET
Operating cash flows before movements LEEEHAMN
in working capital KEHSRE 26,556 (15,246)
Increase in trade and other receivables JE ST B 5k Kz L i B KUK
30 (32,049) (6,878)
Increase in loans and interest receivables B U F) B 42 00 (128,271) (46,354)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments and AR IR KR 2R
deposits () 10,891 (17,535)
Decrease in loans and interest receivables to I*H&-—IﬁiET g Tl
a non-controlling interest B3 B 6,795 -
Decrease in loans and interest receivables to & Ux — 1B & A 7 2
an associate EREFERD 14,825 S
Increase in trade payables, other payables, — FE{BE 7K - E b fE 4 ZIE
deposits received and accruals EH&T&@&E@?J%F@P DD 10,065 52,810
(Increase) decrease in cash held REFPHEAZHE® (M)
on behalf of clients 5)@?9\ (172) 420
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities BB EEmCRD) 89 (43)
Increase in amounts due from associates EH&Z%’P%’A FRIFIEHN - (10)
Decrease in liabilities from financial guarantee B & E R & ER L (50) (653)
Increase in restricted bank deposits X PRl $R17 77 BE h0 (57,625) (52,709)
Cash used in operations KEEBFTRA RS (148,946) (86,198)
Interest paid B FLE (6,212) (5,599)
Income tax paid BTSN (101) (679)
Income tax refunded FriEHi iR [ 512 126
Net cash used in operating activities KEEEBFFACE ST (154,747) (92,350)
Investing activities REED
Interest received AP 5,090 12,026
Purchase of property, plant and equipment & E ¥ % - BE K& E 16 (39) (87)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ~ H&Z A FE AEHAM
at fair value through other THKRZEMEE
comprehensive income FT1S 518 22 — 7,498
Proceeds from redemption of financial B [B1% “:FTEE#J\TE@
assets at fair value through profit or loss 2 EREESEIE 23 11,675 47,967
Proceeds from sales and redemption of HE RERIRE
investments Fri5 508 130 321
Proceeds from compensation of g JEHQYWWHE
contingent consideration receivable FT 15 318 24 33,631 -
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition of WHENBRARIEELZ
subsidiaries WEMAFHE 39 31,912 -
Settlement of deferred consideration TRRERE 33 = (11,848)
Net cash generated from RETEMERESFH
investing activities 82,399 55,877
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—EB-EF — N4
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHET FHTT
Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from borrowings BEMENIEAE 49 125,210 -
Repayment of borrowings BEBE 49 (158,446) (8,512)
Proceeds from exercise of share options T AR FT 1S BUE 41 240 1,663
Repayment for lease liabilities EREEAE 17, 49 (15,759) (13,359)
Net cash used in financing activities METBMARESERE (48,755) (20,208)
Net decrease in cash and ReRRSEZEYRDFHE
cash equivalents (121,103) (56,681)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HZHBHEE
REZEEY 205,530 269,578
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXREEHHFE 5,875 (7,367)
Cash and cash equivalents R+T=-—A=+—HHEER
at 31 December HEEEY 90,302 205,530
Represented by: Bp :
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAeEFEYD 30 90,241 205,530
Bank balance in assets classified DERFIEHEZ
as held for sale IRITHE R 40 61 =
90,302 205,530
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the
Company's registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and its principal
place of business in Hong Kong is Suites 3001-11, Tower
Two, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding,
industrial property development, general trading of
consumable goods, securities brokerage, insurance
brokerage, asset management and loan financing operation
including loan financing, financial guarantee services, loan
referral and consultancy services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company. In addition, the functional currencies of
certain group entities that operate outside Hong Kong are
determined based on the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the group entities operate.

1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. [ER BB B HEER ([ F

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS IR E R ) MERTA
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued) (&)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective REFERHERNERMBRSEINDN
for the current year (Continued) CHENE D

2.1 Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS 16 2.1 IERIEAE B EHEERNE 165 (&

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time
in the current year. The amendment introduces a new
practical expedient for lessees to elect not to assess
whether a Covid-19-related rent concession is a lease
modification. The practical expedient only applies to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 that meets all of the following conditions:

FTA) Covid-1976 657 2 5 % £ 57 &

AEBCRAFEERERAZERT -
ZIER] RAEABASIETHMAIITHER
77 A fE E A& # A 54 Covid-1948 78
HeERert A —BEEER %A
TTREDEEBERRMENRTHAE K
{4 Covid-19E I E £ M TH SRR -

e the change in lease payments results in revised s MENKEHEHMMEENLE
consideration for the lease that is substantially the FIRERZREZH 2 AMNEER

same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021,
and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and

BEAERMERZKE:

s MENRWNEMRIEFERAN
R-ZBZ—FRXA=1+H=HZH
BHEG R

s HEMEMERALGHLEEY

conditions of the lease. M) -
A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts ERRTHREHEKHEREZZEHH
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent MERNFE B BRE) A AR AR —
concessions the same way it would account for the AR ERE NGRS EAE 1658
changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes were HEMNEHAR(WEBWIFHAEE

not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period
in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the
opening retained profits at 1 January 2020. The Group
has benefited from 0.2 months waiver of lease payments
on several leases in PRC.

) HENFNRERAHRRRART
tEREHEN K- HEEEREESH
BARRERHE RO SR W&
EHBRENPAERDT EBIAER
o

ERZETAREH _T_FTF— A
—HNFENRBERENELZE KK
BRsX AT ES THEN.2MEA
HEMREHR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. J,fﬁ ERAEHRELEL ([FH
A

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B BWmEEL]]) BRI R
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued) (%;‘a‘l)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet EEMME R ARER 2T REETE B
effective 85 A
The Group has not early applied the following new and REBN AR ATERA T 5 2 2840w AR A&
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not W2 FE] RAESMERT BB B T S 42 A -
yet effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and EBUBRELNFI7H RREOK
the related Amendments' BBl
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual EAPBRELREIRN  HSELMRL
Framework? EREN
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform BEMBRELRFENE MEREENRE
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 — Phase 2* BB G ERIE395% —E BB
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 BERMBREERETR
BB RE LS5
REBHBREER
F165ANETA
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of BB BRELERE1057 Txﬁ%éﬁi,ﬁﬂé‘“é
and HKAS 28 Assets between an KBS ERIFE28% NEIHEE
Investor and its Associate BB ETA rEIRLE
or Joint Venture3 ST AEES
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities BEREFERFE IR BESERARD
as Current or Non-current EREN KIERE A K
and related amendments to E%Eﬁ%%’%ﬁ
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (ZZE=FF)
(2020)" =11
Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment BER S ERNE165H ME BER
— Proceeds before Intended CHEN T —BER
Use? AIFT{S /TJXIEZ
Amendments to HKFRS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of ERNBRELEDEIIHRN EEAHN-EIT
Fulfilling a Contract? BETAR B HEKA?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to BRMBRELEL BAEVBERE
HKFRSs 2018-20202 BETR ER TN\
i S 35
B F U
' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ' RZEZ=F A B EBRBIFE
2023. HAR Ao
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RIZEZZF-A—ARZERARZEE
2022. HAFE A R o
3 Effective date to be determined. PORSERBAER-
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ¢ RIEBEZ—F-A—HIZERABZFE
2021. HAR Ak e
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application RARERTBHEAZEAT LKL 1‘5‘;%?
of these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no BB RELERR] RERE TS HEES
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in MR EKNERTE -

the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are account for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable input is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equal the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED A BERRREEENSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and
entities (including structured entities) controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

¢ has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group is an investor of a fund in which the Group
also acts as a fund manager, the Group will determine
whether it is a principal or an agent for the purpose of
assessing whether the Group controls the relevant fund.

An agent is a party primarily engaged to act on behalf and
for the benefit of another party or parties (the principal(s))
and therefore does not control the investee when it exercises
its decision-making authority. In determining whether the
Group is an agent to the fund, the Group would assess:

e the scope of its decision-making authority over the
investee;

e the rights held by other parties;

e the remuneration to which it is entitled in accordance
with the remuneration agreements; and

e the decision maker's exposure to variability of returns
from other interests that it holds in the investee.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amounts of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary, that is reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to
apply an optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The concentration test is met if substantially all of
the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a
single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test
is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be
a business and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at
the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %ﬁéﬁ?ﬁ“#&i\%iﬁ REENE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair value of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued
in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZE—

3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ending within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured at
the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date, that is the
date when the Group obtains control, and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operation policy decisions of the investee
but is not control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Change in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligation or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

3.

RPESRMERERAF

HAMBHRARRNEERE
S ETICR ()

EREFHHE (&)
RBERFIHRE (1)

BMERRzREREENABRERS
AOEFIAU FR A M |REK - RIFHERE -
REE QRN BE VT ER A MBI R
BAATER WNH R R AR E RS
ZEE ARz B R E M2 s T E
HE-BEARBEEFE(BRakEta
HR RN EB AT IR BRIFA
EHEYAKE T RARERLRE -
EAKERIG—RABEARERBL AR
BE R B 2~ 2 i (BREAER
EERASEREEQRREFEELHE
DZEBER) ARESRIEERERE
MZE—FER- BEAKEEL LTS
HEREEIRRZBERNNRE T e
HERERINETE

R—HEBE R R NRE R ERE RRIK S
—EBERR B UEREAKR-E
WHENEE AR RER  REXANEL
AEENERRERFRAIBRIEEN ARG
NFEFREIHBOEERASEHE LA
B ZEEET - REHAGHR AE
BRI BRI EEMBEZAFERER
HIREARZ B 5 Bl R B E 2 5
Bz Bash fERR -

—ETFFR

99



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

100

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On the disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on the disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating unit in which the Group monitors goodwill).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described in “Investments in associates”
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary
after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion
of the investment that will be disposed of is classified as held
for sale when the criteria described above are met, and the
Group discontinues the use of the equity method in relation
to the portion that is classified as held for sale from the
time when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell which continue to be
measured in accordance with the accounting policies as set
out in respective sections.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, that is when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives or consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, that is only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

106

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satistaction of a performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group's performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly with
the value of the Group’s performance completed to date, the
Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the Group
has the right to invoice.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature
of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal)
or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by
the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
improvements, buildings, warehouse held for provision of
storage services, furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor
vehicles that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purpose. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual value over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

108

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Right-of use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other than
adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related
rent concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

3. AR ARRELENS

ZETEUR (#)

EREFHHE (&)

HE (&)

A EEEBEBA ()
EREEE
EREEENKRARE:

s HEABWIATESHE:

o M BE B AL EAEEN
FoOREREREERE:

o AEEEAMNEMMBERKRA: &

o AEBRFMEMBEBEE ER
HEAEEMESHAEREREES
& B 5R SR B AG A P A5 TE B IR0 Th 22
ERRAER BRIFRSAAREE
FEREL-

FREEERRAGE RETMI
ENREEBER IHHEEEENTRNE
HEREAR - HASERARITERS
EHICovid- 19t @R ELNEER
BRI -

BN B A TR T E £ TH B E m S ERS AE
HEBENMAER ERAREEBRKA
HERERAFRRTE-BR - EREE
EREGAAIERFHRER (ABREE
REE) RIERORTIRITE -

AEBESEMBRNRPBEREEE
EREBNEB 25 -

RPESBMERBRLQF | —T-_FTFFH 109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED %ﬁéﬂ?ﬁ“#&i\%”m REENE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or a change
in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZE—
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Covid-19-related rent concessions (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at amounts
equal to net investments in the leases, measured using the
interest rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct
costs (other than those incurred by manufacturer or dealer
lessors) are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

114

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, not with reference to the underlying asset.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise,except for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur, therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation,
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income
and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group's interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group, that is Hong Kong dollars, using the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation, that is a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset, all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals, that is partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control, the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of
the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED %ﬁéﬂ?ﬁ“#&i\%”m REENE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indication that they may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED %ﬁéﬂ?ﬁ“#&i\%”m REENE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require the delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by
discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. & A B RGREENL S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Group recognises interest income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The
calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the
credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED %ﬁéﬂ?ﬁ“#&i\%iﬁ REENE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT SETEUR (5)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) BERESHHE (&)
Financial assets (Continued) eEEE (&)

EHEERN S EMA KT E (B)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

ERANFEFARMEZEKE 2R

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (i) 8

At the date of initial recognition, the Group may make
an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as
at FVTOCI.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
Revaluation Reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “Other income,
gains and losses” line item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZE—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

124

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group applies the ECL model to the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
loans and interest receivables, deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables); and

— financial guarantee contracts issued.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, other receivables, deposit paid and loans and
interest receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/or
collectively with internal credit ratings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZE—

TE_TF+_A=T—HLEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, for example, a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
365 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over 2 years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets write-off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default, that is the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default, and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables,
other receivables, deposit paid and loans and interest
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZE—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

130

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the Revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, deferred
consideration, trade payables and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes

The component parts of convertible notes issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. When the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible notes, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate), a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of
a financial liability with substantially different terms as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the financial
difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (Continued)

The Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain
or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification
is considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial liabilities” original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying
amount of the modified financial liabilities and are amortised
over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying
amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss
at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain
financial asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not
separated. The entire hybrid contract is classified and
subsequently measured in its entirety as either amortised cost
or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that
are not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single
instrument that are separated from the host contracts are
treated as a single compound embedded derivative unless
those derivatives relate to different risk exposures and are
readily separable and independent of each other.

Guarantees [ssued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer, that
is the guarantor, to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a guarantee, the contracted fee
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within liabilities from guarantees. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The guarantee issued and not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is initially recognised at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to guarantees
issued.

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract and recognises a provision when ECLs
on the financial guarantees are determined to be higher than
the amount carried in “liabilities from financial guarantees”
in respect of the guarantees.

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is
measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZE—
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Guarantees issued (Continued)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (Continued)

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax, as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

138

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Current and Deferred taxation for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

(i) Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(i) Share options granted to employees (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revised its
estimates of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
option reserve transferred to retained profits.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred
to share capital and share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

(i) Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the
goods or the counterparty renders the service. The fair
values of the goods or services received are recognised
as expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE
4= AN

HEVBRARBEEERE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vija person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personal services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, where
necessary, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on
hand, deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Classification for warehouse for provision of storage services

The Group determines whether the warehouse in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") should be classified
as property, plant and equipment or an investment property.
The warehouse is used to generate warehouse storage
income that comprises warehouse rentals and income
from the supply of warehouse logistics services. In making
its judgement, the directors of the Company considered
that income and cash flows from warehouse rentals and
warehouse logistics services are interdependent and cannot
be separated. In addition, the directors of the Company
determined that the provision of warehouse logistics services
is significant to the warehouse storage operation as a whole.
For these reasons, the directors of the Company considered
that the warehouse is classified as property, plant and
equipment in accordance with HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises the property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets with
a finite useful life over their estimated useful life and after
taking into account of their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful life reflects
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets with a finite useful life. The residual
values reflect the directors’ estimated amount that the Group
would currently obtain from the disposal of the assets, after
deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were
already of the age and in the condition expected at the end
of their useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment mainly represents the
Group’s warehouse property. Property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment other than warehouse
is determined with reference to the fair value less costs
of disposal of those property, plant, and equipment. The
recoverable amount of warehouse is determined based on a
valuation carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, using the depreciated
replacement cost approach. An impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment other
than the carrying amount of warehouse of HK$79,086,000
(2019: HK$82,650,000), is HK$4,149,000 (2019:
HK$3,701,000).

Right-of-use assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference to the fair
value of the right-of-use assets less costs to sell or the future
expected cash flows. An impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. EE ST HE ML ET AR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of right-of-use assets of leasehold
land is determined based on a valuation carried out by an
independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group, using the depreciated replacement cost
approach. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets is
HK$22,515,000 (2019: HK$21,914,000).

The Group performed impairment assessment of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets for
the years ended 31 December 2020, no impairment loss has
been recognised for property, plant and equipment (2019:
Nil) and impairment loss of HK$7,607,000 (2019: HK$Nil) has
been recognised for right-of-use assets.

Provision of ECL

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires significant
judgment and estimation, in particular, the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk and credit-impaired financial
assets as well as the estimation of the amount and timing
of future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses. These estimates are driven by a number
of factors, changes in which can result in different levels
of allowances. At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort
for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also forward-looking analysis. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are set out in note 51(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
When the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2020,
the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$326,582,000 (2019:
HK$32,722,000), net of accumulated impairment losses of
HK$165,772,000 (2019: HK$133,050,000).

Fair values of identifiable intangible assets arising from the
business combination

The acquired identifiable assets and liabilities had to be
measured at their respective fair values as at the date of
acquisition. The difference between the cost of acquisition
and the fair value of the Group’s share of net assets so
acquired should be recognised as goodwill at the end of the
reporting period or recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In order
to determine the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, the directors of the Company had made their
estimates with reference to the valuation results produced by
an independent professional valuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BEE ST HIE ML T TNREBA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of contingent consideration receivables and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — profit
guarantee and incentive payment

The fair value of contingent consideration receivables and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — profit
guarantee and incentive payment arising on the acquisition
of subsidiaries was determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select an appropriate
basis from a variety of methods and makes assumptions,
including the discount rates, estimation of post-acquisition
performance of the acquired subsidiaries and the probability
of meeting their profit targets. They are subsequently re-
measured to fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in assumptions used could materially affect the
fair value of the balances and as a result affect the Group's
financial position and results of operation.

The carrying amount of contingent consideration receivables
as at 31 December 2019 was HK$39,136,000.

The carrying amount of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — profit guarantee and incentive payment as at
31 December 2020 was HK$26,309,000.

Fair value measurement of other financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flow model. The
inputs to this model are taken from observable markets
where possible but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment for intangible assets. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating
unit to which it belongs is estimated to determine impairment
losses on the assets. Changes in facts and circumstances may
result in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication
of impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable
amount, which would affect profit or loss in future years. The
recoverable amounts are reviewed by the management at
least at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 December
2020 was HK$500,000 (2019: HK$2,277,000) after
taking into account the accumulated impairment losses of
HK$7,340,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$5,722,000).

Share-based payments

The Group recognises share-based payments expense on
options granted. Share-based payments expense is based
on the estimated fair value of each option at its grant date,
the estimation of which requires the directors to make
assumptions about future volatility of the Group’s stock
price, future interest rates and the timing with respect to the
exercise of the options. The effects of a change in one or
more of these variables could result in a materially different
fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provision of guarantee losses

The Group makes reasonable estimate on expenses required
to fulfil the relevant obligations of guarantee contracts when
the Group computes the provisions of guarantee losses. Such
estimation is made based on the available information as at
the end of each reporting period and is determined by the
Group's practical experience, default history of the business,
taking into consideration of industry information and market
data. It is possible that the practical experience and default
history is not indicative of future loss on the guarantees
issued. Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect
profit or loss in future years.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes in various jurisdictions. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred taxes

The directors of the Company exercise full control over the
dividend policy of subsidiaries in the PRC. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that
dividends would be declared by the PRC subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group did not provide
additional deferred tax in 2020 related to the unremitted
earnings of the PRC subsidiaries that are subject to
withholding taxes once distributed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

. REVENUE 5. YA
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: AEERFANBASITAT
2020 2019
—E-BF _—TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Sales of goods HEEm 17,517 66,002
Warehouse storage income B EFBA 11,279 13,444
Income from loan financing business EXmEEB WA
— Loan referral and consultancy —BEREN KRB ARKE
services fee 52,974 32,370
— Interest income from loans receivables —ERE R ZHBHA 2,427 2,320
— Guarantee fee income from —REERZERBRA
financial guarantees 302,649 27,730
Income from securities brokerage business & &4 42 5 2 WA
— Interest income from margin financing —RFEHE ZFEBA 6 271
— Commission income from —EHFXHZzHAeRA
securities dealing 60 125
— Commission income from underwriting — Bz AR A 3 9
Commission income from R4 2 A2 WA
insurance brokerage 4,641 8,596
Commission income from asset BEEEEBZASKBA
management 43 138
Advertising income EERKA 721 -
392,320 151,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

The Group's operations are organised into securities
brokerage, asset management, insurance brokerage, loan
financing, industrial property development business and
general trading. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker ("CODM") for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance is
prepared on such basis. The Group is organised into the
following reportable and operating segments:

— Industrial property development segment represents the
operation of a warehouse in the People's Republic of
China (the “PRC").

— General trading segment includes trading of consumable
goods in the PRC.

— Loan financing (I) segment represents the provision of
financial guarantees, loan financing, loan referral and
consultancy services in Hong Kong and Beijing.

— Loan financing (Il) segment represents the provision of
micro-financing, loan referral and consultancy services in
Ningbo.

— Securities brokerage segment represents the operation of
securities brokerage, margin financing, underwriting and
placements in Hong Kong.

— Asset management segment engages in the provision of
asset management services in Hong Kong.

— Insurance brokerage segment represents the provision of
insurance brokerage and agency services in Hong Kong.

— Others represents advertising income and trading of non-
consumable goods in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

i

il

DEHBARRE
AT RAEERA 2 Wm0 5 & 58U A K

ES

= I\

B

BE-ZE-ZEF+ZA=1+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

6. DENER (&

Industrial Loan Loan
property General financing financing Securities Asset Insurance
development trading (1) () brokerage management  brokerage Others Total
IXR
NEBR -REZ  EXEEN) EHEEW) BHEL BEER RBREE Hit st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FER TET FER TET TER TET TR TET
SEGMENT REVENUE 2HRA
Recognised at a point in time RE-REBER - 15,03 35,191 334 63 43 4,61 2,424 57,789
Recognised over time EREEER 11,279 - 302,649 17,449 - - - 721 332,098
Recognised from other source BEMRFDER - - 138 2,289 6 - - - 2433
11,279 15,093 337,978 20,072 69 43 4,641 3,145 392,320
SEGMENT RESULTS AHEE (7,372) (9,451) (201,289) (1,464) (1,434) (1,183) 34 (1,286) (223,445)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZREFE - - (25,955) - - (5,230) (1,537) = (32,722)
Unallocated corporate income ROBEERA 8,883
Unallocated corporate expenses ~ KABEERE (50,179)
Unallocated finance costs FARBBAE (6,250)
Fair value change on contingent ~ EWHAAREZAFELD
consideration receivables 495
Fair value change on financial BREZRATEIIEN
assets at fair value through SREEZATEED
profit or loss 6,974
Share-based payment expenses  HURAX A HERX (13)
Impairment loss on right-of-use ~~ EAREEZHEFRE
assets (5,000)
Loss before taxation REAER (301,257)
Income tax expense FERR% (21,021)
Loss for the year KEEFER (322,278)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_ZTF+-A=+—RHILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. D EBE R (&)
SEPA R ELE ()
BE-T-AE+-—A=t+RALEE

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Industrial Loan
property General financing Securities Asset Insurance
development trading () brokerage management brokerage Total
T%#A
NEER —%85 EHEA() FHEE BEER RRELE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThET FhEr T T FiEn Thn ThT
SEGMENT REVENUE AEHRA
Recognised at a point in time RE-BHERD = 66,002 32,370 134 138 8,59 107,240
Recognised over time R R 13,444 = 27,730 = = = 1,174
Recognised from other source BEMRRE B - - 2320 m - - 2,591
13,444 66,002 62,420 405 138 8,596 151,005
SEGMENT RESULTS PEEE (5,949) 2,872 (82,800) (2,470) (2,983) 267 (91,063)
Impairment loss on goodwil BEREHE - - (108,497) - (2,760) - (111,257)
Unallocated corporate income )i L UN 193
Unallocated corporate expenses FARCERAT (48,135)
Unallocated finance costs RAWEBHKA (2,594)
Fair value change on contingent ERIAREZ A TEE
consideration receivables 34,602
Fair value change on financial assets at BREREATEIGNEREEL
fair value through profit or loss ATEES 986
Impairment loss on amounts due EREERRFERBER
from associates (10)
Loss before taxation BRERIER (217,278)
Income tax credit FisBiEe 10,883
Loss for the year rEEER (206,395)

All of the segment revenues reported above are from external

customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERL (&)

Segment assets and liabilities PTHMEEHEEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and NTRAREEERBERAZHY 2
liabilities by reportable segments. DE)DHT o
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF+ZA=+—8H

Industrial Loan Loan

property General financing financing Securities Asset Insurance

development trading (1) () brokerage management  brokerage Others Total
IXR
NEBR -REZ  EXEEN) EHEEW) BHRE BEER RBREE Hit st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TiEx TET TiEx TET TET TET TET TR TET

ASSETS EE
Segment assets AHEE 104,247 27,703 438,017 293,204 7,592 2,781 4,110 2,090 879,744
Goodwill BE = = - 326,582 - - - - 326,582
Unallocated cash and FARRERALEEN

cash equivalents 7.299
Unallocated property, RARNE BERRE

plant and equipment m
Unallocated other receivables, FAREAMERTE

prepayments and deposits BRERES 4,428
Unallocated financial assets at FABEOFEFALMZE

fair value through other WENEREE

comprehensive income 2,909
Unallocated financial assets at RABEATEFABEN

fair value through profitorloss ~ $REE 59,955
Unallocated assets classified FABABABELENEE

as held for sale 5,563
Consolidated total assets GREELME 1,286,657
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities AHEE 72,637 6,092 370,972 87,099 1,101 - pLE] 2,641 540,791
Unallocated other payables FKABEMERTE 1,898
Unallocated lease liabilities FAEHEEE 5,401
Unallocated amount due to FRABEMFERBEFA

non-controlling interests 9,975
Unallocated convertible notes FABUEREE 161,707
Unallocated liabilities associated =~ HABABEEERBN

with assets classified as held FAREE

for sale 4,461
Consolidated total liabilities RRBEAE 724,233
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZEZZT_TF+_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEFERL (#)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEHREE(E)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—-—NF+_A=+—H
Industrial Loan
property General financing Securities Asset Insurance
development trading () brokerage management brokerage Total
T%#A
NEEE —#E5 EHEA() FHEE EEER RRELE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tix Fin Tin Fin FiEx T T
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEHEE 109,082 37,302 491,156 11,864 2,648 2,835 654,887
Goodwill Gk - - 25,955 - 5230 1,537 32,722
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents KAERERRLEED 4521
Unallocated property, plant and equipment kA E#% - BERRE 2544
Unallocated other receivables, RAREAMENHE BRFERES
prepayments and deposits 4,612
Unallocated right-of-use assets KoE E FREAE 15,257
Unallocated financial assets at fair value RARRATEF AR EYRESN
through other comprehensive income tHEAE 3,684
Unallocated financial assets at fair value FRAREATEF ABRNEBEE
through profit or loss 28,664
Unallocated contingent consideration FOBEUSAARE
receivable 39,136
Consolidated total assets DABERE 786,027
LIABILITIES R
Segment liabilities PHERE 80,389 243 230,208 861 = 27 311,928
Unallocated other payables RAREMENTIE 506
Unallocated deferred consideration RABELES H“ 5,853
Unallocated lease liabilities *oEHE 16,003
Consolidated total liabilities RARERE 334,290
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ T -ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE
6. DEVE Kt ()
BE-Z-ZF+-A=1+—-HLFE

i

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

il

Other information

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Industrial Loan Loan
property General financing  financng  Securities Asset  Insurance
development trading ) () brokerage management brokerage Others  Unallocated Total
I£R
NEBE  -RE5 EFRE() EREE()  BREE EEEE RRER -] E i) Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tén TEx TR TEn TEn TER TER TEn TEn
Information included in segment AR BEE/FBEEN
results/segment assets: -t
Amortisation and depreciation BHRE 8,943 40 4,545 163 4 6 19 M2 12,610 26,582
Bank interest income EGEIEL N © 6] (136) (63) (1) = = (1) (66) (219)
Other loans interest income R ERFISHA - - (13,094) - - - - - = (13,094)
Investment income REWA - - ) (13) = - - = - (130)
Finance costs bEES 4934 4 581 24 - - - 3 6,249 14,226
Fair value change on financial BROTEFABEH
assets at fair value through SREEZNTEEZD
profit or loss - - - (79) - - - - (6,973) (7,052)
Fair value change on contingent ~ ERHARELFELS
consideration receivable - - - - - - - - (495) (495)
Impairment losses (reversal of HEFS (REHESSR)
impairment losses) - 9,339 130,204 1729 @ - - 5 - 14733
Impairment loss on intangible BVEERERR
assets - - 1,618 - - - - - - 1,618
Impairment loss onright-of-use ~ EAREEREHE
assets - 143 2,089 - - - - 375 5,000 7,607
Provision for financial guarantees  BERREME - - 121,453 1,091 - - - - - 122,544
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_ZT-—NFT+_A=1T—HIFE
Industrial Loan
property General financing Securities Asset Insurance
development trading () brokerage management  brokerage  Unallocated Total
I%A
nERR  —RES  ERRA()  EFEE  AEER RRAR RAE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T T T T T T
Information included in segment AP HEE /D HEEN
results/segment assets: EH:
Amortisation and depreciation BHRETE 9,012 - 3,458 72 14 PE] 12,999 25,578
Bank interest income RTFIEMA (35) (43) (317) ) S () t] (413)
Entrusted loans interest income EREZHERA - - (719) - - - - (719
Other loan interest income EEFRMEMA = = (14,561) = = = = (14,561)
Investment income REBA - - (155) - - - (166) (321)
Finance costs B A 5,599 - 39 - - - 2,594 8,232
Fair value change on financial assets AT Ezt ABRE
at fair value through profit orloss ~ £BEEZ A TFELZE - - 304 - - - (986) (682)
Fair value change on contingent B AREATEZE
consideration receivable - - - - - - (34,602) (34,602)
Impairment losses (reversal of HEEE (BEHESE)
impairment losses) - 264 18,128 8) - - - 18,384
Impairment loss on intangible assets & & ERERE - - 5722 - - - = 5722
Provision for financial guarantees ~ BYE 2R E A - - 84,120 - - - = 84,120
APEESREREBRAR | —ZT_ZFFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEFE R (&)

Geographical information

The Group'’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

The Group's revenue from external customers based on the
locations of operations and information about its non-current
assets other than deferred tax assets by geographical location

EER
AEENREERPRKLEERK-
UTAEREBRBEEHR KB INERF

HIRARIREEMAERE DN IERBE
E(REMBEEERIN) 2EH:

of the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

REPREFHBA FRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—g-®f -T-AF -¥=%F -I- A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET TET THET
Hong Kong N 4,891 10,121 356,738 86,969
PRC & 387,429 140,884 113,833 115,994
392,320 151,005 470,571 202,963

Information about major customers EREXEEFHNEHR

REBFERBEAREEBKAI0% A
ER—REPZWAMT

Revenue from a customer of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are

as follows:
2020 2019
ZERZBF T NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A' EEA N/ATE A 55,377
" Revenue from general trading. The corresponding revenue did TORE—REBESZHNBA-RAEFE - BEK
not contribute over 10% of total revenue of the Group during AMEREBEBUA10% AT o
the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. EA A - e R 1E
2020 2019
—E-BE —ThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Fair value change on: B@AATEES:
Contingent consideration receivables FEU S AR RAB 495 34,602
Financial assets at fair value through BERFEGFABRED
profit or loss TEEE 7,052 682

Realised loss on financial assets at

B RFERT A B

fair value through profit or loss PRIEECZEERER (579) -
Interest income from: FEWAKRE :

Bank deposits |ITEX 279 413

Entrusted loan ZHEEXN - 719

Other loans Hih &R 13,094 14,561

Loans to a non-controlling interest ERT—IHIEERER 7,640 -

Loans to an associate ERT Mg QR 1,125 =
Investment income ‘FERA 130 321
Net foreign exchange gain (l0ss) PE 3 s (JB18) 588 32 (27)
Service fee income AR 7S B UL A 1,076 2,263
Management service income EIRERRFBUWA 4,567 7,381
Bad debt recovered ZAR K - 1,882
Impairment loss on amounts due JEE i — el Bt & X R SR IE

from an associate BIEEE - (10)
Sundry income FIEWA 368 689
Government subsidies (Note) BT e Rh (B aE) 2,265 -

37,544 63,476

Note: B 5T

St AT 5 B 2 1,948,000 7T /4 AN F AR 1
BREFTHERFNRES TR ETE
EFREB RN -

Included in the government subsidies, HK$1,948,000 were granted
from the Employment Support Scheme and Subsidy Scheme of the
Securities Industry under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSS, NET OF REVERSAL 8. AEEE - Hk#E D
2020 2019
—EEH —
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Impairment loss (reversal of impairment loss) E #3275 & B 2B (EEE
recognised on: (BEEERE) :
— Trade receivables and other receivables — i UK BR 3 N H b B UK 3R 28,626 4,229
— Loans and interest receivables —EREREFE 113,594 14,100
— Other deposits —Efhize 9,337 55
— Loans and interest receivables to —}EHQ—IE JEVERRER 2
a non-controlling interest ERRAE (7) -
— Loans and interest receivables to —ER—fEEBE R AR ZER
an associate K FE (4,227) S
147,323 18,384
9. FINANCE COSTS BF A R AR
2020 2019
e —NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Effective interest on convertible notes MR ERERFE 5,389 -
Imputed interest on deferred consideration iR EBAIHEF B 147 1,228
Imputed interest on lease liabilities Tﬂfﬁﬁﬁ”ﬂﬁxﬂ B 1,009 1,405
Interest on bank loans RITERF R 6,212 5,599
Interest on other loans ﬁ@fi KA B 1,469 -
14,226 8,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

108 B F sz (%)

2020 2019
—E-BE —ThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Current tax: g HARIE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEERTER 2,706 425
(Over) under provision in prior years: MEFE (BERE) BETE:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B SRS (2) 76
Deferred tax: IEERIE -
Current year KEE 18,317 (11,384)
21,021 (10,883)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group's
subsidiaries in Hong Kong have no estimated assessable
profits for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") is calculated at the
applicable rates based on estimated taxable income earned
by the PRC subsidiaries of the Group with certain tax
concession, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practice in respect thereof.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprises Income Tax (the
"EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years.

BEEBNESHEOFNESHMESH  &EHK
EE T A E $2,000,0008 7T % F #5 A
8.25% K EEFR - M #8482,000,000/% 7T
2 ) #ELA16.5% B R R B - T 4& F
SERMAAHERNEEETEN RN BES
1#£16.5% W& — T RBH -

KRB EERE BHRASHMASS
LR eBEERENBHRRMEBTELXN

R S BB 1S TR 5T e R s A
A165% st E - AR ASERE BN E
RARBE_E_EFR_T—NLF+=
A=+—BLEFERTEMFTRAT 2T

WA BEH BB ISTIREME -

RECEMSR (TREMEHR]) IR
HBEEEN 2R REMNREXNTEZEER
ETRBERZAEENE QR AR
Bt ERTBALBRRERFE -

BIBEFBRCEMERIE ([REMSRE]D)
RZERMETEEEEG] - A& E B
BRI MEFE 2 ERARBEMEMRSH
HEE25% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (Continued)

Pursuant to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation on Enterprise Income Tax
Policies for Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region and Xinjiang
Kashgar Autonomous Region ( (B Z BRI 2B
AR FERTERRTMASASERERECEMS
RERKEAEE) ) promulgated by the State Council
on 29 November 2011, if a corporate enterprise is newly
established within calendar years 2010 to 2020 in two
specific regions with business fallen within the scope of
the Catalogue of Preferred Enterprise Income Tax for Key
Encouraged Industries in Poor Areas of Xinjiang ( 58 K
BEWESHSBEREZFCEMSHEERBH) ), the
corporate enterprise can enjoy a preferential tax treatment,
that is 5-year exemption, from the first year when the entity
begins to generate revenue.

The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before tax in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

10713/ EY (KEe) @

BERABENR-_E—F+—A=-1+A1B
M BT IED - BRB 548 B il eE
R ERRTMERSREEREEDERN
SHEZRBEROBHN WARTERN
AR EHERNEF T EFE T _-F
FHANY BXEKE GheR#mEE
BEEREEXCENSHEZRRN) &
B A ARICHARERBHBEEKRADN
F—FHREESFRFESR-

REEMENAX (KR)HEESER
R E th 2 [ Wi 2 2% 1 B9 R 5 A U 18 3 AR 0
T

2020 2019
—B-EE —IThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAETT
Loss before taxation Br R A& 18 (301,257) (217,278)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of RERNAERHE25%
25% (2019: 25%) (ZE—-NF:25%) (75,314) (54,319)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AP B 2
for tax purpose 98,721 36,458
Tax effect of income not taxable ARG ANTFEE
for tax purpose (11,500) (7,704)
(Over) under provision in prior years BEFE (BREEH)
BETE (2) 76
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary REREFEENBGEE
differences (190) 69
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBEEMEEELZ
as deferred tax asset MIBEBENMETE 17,440 14,639
Tax effect of tax exemption granted REBBERENHBEE (14,144) (11,650)
Utilisation of tax losses previously HABATARERNTIEES
not recognised (527) (48)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ R Eth Al)E R 2 ER
operating in other jurisdictions MEBARITRBERNTE 6,537 11,596
Income tax expense (credit) for the year FRBHAX (Fe) 21,021 (10,883)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

11.LOSS FOR THE YEAR M.ANFE EE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging the AEEFEEEHR TPIEB &EN:
following items:
2020 2019
—E-E2F —ZT—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT
Amortisation of intangible assets BZEERE (GTATTBK
(included in administrative and Hip&amMs)
other operating expense) 255 1,113
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN 2
— audit services —ZE R 1,450 1,300
— other services —H A AR 400 1,140
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses #3245 3 )77 &R A 16,169 62,399
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTRAEEENE 15,112 12,971
Depreciation of property, ME- BWERRENITE
plant and equipment 11,215 11,494
Lease payments for short-term lease WRFAHEBGBTHEZ
not included in the measurement RHMEEN K
of lease liabilities - 2,314
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) & TAX A (BIEZEEEHE) 42,759 48,025
12.DIVIDENDS 12.0x B
No dividend was paid, declared or proposed during the year RBE-_T_TF+_A=+— El IEF
ended 31 December 2020. The directors of the Company did B BEKRN EIRSER ?E@*H /N
not recommend the payment of dividend in respect of the RIEET ITEEREBE_ZT-Z ¢+ A
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). =T HLEFERMNEKRE(ZE—LF:
") o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B EmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BEEMTAER (BERA
&0 ($F622F ) 5383
(FREBEEENmER) %
622GE) MNEE EMHBAFET
A #5755 )

() EERTTHARME

RIFER LR EEE QBRI
BRNEFERTRAHFAMSOT

BE_ZT-_ZF+-"A=1+—-HLHF

B
Salaries, Contribution  Share-based
allowance to retirement payment
and other  Discretionary benefits expenses Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes (Note)  emoluments
MR %A
e Rl EREF HERY
e  REMEF HEra eI () Wedsm
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TER TEx TER TEx
Executive directors HTES
Mr. LIU Kequan, An Rk (£R)
Chairman - 3,600 300 18 - 3,918
Mr. YANG Dayong, Chief BRBEE
Executive Officer (fTB&%) - 1,200 - 18 - 1,218
Mr. ZHANG Peidong FTHREE - 360 - 18 - 378
- 5,160 300 54 - 5,514
Independent non-executive ~ BIFHTES
directors
Mr. KWAN Kei Chor BERRE 360 - - - - 360
Mr. ZHOU Liangyu RARFEE 360 - - - - 360
Dr. LYU Ziang afRET 180 - - - 1 181
900 - - - 1 901
Total emoluments HemE 900 5,160 300 54 1 6,415
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS BEFENMRMER (BEAT

|:|
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION & (5 622&)%3831'7& YNE]
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (HRBEEEMNmER) RO (5
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 622G a)&é 5 FmRBIRRE
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT M EE) ()

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EERTHARME (B)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE_T-NFTA=+—8HLF
53
Salaries, Contribution
allowance to retirement
and other  Discretionary benefits Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes emoluments
He RN RIKRER
e REMREF [l gl AR WeBsE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET TET THEL TER
Executive directors HITEER
Mr. LIU Kequan, Chairman AR REE(ER) = 3,600 300 18 3,918
Mr. YANG Dayong, Chief BARBLAE (TTREH)
Executive Officer = 1,200 = 18 1,218
Mr. ZHANG Peidong FMREAE - 360 - 18 378
- 5,160 300 54 5514

Independent non-executive B EHITES

directors

Mr. KWAN Kei Chor BERLLE 360 - - - 360

Mr. ZHOU Liangyu BARFEE 360 - - - 360

Dr. LYU Ziang B¥AEL 180 - . s 180
900 - - - 900

Total emoluments MemeE 900 5,160 300 54 6,414

Note: Bt 5t

The value of share options granted to the director of the BEBEARRREMBARBERETEIRT

Company under the share option scheme of the Company ARRAEE v BRECEEZSERE

and its subsidiaries represents the fair value of these options ANEE(BEREEBVHHREERNFE25RT

charged to the consolidated income statement for the year in ARFREZEFEWEmR)

accordance with HKFRS 2.
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS BEEFEM@ZMER (BEAT
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION &5 (55622F ) £383(5 « A A

383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

No director waived any emoluments in the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019. No incentive payment for
joining the Group was paid or payable to any directors
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company or its subsidiaries during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

1BEZEM =

13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2019: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2019: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporates and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates and
connected entities of such directors (2019: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2019: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

14.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two directors (2019: two), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 13 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2019:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor
a chief executive of the Company are as follows:

“hER=#HEER

FAXEEREAERFEEERERE (=
T—NF MB)BES EMeFBHR
FXHFIB3 - B T=Z=R(ZE—NF: =
BIWHEARRESRITHABHEN TS
BEERFANBESFBROT :

2020 2019

—E-EF —TNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FETT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R RHMER 5,525 5,525
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme R K +& F &t 2] 4 3% 54 54
Share-based payment expenses ARR 9 2 A ;RIB R 32 2 -
5,581 5,579

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company and whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

ATHINLEARREETHNRSHEEA
e i FH) Fr M -

2020 2019

—E-E2F —_T—NF

No. of No. of

employees employees

BEAHE EE AZ

HK$ nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z L 21,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/& 7c & 1,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 7c £2,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 £2,500,000/% 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017% JT £3,000,000/%8 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017% 7T £3,500,000/%8 7T - -
3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

15.LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

15. 38 fE 18

RRRHEEARESRERREEEERT)
BT IIBEE

2020 2019
—EB-BE _—T—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Loss SFi=]
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ~ FtEt EEREAEE &
the Company for the purpose of BEEEMSNART
basic loss and diluted loss per share e ANELEFEAEE (335,628) (206,395)
2020 2019
—BRE —T-NF
‘000 ‘000
F K T %
Number of shares RO E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 3@ i% N4 19 gk B 7,281,808 6,923,930

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company, and the weighted
average number of shares of approximately 7,281,808,000
ordinary shares (2019: 6,923,930,000) in issue.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
did not assume the exercise of the outstanding share options
since this would result in a decrease in loss per share. No
adjustment was made in calculating diluted loss per share for
the year ended 31 December 2020 as convertible notes had
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share. Accordingly,
the diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per
share.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 did not assume the exercise of the outstanding share
options since this would result in a decrease in loss per share.
Accordingly, the diluted loss per share is the same as the
basic loss per share.

ERERNEBEDREARAEE AR
HEEBEERTETARONE LY H
B 47,281, 808000Hx<_7 JLE
6,923,930,000/% ) &

HE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HLEFEZ
SFREEEBETERRITEHRITEBRR
BT AR BREERSREEBRRD -
RFEHE_ZE-_ZF+_A=+—AHL
FENEREEEERTEELARE R
l#T%kmf%i&%$%%F$&%

BERE A SRBEFEEESRAR
EE@H°

BE_T-NFH+-_A=T—"BLFEZ
BREEE R ERERITE R ARITEER
BRIt ERERERERRD -
At - SEE R ESRERERER -
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B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 9% - Wi 5B K&
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and Motor
improvement Warehouse equipment vehicles Total
BR-£BER
HEMEEE RE R RE nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FAL FAT FAT FEL

Cost A

At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-NF—A—H 10,497 156,635 4,185 3,561 174,878

Additions NE - - 87 - 87

Exchange realignment PR - (2,724) (29) (32) (2,785)

At 31 December 2019 and RZT-N%F

1 January 2020 +ZR=+-HBk
“Z-%#—-A—H 10,497 153,911 4,243 3,529 172,180
Addition through acquisition of BRRBRBARRNE
subsidiaries - - 3,183 - 3,183

Additions RE = = 39 = 39

Disposal T - = (5 = (5

Exchange realignment RS = 9,494 321 112 9,927

At 31 December 2020 R-B-EE

+=A=1+-H 10,497 163,405 7.781 3,641 185,324

Depreciation and impairment FERAE

At 1 January 2019 R-E-NF—A—H 6,429 64,219 3,080 1,884 75,612

Provided for the year REFRME 2,099 8,278 475 642 11,494

Exchange realignment RS - (1,236) ) (20) (1,277)

At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-N%F

1 January 2020 +TZR=+-HBk
“E2-TF-f—H 8,528 71,261 3,534 2,506 85,829

Provided for the year REFHEE 1,828 8,201 618 568 11,215

Disposal HE = S ©) S (5

Exchange realignment I 5 2% = 4,857 110 83 5,050

At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-%F

+=RA=t—H 10,356 84,319 4,257 3,157 102,089

Carrying amounts FEE

At 31 December 2020 R-ZB=%F

+=RA=+—H 141 79,086 3,524 484 83,235
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+-A=+—H 1,969 82,650 709 1,023 86,351

The above items of property, plant and equipment are ElE - -BERKEBEEER TIIFER

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per REEBEEFENE:

annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of remaining HEMEREE BRNOFBFHR
unexpired terms of the 20% (ABKEH
leases and 20% RAE)

Warehouse 5% BE 5%

Furniture, fixtures and 10%-33% B KERRE 10% E33%

equipment

Motor vehicles 20%-33% _E 20% £33%

The warehouse is situated on land in the PRC held under a BEARPE M - RIEA H A

medium-term land use right. A -
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mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

17.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17(EAEEE
Leasehold Office
lands premises Total
HELH# BWOAEYE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZEHF
+=A=+—8H
Carrying amounts BREE 22,515 - 22,515
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z2-hA&F+Z-A=+—H
Carrying amounts FREE 21,914 21,161 43,075
For the year ended BE-Z-=F
31 December 2020 tZA=+—-HLEHFE
Depreciation charge neEs 710 14,402 15,112
Impairment loss recognised ERERERZIRERBE
in profit or loss - 7,607 7,607
Exchange realignment P X % (1,311) (175) (1,486)
For the year ended BE-Z-h#%F
31 December 2019 +tZA=+—-HLEE
Depreciation charge neES 717 12,254 12,971
Exchange realignment ME W (390) (86) (476)
2020 2019
—BIRE —T-NF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Expense relating to short-term HLRG BAFH & N A BRI 1 218 A
lease and other leases with lease NEmHEMBEESENT N
terms ending within 12 months - 2,314
Total cash outflow for lease MERE ML ETE 15,759 15,673
Additions to right-of-use assets RNECAEEE 176 7,986
Additions to right-of-use assets FRAWENBARRE
through acquisition of subsidiaries FREEE 497 -

AEERMEFENEERTEBEESE
MA=ERRNEL - HEAHNIMFRIFZ
HHEAET AL - L E R TIIR Bl B e RE RS -
BREEBETRGRMGSE - REEES &
Al A AT = EA R e B RR B - KSR B A
BHRERLETE S KR RBIFITROHE -

For both years, the Group leases various offices in Hong Kong
and the PRC for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 1 year to 3 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

AEECRGSRTEAAHEE LA+
i RS -

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all
leasehold lands in the PRC.
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B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

17.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 17.ERBEEE &)
Restrictions or covenants on leases of office premises MAYEHERFIRNEZE
In addition, lease liabilities of HK$7,977,000 are recognised W R-_E-_FEE+_A=+—H"'B2
with related right-of-use assets with an aggregate carrying BREE A E7,977,000% T & AH @A F
amount of HK$Nil as at 31 December 2020 (2019: lease AEEERBEERTEET (ZE—NF:
liabilities of HK$21,825,000 and related right-of-use assets T E & 1&21,825,0007% T & A8 8 79 55 A3
of HK$21,161,000). The lease agreements do not impose EE21,161,00087T) - BRHEHEAFERHE
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased EEEPHERERIN HEHZTHENM
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be EAEMRZE HEEETSRANERIE
used as security for borrowing purposes. R
18.GOODWILL 18.7 &
2020 2019
—E-EFE —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cost A
Balance at beginning of the year F YR 165,772 165,772
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries RUEEKT B QR EE (MFE39)

(Note 39) 326,582 -
Balance at end of the year FOREEER 492,354 165,772
Accumulated impairment losses ZitREER
Balance at beginning of the year F AR 133,050 21,793
Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEERBIEEE 32,722 111,257
Balance at end of the year FREH 165,772 133,050
Carrying amount REE
Balance at end of the year FREH 326,582 32,722
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are FHAREZREAAFERGEE M BRE
disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. B 7E20%5 55 -
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mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

19.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 EE
Information
Trading integration
right platform Total
BEEER
R 5K =) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Cost R AR
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZT—NF—H—H 500 11,010 11,510
Exchange realignment P X R = (191) (191)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—NF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—8k
—E-_FTF—H—H 500 10,819 11,319
Exchange realignment BE 5, SR —~ 667 667
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF
+=HA=+—H 500 11,486 11,986
Amortisaton and impairment R REE
At 1 January 2019 R—ZE—nF—H—H - 2,261 2,261
Provided for the year FREE - 1,113 1,113
Impairment loss recognised for the year 4 &2 #7205 B /&5 18 - 5,722 5,722
Exchange realignment P 5 R = (54) (54)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—-NF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—H8k
—E-FTF—H—H - 9,042 9,042
Provided for the year FARE - 255 255
Impairment loss recognised for the year F R R EEIE - 1,618 1,618
Exchange realignment ME 5, 5 - 571 571
At 31 December 2020 R-EBE-EF
+=—B=+—H - 11,486 11,486
Carrying amounts FREE
At 31 December 2020 R-B-EF
+=B=+—8H 500 - 500
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=ZA=+—8~ 500 1,777 2,277
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

19.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19

The trading rights are retained for stock trading and
stockbroking activities. The trading rights are considered to
have indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute
to the net cash flows of the Group indefinitely, and are
not amortised. Instead they will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are
disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Information integration platform provides all the foundational
building blocks of trusted information, including data
integration, data warehousing, master data management,
big data and information monitoring. The right of using
information integration platform is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software. These
costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10
years.

During the year, the management performed impairment
assessment on intangible assets of each cash-generating unit
with aggregated carrying amount of HK$Nil in accordance
with HKAS 36. The management estimated the recoverable
amount of those cash-generating units of which these
intangible assets have been allocated are lower than the
carrying amount of these intangible assets and accordingly,
an impairment loss of HK$1,618,000 is recognised for
information integration platform.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

20.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and the
trading rights with indefinite useful life set out in notes 18
and 19 have been allocated to six individual cash generating
units (CGUs), comprising one subsidiary in the insurance
brokerage segment (“Insurance Brokerage CGU"), one
subsidiary in the security brokerage segment (“Security
Brokerage CGU"), two subsidiaries in the asset management
segment (“Asset Management CGU"), the subsidiaries in
the financing referral operation (“Financing Referral CGU"),
subsidiaries in the financing guarantee operation (“Financial
Guarantee CGU") and subsidiaries in the micro-financing and
financing referral operations (“Tobacco Financing CGU").
The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) as at 31 December 2020 and 2019

20.75 2 N B8R Al {F B F H Y

A E R R E R

SURVEDRIBL T & - 18 R 19FTE & It
AERAFERAFHIRSEEDEE/NA
ERREELENM ((ReELENU]) B
EREREL MO —HMBE LR ([RER
RERSELEM]) BHRELOBH—
B EAR ((EFKLBEELEM])
BEEESHOMEMBLAR ([EEE
EBERGELBEM]) BESN D EHAMNE
NE([MEBNRCELEM]) BEE
REBHOHBAR(IMEERRESES
BUDRNEEREBEENEBON
Brrl([EERERSEEEMN]) N
Z2_EFR-_FE-NAF+A=+—HS
REZFRESELBUNEE (MK R

allocated to these CGUs are as follows: BEEE)REENT
Goodwill Trading right
HE X5

2020 2019 2020 2019
i —T-hF —EC-ERE “E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FTHET FHT FAET
Insurance Brokerage CGU R LR EFEN = 1,537 = =
Security Brokerage CGU BHELEREEEBN - - 500 500
Assets Management CGU EEEEREELBN - 5,230 = =
Financing Referral CGU MEENREEEEN - 12,370 = =
Financial Guarantee CGU REERASELBM - 13,585 - -
Tobacco Financing CGU BEERMEREEEN 326,582 - - -
Total T 326,582 32,722 500 500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

20.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

176

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, with reference
to the professional valuation performed by the independent
valuer, the management of the Group has determined that an
impairment loss of HK$32,722,000 (2019: HK$111,257,000)
arose in relation to goodwill allocated to certain groups of
CGUs. There were no material changes in the methodology
and sources of market data applied in the valuation between
2020 and 2019. After reviewing the performance of Asset
Management CGU, Insurance Brokerage CGU, Financing
Referral CGU, Financial Guarantee CGU and Tobacco
Financing CGU in 2020, the management of the Group
revised the carrying amounts of Asset Management CGU,
Insurance Brokerage CGU, Financing Referral CGU and
Financial Guarantee CGU downwards based on cash flow
forecasts.

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation with the assistance of the
independent professional qualified valuers not connected
with the Group. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the management.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation
of the CGUs for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019. The major underlying assumptions on
which management has based in the preparation of cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill
are summarised below:

Discount rate per annum — the discount rates used are
before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the respective
industries.

Budgeted revenue and budgeted gross margins —
management determined budgeted gross margins based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development.

Terminal growth rate — the rate used is based on the average
projected inflation rate of the geographical area in which the
business of the CGU operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

20.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

Insurance Brokerage CGU

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and at a discount rate of 20.77%
(2019: 19.02%). Cash flows after the five-year period
were extrapolated using 3% (2019: 3%) growth rate, after
considering the economic conditions of the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment loss of
HK$1,537,000 (2019: HK$Nil) has been provided in relation
to Insurance Brokerage CGU as the recoverable amount of
this CGU was reduced to HK$Nil at the end of the reporting
period. The impairment loss arose as a result of the less than
satisfactory past and expected performance of the Insurance
Brokerage CGU.

Security Brokerage CGU

The management of the Group determined that certain
trading rights amounting to HK$500,000 was no longer
utilised to generate profits to the Group. For the purpose of
impairment testing on these trading rights, the recoverable
amount has been determined based on secondary market
prices and no impairment was made at 31 December 2020.

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
three-year period, and at a discount rate of 14.33% for the
year ended 31 December 2019. Cash flows after the three-
year period were extrapolated using 3% growth rate, after
considering the economic conditions of the market for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Assets Management CGU

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering
a three-year period, and at a discount rate of 18.23%
(2019: 16.95%). Cash flows after the three-year period
were extrapolated using 3% (2019: 3%) growth rate, after
considering the economic conditions of the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment loss of
HK$5,230,000 (2019: HK$2,760,000) has been provided
in relation to Asset Management CGU as the recoverable
amount of this CGU was reduced to HK$Nil at the end of the
reporting period. The impairment loss arose as a result of the
less than satisfactory past and expected performance of the
Asset Management CGU.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

20.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

178

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

Financing Referral CGU

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering
a three-year period, and at a discount rate of 17.40%
(2019: 16.93%). Cash flows after the three-year period
were extrapolated using 3% (2019: 3%) growth rate, after
considering the economic conditions of the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment loss of
HK$12,370,000 (2019: HK$87,912,000) has been provided
in relation to Financing Referral CGU as the recoverable
amount of this CGU was reduced to HK$Nil at the end of the
reporting period. The impairment loss arose as a result of the
less than satisfactory past and expected performance of the
Financing Referral CGU.

Financial Guarantee CGU

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering
a three-year period, and at a discount rate of 14.91%
(2019: 17.38%). Cash flows after the three-year period
were extrapolated using 3% (2019: 3%) growth rate, after
considering the economic conditions of the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment loss of
HK$13,585,000 (2019: HK$20,585,000) has been provided
in relation to Financial Guarantee CGU as the recoverable
amount of this CGU was reduced to HK$Nil at the end of the
reporting period. The impairment loss arose as a result of the
less than satisfactory past and expected performance of the
Financial Guarantee CGU.

Tobacco Financing CGU

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
four-year period, and at a discount rate of 17.33%. Cash
flows after the four-year period were extrapolated using 3%
growth rate, after considering the economic conditions of
the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the recoverable
amount of the Tobacco Financing CGU estimated from the
cash flow forecast exceeds the carrying amounts. Accordingly,
no impairment loss on goodwill of Tobacco Financing CGU
has been recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21. 0B 2 R R R &

2020 2019

—EB-EF —h%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Cost of investment in associates — unlisted R EEE QA RIIREMKAR—FE LT 307,534 306,346

Share of accumulated post-acquisition loss /\qu[;fﬂﬂZE%?éJEﬂ?i&

and other comprehensive expense HEh2EAX (38,936) (38,936)

Less: Accumulated impairment loss B RETEE (268,598) (267,410)
The following is the particulars of the associates, which are NTARFELTAREEBEYEMSREY

unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not

Hﬁ%i\\jm#'ﬁ :

FTRER

available:
Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation ownership interest
Name and operation attributable to the Company Principal activities
FRARELESR
=y A {18 B 3L % 3 3tk B FrE R L
2020 2019

—2-%8F T F

Intraday Financial Information Service British Virgin Islands 45% 45%
Limited (“Intraday Financial”) (Note a) ("BVI")

ERERMERRBERAF KBRAEE
(Mgxerl) (MiEa) ([RBRELHEE])

REERK

Investment holding

Zhongyan Xin Shangmeng People Republic of 25% - Trading of consumable
E-commerce Limited (“Zhongyan China ("PRC") goods and
E-commerce”)* (Note b) consultancy services

HENERE B ERLAR I AR KA HEmME 5 M AR
(MPEEFEHK]) (KEb) (THE]) %

*  For identification only * EHER

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity FrA Lt & AR T A RERERE B

method in the consolidated financial statements. e E N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21.

Notes:

(@) The interest on Intraday Financial was fully impaired and the
Group has already shared the losses of the Intraday Financial to
the extent of the Group's interest in the associate. The Group
has no obligation to take up further losses. The amounts of the
Group’s unrecognised share of losses of Intraday Group for the
current year and cumulatively were HK$4,900 (2019: HK$6,000)
and HK$165,900 (2019: HK$161,000) respectively. Considering
that there is no specific plan to revamp the business of Intraday
Financial, the directors of the Company are of the view that no
reversal of the allowance for impairment should be made.

(b) The interest on Zhongyan Group was fully impaired when the
acquisition of subsidiaries was recognised at 31 July 2020
and the Group has no obligation to take up further losses.
The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of losses of
Zhongyan Group for the current year was HK$1,135,000.
Considering that there is no specific plan to revamp the
business of Zhongyan Group, the directors of the Company are
of the view that no reversal of the allowance for impairment
should be made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

RIZAFEAARMEER S

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BT R E E
INCOME
2020 2019
—B-BF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Listed investments: FHRE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB L TMRRAE 5 2,909 3,684
— Equity securities listed in the PRC — B LT E AR AR 5 8,266 2,685
11,175 6,369
The movement in the fair value of equity securities are as BRAFFZ N FEEEBEHT 0T
follows:
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—-—NF—H—H 15,872
Disposal & (7,498)
Recognised in other comprehensive expenses P B 2 T B <2 B3R (1,961)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 33 B (44)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZEBE-NAF+A=+—AK
—E-TF—H—H 6,369
Recognised in other comprehensive expenses P EC A 2 TE ) 2 B3R 4,353
Exchange realignment ME 5 5 & 453
At 31 December 2020 R-_EZZEF+_HA=+—H 11,175

It represents the Group’'s investments in listed equity
securities designated as FVTOCI. The Group does not intend
to dispose of these investments in the near future.

In 2019, the Group disposed part of the equity securities
in Hong Kong, at a consideration of HK$7,498,000. A
revaluation reserve on disposal of HK$95,000 has been

transferred to accumulated losses.

The details of fair value measurement are disclosed in note

52(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

BERNEHALERSTRE -

BB

52(i) # 5%

RAESHMERBRIF | — T _ZTFFRH

HiEAREREEERRAFEF AR
2ER A EMRAFESFZIRE - ANEKE

RZZE—NFE AEBLEETOPREEN
A AN 5% % - (B /B7,498,0008 T HEE
HEA 7 EfEFEES5,0008 T EET R
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

23.2@?@%)\%\5&5’9@%1

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS ZS
2020 2019
—B-EE T -hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FET
Unlisted investments funds FEEMKREES (i) 19,959 30,260
Unlisted trust fund FELEMERES (ii) 244 -
Early redemption option on RE B Al AR E IR HA 37
convertible notes 15,380 -
Profit guarantee and incentive payment i #{R 78 & & B & (iii) 26,309 -
61,892 30,260
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERBEBSNR:
Current assets MENEE 35,583 1,596
Non-current assets ERBEE 26,309 28,664
61,892 30,260
Notes: P& -

(i) As at 31 December 2020, the balance of HK$18,264,000
(2019: HK$28,664,000) represents the unlisted investment fund
established in the Cayman Islands which primary objectives
are to provide absolute returns through pursuing different
strategies, investing primarily in equity and equity related
instruments of companies listed in Hong Kong and PRC. During
the year, the Group redeemed partial of the fund and received
the principal of HK$10,000,000 and recognised a loss on
disposal of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$579,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of HK$1,695,000
(2019: HK$1,596,000) represents the Group’s interest in the
privately-offered unlisted investment fund established in the
PRC. During the year, no redemption was made by the Group
(2019: RMB33,600,000 (approximately HK$37,780,000)).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an unrealised gain
of HK$179,000 (2019:HK$682,000) arising from fair value
changes in unlisted investment funds was recognised in profit
or loss.

The fair value of a trust fund established in the PRC was
approximately HK$1,825,000 on the date of acquisition and
approximately HK$244,000 at 31 December 2020. During the
year, the Group redeemed partial of the trust fund and received
approximately HK$1,675,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an unrealised gain
of HK$79,000 arising from fair value change in unlisted trust
fund was recognised in profit or loss.

In relation to acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements, the fair value of the
profit guarantee and incentive payment was estimated to be
approximately HK$25,125,000 on the date of acquisition and
approximately HK$26,309,000 at 31 December 2020. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the fair value change of
HK$1,184,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

The details of fair value measurement are disclosed in note 52(i) to
the consolidated financial statements.

mE B RRME
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(iii)

(8)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

24.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE  24.JEU sk AR (B

2020 2019
—2-%F —TNF
Note HKS$’'000 HK$'000
hg=s THET THETT
Balance at beginning of the year FHER 39,136 13,686
Fair value change recognised RIBRERN A TEE
in profit or loss 495 34,602
Compensation entitled to: EZHERIE:
— deduct from deferred consideration — B iELEAE R 33 (6,000) (9,152)
— receive in cash — IR E (33,631) -
Balance at end of the year FREH = 39,136
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MmMEMSHONBOT :
Current assets mENEE — 39,136
Non-current assets JEMBNEE = -
- 39,136
In relation to acquisition of Sino Wealth Group B B3 W iE Sino Wealth £ E

The balance represents the contingent consideration
receivables in relation to the acquisition of Sino Wealth
Investment Co., Limited ("“Sino Wealth”) and its subsidiaries
(“Sino Wealth Group”). Pursuant to the conditional sales
and purchase agreement dated 28 July 2017 (“Acquisition
Agreement S”), the Vendor and Vendor Guarantor
guarantee to the indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company that the Company shall have the right to deduct
the compensation from the respective cash considerations
payable to the Vendor for financial years ended 31 December
2020 if the performance target profit of RMB30,000,000
could not be met. Should the cash considerations payable
to the Vendor be insufficient to cover the compensation, the
Vendor shall compensate the amount of difference in cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

24.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE  24.JEUR SRR (B (&)
(Continued)

In relation to acquisition of Sino Wealth Group AR EE Sino Wealth 8 (&)
(Continued)
An amount of HK$495,000 has been recognised as ERBE_Z_ZEF+_A=+—HILHF
gain on change in fair value of contingent consideration ENEETHRABKIAREATEE
receivable in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 I £2495,000/% 7T ° B3 72 Sino Wealth &£ &
December 2020. Since Sino Wealth Group failed to meet the RERBE_ZT-—NF+A=+—H8H1L
performance target profit of RMB30,000,000 for the year FEFEINENE F R AK30,000,000
ended 31 December 2019, the Group was entitled to the TOEE AEBEEERFANESGHES
compensation of HK$39,631,000 in which HK$6,000,000 §139,631,000/% 7T, ( H #6,000,000/% 7T JY
was deducted from the deferred consideration payable to BEENEFNECKEPMER) MET
Vendor, and the remaining compensation of HK$33,631,000 7 (8 £ 33,631,000 L AR & [ B 77 W
was received in cash from the Vendor during the year. The BR-BHAAFEFEZHFBEENGE M
details of fair value measurement are disclosed in note 52(i) 5 M 5E52() ©
to the consolidated financial statements.
25.LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 25. R E TR K I B
2020 2019
—B-BF T NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Entrusted loan ZEEXR - 336
Mortgage loan RIBER - 1,700
Other loans (Note a) HMER (Mfika) 513,052 169,695
513,052 171,731
Less: Impairment allowance W ORE R (153,114) (19,282)
359,938 152,449
Note: B 5T
(@) Other loans are loans denominated in RMB made to (@) EMERTIDTUAREFEQNBLE=FH
independent third parties, of which approximately YEH 89 & 7% 49254,510,00008 7T (ZE— 1
HK$254,510,000 (2019: HK$136,943,000) are secured and % : 136,943,000 7T ) & B H 1R KR F F
bear interest rates ranging from 5% to 6% (2019: from 5% to ENTF5%FE6% (ZE—NF :NF5%
6%) per annum, and approximately HK$258,542,000 (2019: £6% )5T B ™ #9258,542,000/8 7T (=&
HK$32,752,000) are unsecured and bear interest rates ranging — L& 132,752,000 70) AEE IR NIZF
from 6% to 24% (2019: 6% to 9%) per annum. MENT6% E24% (ZE—HLFE: 6% &

9% )&t & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

25.LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the loans and interest receivables net of
impairment allowance as at the end of the reporting period,

based on the payment due date, is as follows:

25. B E R A B ()

RS B RIZ KB H] B &Y e W B 5K % R
B (IR ERER) WREDTAOT -

2020 2019

—B-RF _—ZTNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET T

No past due F % 481 2 289,183 150,722
Less than 1 month past due BET 2 1E A 415 1,727
1 to 3 months past due A E£31E A 681 =
3 to 6 months past due #mHEI3E61E A 41,568 -
6 months to less than 1 year past due B HG(E A =1 B 14F 18,586 -
More than 1 year past due B HA R R 9,505 -
359,938 152,449

The movements in impairment allowance of loans and

interest receivables are as follows:

ERER LN B REREZFHNT

2020 2019

—EB-®E T -hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Balance at beginning of the year F AR 19,282 5,273
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries B U BB B A RIARE 19,050 -
Amounts recognised during the year FAEEREHE 114,101 17,523
Amounts reversed during the year FAEREESE (507) (3,423)
Exchange realignment b X R 1,188 (91)
Balance at end of the year FOREEER 153,114 19,282

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
exposure arising from loans and interest receivables are
set out in the note 51(b) to the consolidated financial

statements.

BREAKBEEERREKARBKREREA
ENEERRNESFBHNGZS MR
RIFES1(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

26. J1& Wi Bk 50 B E A i WK TR

2020 2019
—E-EFE —TNF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THET FHEIT
Trade receivables from: T3 E A 2 EUERTK :
Business of dealing in securities: BAERDER:
— Cash clients —-BHe®EP - 7
- Margin clients - RESEPF — 1,246
Loan referral and consultancy EREN RFBRRE (MisEa)
services (Note a) 44,574 24,122
Financial guarantee services (Note b) BERERRE (Mitb) 21,744 3,049
Insurance brokerage business (Note ¢) R =5 (Mi5Ec) 45 35
Asset management business (Note d) BEBTEER (HMEd) 5 75
Advertising business (Note e) s (Mizke) 321 -
66,689 28,534
Less: Impairment allowance B ORE B (26,681) (6,213)
40,008 22,321
Other receivables (Note f) E A WK IE (B REf) 21,378 2,704
Less: Impairment allowance B R B B (9,089) (130)
12,289 2,574
Total trade and other receivables JFE 5 B TR K LAt B Wi T TR AR R 52,297 24,895

Notes:

GEE

(a)

(b)

()

(e)

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from loan
referral and consultancy services are within 30 days upon the
contractual obligation being performed.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from financial
guarantee services are mainly within 60 to 90 days upon the
contractual obligation being performed.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from product
issuers arising from the provision of insurance brokerage
services are mainly within 45 to 60 days upon the execution of
the insurance policies and/or receipt of statements from product
issuers.

Credit terms granted to customers of asset management
business are within 30 days or as mutually agreed between the
parties.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from
advertising business are mainly within 30 days upon the
contractual obligation being performed.

Included in other receivables was default payment receivables
of HK$16,561,000 in relation to loan financing operation.

(a)

RAESHMERBRIF | — T _ZTFFRH

EREREN RBARBERZ —REE
HIRRETANEER30BA-

JEW B EERRIEERZ —MEZHR =
ZABITAHNELE60E90HA -

RERRELCREELE ZBKERBEITA
R —REEHRIEREIRER
SR ERBETAZEEERISECORA -

BRTEEEERBEFPZEER /30N
KHFI T HEERE -

ERESEBER —REEHARTES
BITAKBEEER30AA -

SAREMERZRE CEAMRERREE
%2 BN E #)1F 5%16,561,00078 7T °
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26.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. & UK BR 71 N B b B AR 3R I8 ()

ERUXB L ARNEE R BEE
SR EIMER - F e 3 5 B K AR
BB ERER A -

No ageing analysis of trade receivables from margin clients is
disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of
the nature of this business.

J& W AR R R BR (F0RRBUE B ) I i & 1
ARBEZEHZREDTWT

An ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade
receivables net of impairment allowance as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2020 2019
—E-EHE — N4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
0 - 30 days 0£30H 10,560 6,570
31 - 60 days 31260H 2,174 1,146
61 — 90 days 61290H 1,477 1,195
Over 90 days 90H M E 25,797 12,167
40,008 21,078

The movements in impairment allowance on trade receivables FEWERFORERENEESHNT

are as follows:

2020 2019
—E-EHF —hF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Balance at beginning of the year FEE 6,213 2,007
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries % i@ ﬁﬁ MEBARIRE 378 -
Amounts recognised during the year FAEHERESRE 21,160 6,144
Amounts reversed during the year FAERESE (1,479) (1,903)
Exchange realignment ME 3, 38 B 409 (35)
Balance at end of the year FRER 26,681 6,213

188 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

26.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

26. J1& Wi Bk 0 B B A R AR T ()

The movements in impairment allowance on other receivables Hth R IB R ER B E BT -
are as follows:
2020 2019
—BIRE —IT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T
Balance at beginning of the year F YR 130 145
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries i@ BEHI B A RIARE 6 -
Amounts recognised during the year FANEHRERE 9,035 1
Amounts reversed during the year FAERE SR (90) (13)
Exchange realignment e X 8 (3)
Balance at end of the year FREERR 9,089 130

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
exposure arising from trade and other receivables are set out
in the note 51(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

27.PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

B BRI ES1(D)

7. AN A RE S

BRAANKEEERER MR A BRERRRE
i EUKIENEE AR E ZF BN

2020 2019
ZEZBF  _TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Prepayments AR IR 3,763 2,422
Rental and utilities deposits Mek RAXEERS 4,492 4,543
Statutory deposits EERE 255 255
Other deposits (Note) Btz e (M3E) 73,876 78,052
82,386 85,272
Less: Impairment allowance W ORE R (9,635) (280)
Total prepayments and deposits FENRIERIECHERE 72,751 84,992
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MHEMS O T -

Current assets mEN & B 72,496 81,487
Non-current assets FERBEE 255 3,505
72,751 84,992

Note: Bff 3T -

As at 31 December 2020, other deposits mainly consist of deposits
paid to co-operators in relation to the Group’s financial guarantee
and general trading business, which amounted to HK$73,718,000

(2019: HK$77,975,000).

BEMNTARETNES-

RPESRMERERAF

—E_TFFR

RZE_ETEF+_A=+—HB Htirsd
73,718,000 7t (=ZF — 1L F : 77,975,000/%8
T ETEBRERAEEREERE —KREEE
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27.PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) 7. F BN RIBENRIES (&)

The movements in impairment allowance on other deposits
are as follows:

Hiim B ERENEFHIT

2020 2019

—2-%F —TNF

HKS$’'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Balance at beginning of the year FYER 280 229
Amounts recognised during the year FADHERNEE 9,346 272
Amounts reversed during the year FAERE SR (9) (217)
Exchange realignment ME 5 G B 18 (4)
Balance at end of the year FRAER 9,635 280

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
exposure arising from other deposits are set out in the note
51(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

28.CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS

The Group maintains separate trust accounts with licensed
banks to hold clients" monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies
as cash held on behalf of customers under current assets
recognised the corresponding accounts payable to respective
clients as stipulated under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO"). The Group is not allowed to use
the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations under the
SFO.

29.RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Restricted bank deposits represent the guarantee under its
business pledged customer deposits received under tripartite
custodian agreements among the online lending platforms,
guarantee customers and the Group under its guarantee
business. For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the Group's restricted bank deposits with banks
have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

28.

29.
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TFEY

30.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31

For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated cash flow
statements, cash and cash equivalents include cash and the

30.38 & N IR

REINEGEERERERNS REMRE
FEVERRS LRIGHRE=EA AR

following balance with an original maturity within 3 months: BYIA T A5 ER

2020 2019

—2-F —TNF

HKS$’'000 HK$'000

FHET THETT

Bank balance and cash RITESR LIRS 75,990 205,530
National Debt Reverse Repurchase products Bl {& i [B] B & 14,251 -
Total HEt 90,241 205,530
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range RITHEBIENTZEE240E (ZF—NF:

from nil to 2.40% (2019: nil to 1.55%) per annum.

The National Debt Reverse Repurchase products have a
short maturity of less than three months and a determinable
return when acquired. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the National Debt Reverse Repurchase products
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

TE155)MmIsFNERTR -

HEYLBEROMRKE (T =@

R) BRAIAENER - ARAREERE

HEZOBERIDLERER /T MR
BeAmphEEZSERIL TEKN-

T =N
.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES, 31 ﬂ%%?ﬁm oA @ﬁ %M BB
DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUALS o X ISETH

2020 2019
—B-BF —TNF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Trade payables from: TR EA Z BT ERK

Business of dealing in securities: (Note a) BERXHER: (Mia)
— Cash clients —-BHeRP 432 386
— Margin clients —REESEF 641 421
— Clearing house — B - 47
Insurance brokerage business (Note b) R =% (M5Eb) 238 221
Total trade payables JE 1~ BR SR 4B 2R 1,311 1,075
Accrued expenses st E R 12,510 2,915
Deposits received (Note c) BUlEZEE (MisEc) 123,410 110,348
Other payables H th & 1~ KA 32,433 19,226
Total other payables, deposits received H MR - 2 WERE &
and accruals JEEt B B 168,353 132,489
Total trade payables, other payables, JE AT BR R - L B A5 BRIE
deposits received and accruals BB e RERTE R 169,664 133,564
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WHE e MEGTER (#)

31.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES, IENERF - HMWENFIE B
DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)
Notes:

(@) Trade payables to securities brokerage clients represent the
monies received from and repayable to brokerage clients in
respect of the trust and separate bank balances received and
held for clients in the course of the conduct of the Group's
regulated activities.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of the Group's business.

(b) Trade payables to consultants arising from the provision of
insurance brokerage services, are generally settled within 30
days to 120 days upon receipt of payments from product
issuers.

An ageing analysis of trade payables from insurance brokerage
business at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

B aE

(a)

ENEFRLEPERAERNETARE
XRERDERTFEUMIRELPTALZE
AERBIRITEBKERE LTS MEEE
AL E PRI

ERNAREBEBZNE ARAEERR
BRie 0 AT M M BSMER - B UL I 4 3% R AR

e DT o

— RN B E R EIT AT FRIK30H 2120
FREERERBRELCRBEELE ZENEE
GE A

AR B R AR BR A8 40 75 FE 9 BR SR AR i
DT

2020 2019

—B-%F —EF-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FET

0 - 30 days 0z30H 118 86
31 - 60 days 31260H 1 48
61 — 90 days 61£290H 12 22
Over 90 days 90H A E 107 65
238 221
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310 SR - E AP KR -
Wiz & REETE A (&)

31.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES,
DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

() Included in deposits received was an amount of
HK$110,873,000 (2019: HK$98,426,000) which was
received from customers as collateral security for the financial
guarantees issued by the Group. These deposits will be
refunded to the customers upon expiry of the corresponding

(0 BWEIZEH 110,873,000 (==
— L5 198,426,000 7)) A LB E R

WEVE AR EEE L NRE BROER-

ZEREEHRARERGOEREEET
EP-REAGHN ZEREFEHBN—F

guarantee contracts. According to the contracts, these deposits WAL o
are expected to be settled within one year.
32.LIABILITIES FROM FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 32 @i E R EE

2020 2019
—B-BF T NF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deferred income EEYA 8 58
Provision for guarantee losses BREBRE 231,286 94,536
231,294 94,594

Movement analysis of provision for guarantee losses: EREERETES:
2020 2019
—2-8F T NF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Balance at beginning of the year FYER 94,536 49,156
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries % B BB B A RIAE 7,835 -
Amount recognised during the year FARRZ SR 122,544 84,120
Amount written off during the year FAMIE 2 258 (541) (37,211)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 5 & 6,912 (1,529)
At 31 December R+-ZA=+—H 231,286 94,536

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
exposure arising from guarantee issued are set out in the
note 51(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

AEBEERRLHEBEHEREENE
ERRZE—FFBHREAMBHRERN

aE51(b) ©

RPESRMERERAF | =

&F= — =
EF ==
= — =<

FEFH
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33.DEFERRED CONSIDERATION 33 RER(E

2020 2019
—E-BE —ET-hF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FHTT
Balance at beginning of the year FHE R 5,853 25,625

Compensation from contingent KERKSAREBHESTR
consideration receivable 24 (6,000) (9,152)
Settlement Hig - (11,848)
Imputed interest mEF R 147 1,228
Balance at end of the year FAREH - 5,853

Analysed for reporting purpose as: MmEMSATAT

Non-current liabilities ERBEE = -
Current liabilities nEaE - 5,853
- 5,853

Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Sino
Wealth Group

On 20 October 2017, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Sino Wealth Group. Since the audited net
profits after tax of Beijing Au Jia Shi Hang Financing
Guarantee Company Limited ("AJSH") and its subsidiary
for the year ended 31 December 2019 were less than profit
guarantee of RMB30,000,000, the Group considered that the
Guarantee Profits was not met. As a result, a compensation
of HK$6,000,000 was deducted from the deferred
consideration during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE
33.DEFERRED CONSIDERATION (Continued) 33. R ERAE (&)
Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Sino BB EE Sino Wealth&EE 2 B &K E
Wealth Group (Continued) (&)
The fair value of the deferred cash consideration at the date RZE—+tF+HAZTHTKBEH ELE
of completion on 20 October 2017 was HK$42,404,000, fﬁiﬁfﬁz 1B 542,404, OOO}%T_E %
which was determined by an independent valuer. The ANEEHBYGEMETE FTEAFE
effective interest rates used in the calculation of the fair FrA 2 BEBEFZE S F12.05% ;|;13.10%
value ranged from 12.05% to 13.10%. The imputed interest HEF EMAE147,0008 7T (ZF—hF:
expenses of HK$147,000 (2019: HK$937,000) was debited 937,000/ 7L) BEfF AR FEAKE 2 B
to the profit or loss of the Group for the year. K
34.BORROWINGS 4.8 E
2020 2019
—E-EF —IT-hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Bank loans (Note a) RITER (KisEa) 109,259 78,302
Other loans (Note b) Eﬁﬂg (FizEb) 23,167 =
132,426 78,302
Carrying amounts repayable: FER T 5| HARE (B 2 0) BRI A -
Within one year —FR 73,046 11,186
More than one year, but not exceeding
two years —F A EEMFEAA 11,876 11,186
More than two years, but not more than
five years MF LA EBRFAA 47,504 44,744
More than five years AFE - 11,186
132,426 78,302
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities J& : IR BN BB R 2 &5 (73,046) (11,186)
59,380 67,116
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34.BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The bank loans of RMB65,000,000 (approximately
HK$77,194,000) are secured by the pledge of the Group's
assets as set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements which carry effective interest rates of 4.95% to
6.37% (2019: 6.37%) per annum. The remaining bank loan of
RMB27,000,000 (approximately HK$32,065,000) provided by
an independent third party bearing interest at fixed rate of 7.5%
per annum, is guaranteed by the director of a non-wholly-

(a)

RITEFRAREE5,000,0007T (4
77,194,000 70 ) A 4x & BF 75 & MY 5%
MT?43ﬁﬁﬁ$%léfFT£W’Eﬁ BE
PR F &K 4.95% £6.37% —NE:
6.37% )i B — %ﬁj%_ﬁk#m
#hTIEITERARE27,000,00075T (4
32,065,000 7T ) i 3% & & F ) E7.5% &F
B HAALE—MIEEWNBRAIESR

owned subsidiary of the Group and secured by pledge of the HERYBAEENMEEREER A
Group's property, and is repayable within 12 months. RT+Z@EARNERE-

(b) The other loans bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 10% b)) EMERDZEETEFFANENF10% =
to 10.55% per annum, unsecured and is repayable within 12 10.55% &1 8~ ﬁﬁﬁ&/,ﬁﬁ”r 18 A A&
months. o

35.LEASE LIABILITIES . MHEEE
The following table shows the remaining contractual TEREIAEEREGBE TSRS D
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities: EDIE
2020 2019
—E-BE —NE
Present value Present value
of the lease Total lease of the lease Total lease
payments payments payments payments
HEFR HERR HERH %ﬁfﬁm
ZRE b ZHE ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TET AT
Within 1 year MER 7,922 8,293 14,536 15,519
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FRERNEFR 55 56 7,289 7,61
1,977 8,349 21,825 23,135
Less: total future interest expenses & : 7 2K Il 8.5 7 1@ 58 (372) (1,310)
Present value of lease liabilities MEBERE 1,977 21,825

196

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

36.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

36 R LT IE & E

Provision

for financial

guarantee

MERRER

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2019 RZTE—NF—H—H 11,368

Credited to profit or loss for the year RERBRFAFTA 11,384

Exchange realignment PE W TR (197)
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 RZFE-NEFE+A=1+—HBK

—E-FTF—H—H 22,555

Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries FHRWENBARIRE 10,718

Charged to profit or loss for the year BARFEERT R (18,317)

Exchange realignment B 5 SR 2,446

At 31 December 2020 R-B_FF+-_H=+—H 17,402

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$600,016,000 (2019: HK$471,071,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$196,070,000 (2019:
HK$124,878,000) that will expire in one to five years. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries and associates established in the PRC in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

RBEEHR - AEBERARES
600,016,000 (=& — & :
471,071,000/ 7T ) A] A {EHK 85 R 2K s A1)
R R B DA TR ORI R 2R i ) SRR - BN 4 Bt
AHEREEERAELCHBEEE X
BANMESBEEEER —ZRAFAEM
2 E518196,070,0008 T (—Z T — N F:
124,878,000/ 70 ) » Efth 518 n] B[R Hi 4
i

BIEFR B EMERE T B2
BEhEMIINRKESESTIK 2R EARK
10% FBHM - ZMEBH_ZFTZTNF—H
—HEAY BEAR -_ZZ+F+_-A4
Zt+—HEZEZABN WP BEEIIEIEES
MEEEERFBBRBIKL BT HAER
BZHEOHBE -BAEBMS  BAHREX
A5% 3%10% ° E it - AEBEZE AR R BEK
YHKNBARNRBE N —_EENF—
A—BRELZAEF DR S mAMTEN
o

— = — =&
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36.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed profits
of subsidiaries in PRC for which deferred taxation liabilities
in relation to withholding tax have not been recognised was
HK$15,440,000 (2019: HK$11,962,000). No deferred tax
liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing
for reversal of the related temporary differences and it is
probable that such temporary differences will not be reversed
in the foreseeable future.

37.CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement and the
supplementary agreement for the acquisition of Xin Yunlian
Investment Limited (“Xin Yunlian”) and its subsidiaries and
associates (“Xin Yunlian Group”), convertible notes with
principal amounts of HK$200,000,000 at conversion price of
HK$1.00 was issued to the vendor of Xin Yunlian Group on
31 July 2020 (the “Issue Date”). It entitled the noteholder to
convert 30% of them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time after the third anniversary of the Issue Date and
ending on the maturity date, which is on the fifth anniversary
of the Issue Date. On the maturity date, the noteholder
has the right to convert the remaining 70% of them in full.
The conversion of the convertible notes is subject to a lock-
up period until the date which the Company, vendor and
vendor guarantor confirm or mutually agreed the principal
amount to be reduced by the compensation for the shortfall
of guaranteed profit of Xin Yunlian Group for the five years
ending 31 December 2024. The principal amount of the
convertible notes equals to the guaranteed profit cannot be
converted during the lock-up period. If the convertible notes
have not been converted, they will be redeemed on the
maturity date at the entire principal amount. Further details
are set out in the Company's circular dated 30 June 2020.
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BRARAASE RN BEEANEREZE (B
ERHEREEBENRONELCHEES
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11,962,000 70) - M ERZSE=ERR
EIERIE A E - 1t Jh A AN 5 B 1E 458 51 5
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37.°] AR 45
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37.CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The Company shall have the right to redeem the convertible
notes at any time after the Issue Date, prior to the fourth
anniversary of the Issue Date.

The convertible notes contains three components, liability,
equity and the derivative components — redemption option.
The equity component represents the value of the conversion
option, which is credited directly to equity as convertible
notes reserve of the Company. The liability component of
the convertible notes is carried as a non-current liability on
the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or redemption. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 8.22% per annum. The derivative component
— redemption option is measured at fair value with change in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amounts of above-mentioned convertible notes
recognised at the end of the reporting period were calculated
as follows:

37. ] AR 5 ()

RRARBRENETHR FTEHEN
BEE BBV ETR EE R AT R R -

ABEREEREe=—wo NEaBE BHEX
PTHEHS-—BREEE ERTDEBRR
EzEBE BEEREZSARALAQRZT
BREERFEH TEREBEZEET DK
B AREARAIERDEGE EEE
ERMYERNFEAL AEHS EKR
FREE822% - HTHEE D — B LR IZHE
BAFEE HAFESSHRERER -

Lt AT R R SR AR 3R B R AR 2 BRI (B
ARTEWMT

Convertible
Notes
TRREE
HK$'000
TAET
Equity component By
At the date of issuance RETHE 53,452
Liability component BEHD
At the date of issuance REITH] 156,318
Effective interest expenses BERENE 5,389
At 31 December 2020 R_ZB_ZEF+_HA=+—H 161,707
Derivative component — redemption option PTHEH Y —BEIEERE
At the date of issuance R E&1THE (9,770)
Fair value change recognised BEERAF (5,610)
At 31 December 2020 (Note 23) MR-_ZE-TE+-A=+—01 (H:=F23) (15,380)
Principal amount, at end of the year RERZAEEE 200,000

The details of fair value measurement of the Derivative
component — redemption option is disclosed in note 52(i) to
the consolidated financial statements.

BRTE) —BREEZRZ ATEFE
R IB IO AR & B TS SRR P FE52() 1R ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

38.SHARE CAPITAL 38. A 2K
Number of Nominal
shares amount
R#% 8B [EIEE)
‘000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each lﬂxﬁfﬁo 00178 JT /9 & i AR
At 1 January 2019, —ET-NAF-A—8"
31 December 2019, :93 NF+-—A=+—8"
1 January 2020 and —ZEEF-A—BK
31 December 2020 —E-TF+-_HA=+—H  2,109,890,000 2,109,890
Preference shares of HK$0.001 each & & EI{E0.0017% T FY 8 7L i%
At 1 January 2019, RZE—-—NF—HA—H"
31 December 2019, —E-NF+ZA=+—8"
1 January 2020 and —ETEF-A—HBEK
31 December 2020 —T_TF+_A=+—8H 110,000 110
Issued and fully paid: BEETRERE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each EREE0.001E LA T B
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—hnF—H—H 6,915,077 6,915
Allotment on exercise of RATE R AR R L 3
share options 9,000 9
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H
1 January 2020 &_%?_%ﬁ A—H 6,924,077 6,924
Issuance of shares upon acquisition UL EE KT B A 7118 31T A 1D
of subsidiaries (Note a) (F¥sEa) 850,000 850
Exercise of share options (Note b) IR (MIsEDb) 1,280 1
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZF_FF+_-_A=+—H 7,775,357 7,775

Notes: B 5T

(a) Pursuant to the agreements in respect of the acquisition of (a) MUWERE WIS REK M E‘I39Fﬁ?)32ii iR
Xin Yunlian Group as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated FEBREERER SR RZTE_TFLH
financial statements, 800,000,000 new shares and 50,000,000 =t+t—HEKRKEEE 1§ DRME R K
new shares of HK$0.001 each at a issue price of HK$0.200 per FEREZETESRRKMN0 2008 TEITR
share were issued and allotted to the vendor and the consultant ficd %% 49 X [ {50.001/% 7T #9800,000,000[%
respectively upon completion of the acquisition on 31 July %17 %50,000,0008% 3 B {7 °
2020.

The fair value of shares allotted to the vendor and the SETES REROROAFESNOR
consultant of are approximately HK$146,408,000 and 146,408,000/% 7T }24,446,000/ T ©
HK$4,446,000 respectively.

(b) On 9 December 2020, upon the exercise of the share options at by RZZE-_ZEF+_ANA ERTEES
an exercise price of HK$0.188 per share, the Company allotted M A% 190.188 TLAT (R B lx 1 18 - R A AL
and issued 1,280,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each. 2% 2 3% 171,280,0000% & I E 150.0017% 7T

BT 1D
All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the FRBITZ2BROREZ T EERE KRG
existing shares in all respects. ZBREHN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

39.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 July 2020, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Purchaser”) completed the acquisition (the
" Acquisition”) of Xin Yunlian Group (the “Completion”). Xin
Yunlian Group is principally engaged in provision of financial
referral and loan financing services in the PRC.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated
16 November 2019 (as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement dated 29 June 2020), the assets to be acquired
by the Company are the entire issued share capital of Xin
Yunlian and shareholder’s loan owing by Xin Yunlian Group
to the vendor at the date of Completion.

The aggregate consideration is HK$360,000,000, which
should be satisfied by the Purchaser by issuance of
convertible notes with principal amount of HK$200,000,000
by the Company and 800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.2
each of the Company in the amount of HK$160,000,000.

As part of the Acquisition, if the aggregate audited net profit
after tax attributable to the Company of Xin Yunlian Group
for the five years ending 31 December 2024 (the “Actual
Profit”), is less than RMB153,000,000 (the “Guaranteed
Profit”), the vendor and vendor guarantor will compensate
the Company for the shortfall for an amount equivalent to
the difference between the Guaranteed Profit and the Actual
Profit multiplied by 1.2 times. For avoidance of doubt, if the
Actual Profit is less than or equals to zero, the Actual Profit
is deemed at zero. In such event, the Company shall have
the right at maturity date to deduct the shortfall from the
respective convertible notes.

To incentivize the vendor to contribute in the development
of Xin Yunlian Group, the Company agreed to issue to the
vendor additional convertible notes to settle the incentive
payment and convertible into shares of the Company, or pay
the vendor in cash if the Actual Profit (subject to a cap of
RMB612 million) exceeds the Guaranteed Profit.

39. 45 BE B /B A 7

RZE-_ZEF+A=1+—H AQFIZE
BB AR ([EFH]) 5K U 3 =5
B (TWEEE]) ([EK]) FHEBEE
FEEFBENESRHBEENLERHE
AR 75 ©

REEHA-ZE-—NFt AT HANE
B (KAPR-Z-_TFA-_TAH
B mEmT) AR BEENE
ERRTEK BN ER 280 BITRA R
EBMREBRENHNBRRER

# 1K 360,000,000/ TLIEMR E /@B A
KX A) #1778 4 %8 A200,000,000/% JT A
Al ¥ A% = 4% N & %8 4160,000,0007% T A
800,000,0000% As ~ 7] & f% T {H0.278 7T /Y
LRSS o

EAKBEEN R MARAEEHE
BMEBREBEE—_ZE-_ME+-_A=+—H
IFREFEZEEZRR BT FE([E
o Al ) 42 %8 K A A R #153,000,0007T
([MRFERA]) BEAREHFERABRT
REAARNRBMELHFE  SBESEAR
BaMEER Gz ZBRI12E - ARE
RECWEBREHNERKERS BIER
MABEZ -FERIBERT  ARBEEE
B B AR R IR E R P B N B 2B o

EBYEESABNMEHEBR 2 ERERETR
AARIRAE WEBREMN(ERABARK
612,000,0007T ) %8 1@ (R 38 & F - (A1 & 77 %
TTERONAT R AR 245 LA A B & I AT B 3
ABARRNRRD KEMEHAXMEE-

RPESBMERBRLIF | —T-_FTFFH 201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

39.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. W EE KT B A B (#)

The Company issued and allotted 50,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.2 each amounting to HK$10,000,000 in aggregate
to the consultant (the “Consultant”) in accordance with the
consultancy service agreement entered into by the Company,
the Purchaser and the Consultant, who provided consultancy
services to the Group, in relation to the Acquisition (the
“Consultancy Agreement”). The Consultant undertook
that if the Actual Profit falls short of the Guaranteed Profit,
the Consultant irrevocably assigns the Company to sell the
50,000,000 ordinary shares, and the sale proceeds will be
applied to compensate the Company for the shortfall. The
Consultant has irrevocably undertaken to the Company
that the Consultant will not sell, transfer or dispose of the
50,000,000 ordinary shares (i) within five years after the
issue of the 50,000,000 ordinary shares; or (ii) until the
Guaranteed Profit is satisfied, whichever is later.

The vendor has irrevocably undertaken to the Company that
he will not sell, transfer or dispose of the issued 800,000,000
ordinary shares within one year after the issue of the
800,000,000 ordinary shares.

The fair value of the 800,000,000 consideration ordinary
shares issued and alloted to the vendor and 50,000,000
ordinary share issued and allotted to the Consultant as
at 31 July 2020 are HK$146,408,000 and HK$4,446,000
respectively which is based on the valuation performed by
an independent professional valuer, using an option pricing
model.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 31 July 2020 and circular dated 30 June 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

39.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. W EE T B A B (#)

The following table summarises the fair value of assets and TEHRBM T FEERET Ft A

=z
=

liabilities of Xin Yunlian Group recognised at 31 July 2020:

—EE
=T+ —HEBRNEENMAEN A TE:

HK$'000
FAETT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz B MR 3,183
Right-of-use assets EREEE 497
Intangible assets B EE -
Interest in associates RN v e -
Deferred tax assets BEREBIEEE 10,718
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables JRE i BiR K L A, P WK IR 26,521
Loans and interest receivables FE W E 3k K A B 147,997
Prepayment and deposits ERFERES 3,415
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss XA FEF ABHEN S REE 1,825
Loans and interest receivables to JEM— IR FEIE R = 2 B R A S
non-controlling interests 59,612
Loans and interest receivables to an associate FEM— B & R E 2 BERRFE 17,768
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 31,912
Assets classified as held for sale SERKIEHENEE 5211
308,659
Current liabilities nREEE
Accruals and other payables FEETE A K B b FE [ RIE (16,280)
Amount due to a shareholder JET— B AR R K IE (59,620)
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE A~ S 122 B i 2 TR IE (9,332)
Amount due to group companies JERNEE R RIKIA (7,240)
Lease liabilities HEBR (382)
Liabilities from financial guarantees MEERAE (7,835)
Borrowings B (77,503)
Tax payables A 18 (3,499)
Liabilities associated with assets classified HAEARELENEE
as held for sale HENA R (4,145)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE (171)
Net identifiable assets at fair value RALEIRNARINEERE 122,652
Less: Non-controlling interests B IEFE AR AE (187,571)
Shareholders’ loan assigned to the Group ERTASE CBRRERK 59,620
Goodwill arising from the Acquisition (Note 18) W EHEE+ 2 mE (Hi£18) 326,582
Total fair value consideration NFERERRE 321,283
Consideration satisfied by: REXHFFR:
Consideration shares RERHK 146,408
Convertible notes AR EE 200,000
Less: Financial assets at fair value through profit  J& : I AFEF ABRZ S REE
or loss — profit guarantee and —aAMRELRABE
incentive payment (25,125)
321,283
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: KMEEEELENBRERARE:
Cash and cash equivalents acquired of FrEmRe RIREeEEY 31,912
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

39.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The directors of the Company have engaged an independent
valuer to determine the fair value of the consideration for the
Acquisition, net tangible assets and intangible assets of Xin
Yunlian Group, in accordance with HKFRS 13.

Goodwill arising from the Acquisition represents the excess of
the fair value of the considerations to be paid/payable by the
Group over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired.

Included in the loss for the year is approximately
HK$1,464,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by Xin Yunlian Group. Revenue for the year
included approximately HK$20,072,000 generated from Xin
Yunlian Group.

40.ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL

204

COMPANY CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Refer to note 39 to the consolidated financial statements,
assets and liabilities of disposal company classified as held for
sale were approximately HK$5,211,000 and HK$4,145,000
respectively on the date of completion of the acquisition of
Xin Yunlian Group.

Hangzhou Zheng Pin Zheng Yuan Network Technology
Company Limited (the “Disposal Company”) was engaged in
trading of consumable goods. The management of the Xin
Yunlian Group considered that trading activities faced intense
market competition and the Disposal Company failed to
meet the expected business growth, therefore the directors
of the Disposal Company decided to dispose of the Disposal
Company.

On 23 December 2019, the terms of the sale and purchase
agreement were approved by the shareholders in an
extraordinary general meeting of the Xin Yunlian Group.

On 30 December 2019, a subsidiary of the Xin Yunlian
Group, Wangxin Xin Yunlian Equity Management (Zhejiang)
Company Limited, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of a 60% equity interest of the
Disposal Company to Hangzhou Songsen Gaozheng
Technology Company Limited (the “Purchaser”) at
RMB6,000,000 (the “Disposal Consideration”). On that date,
the purchaser held a 40% interest in the Disposal Company.
The Disposal Consideration represents the amount of share
capital that the Xin Yunlian Group had committed to inject
into the Disposal Company.

39.

40.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

40.ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL
COMPANY CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

On 30 December 2019, a supplemental agreement was
entered into and signed between Wangxin Xin Yunlian Equity
Management (Zhejiang) Company Limited, the Purchaser and
the beneficial owner of the Purchaser, to impose a condition
that the 60% interest would not be transferred until the
beneficial owner of the Purchaser settled a loan due from the
Disposal Company to a member of the Xin Yunlian Group,
amounting to RMB3,000,000 (approximately HK$3,563,000).

The results of the Disposal Company, which have been
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the Group, were as follows:

mE B RRME

TEF+_A=+—HILFE

WD EEFFELE ZHERR
MBEENMEE®@®

—ZE-NF+ZA=1+8 @FH
RERE (T BRRAR - BEAREAZ
ERBEANG L EBEE OB S WHE
EIN—IBERE A 2 Em A AR ZE
EEZKERRBERRKLER ng#
A K #3,000,0007T (#93,563,0007% 7T ) Al
N2 E60% 2 A -

HERRZESE (BEffARKE 2R
mREMEm ke R)#HT

31/7/2020 -
31/12/2020
—E-EF
A
:+ BHE
—E_EF
+=8
=t+—H
HK$'000
FHEIL

Administrative expenses TBRAX

(37)

Loss for the period

7N ERfe 5 48

(37)

Total comprehensive income for the period

AHAE 2wt AR EE

32

During the period, the Disposal Company did not have cash
flow activity.

RAEHE HERARLRETEMRESR

BEH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZE—

40.ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL
COMPANY CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

TE_TF+_A=T—HLEE

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Disposal
Company as at 31 December 2020, which have been

0.0 ABELRE 2D ERA
MEENEE®
HEAFR-E-BE+-A=+—A2

TBEERBEERN (ERGFATHRMR

RABIL25))EHIIMT

presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position, are as follows:

2020
—E_EF
HK$'000
FAET
Assets classified as held for sale PTEABELHENEE
Inventory e 23
Trade and other receivables FEHKEE/TA&EWEFEWM 176
Prepayment and deposit TAAT RIE R IR 5,255
Bank balance and cash RTT4 ﬁ%&fﬁé 61
Amount due from a non-controlling interest JE Y — TE FE 45 AR 2 K 48
Total assets of the Disposal Company held for sale  #H{EHERHE R RN EELE 5,563
Liabilities associated with HAYBAFEHEN
assets classified as held for sale EEMHEBNERE
Trade and other payables E/i—fﬁ%?f/\&fi\ﬁﬂrg/i—fﬁ/\ 898
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary e —RER RM B A F K8 3,563
Total liabilities of the Disposal Company ’\*EF%H{’Eﬁ ENEEMBENLE
associated with assets classified as held for sale NEIN B EREE 4,461
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mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

41.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

In 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
("2011 Share Option Scheme”), which will expire on 19
June 2021, for the purpose of providing incentives or reward
to eligible participants for their contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any invested entity. Under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant
options to any employees (including any executive directors),
non-executive directors, suppliers of goods or services and
customers of the Group; and any persons or entities that
provide research, development or other technological support
to the Group.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer of grant of the option by payment
from the participant of HK$1.00. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, save that such period
shall end in any event not later than ten years from the date
of grant of the option and subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof.

The subscription price for shares under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme will be a price to be determined by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated on the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets on the date of grant of the particular option; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the particular option; or (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

41. 08 T &

ARRRNR T ——FHRA—ABERHER S
(=T ——FBREE]) & a8
“E--FRXATABRER BHERM
RBIRETAERSEAL UEBK
SHAREELNER R REAEE
BELBBEERFSREE RESIHANKRE T
MREEEBEENANER RE_F
—— FEBEFE ARRES A FEIM
BE (BREEMATES) FRATES
EnARBEEHMAEEES ARG
AEBEREMR FEIEMBMED
AT ERR D BEHE -

28 AT REHBREZLHBRT28
B A # 2 51.007 7T M 40 B8 I RE o B
BRATREZSETABAMNHBEANE
IR IR - — — FHERE R IF
RATEBAE - EABR T ZHRAER
BRERLD BB IERTF 24
W B ASHERATR IEIEXATRR

T FREEEREETORNRABE
HAEFSEEMNER HETAHER T
FENERE: (VBXMEERERMAT
B RE LB EBRES BRURHE: (i)
BOREZFRLFEBBEESE AR ER
5 AR X P Y (8 - =i i |
(=0

RPESHMERARIF | — T _FTFFH 207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

41.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 41.08 IS E (a)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the adoption date. Besides, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time. The total number of shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue for the time being.

As at 31 December 2020, the number of shares in respect of
options granted and remained outstanding under the 2011
Share Option Scheme was 727,580,000 (2019: 440,580,000),
representing 9.35% (2019: 6.36%) of the issued shares
of the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the
number of shares available for issue under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme is 687,191,917 (2019: 1,127,585,717),
representing approximately 8.84% (2019: 16.28%) of the
issued shares of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. ESTE ()

41.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

Movements of the Company’s share options held by
employees and consultants during the year ended

BHE_ZE-_TF+_A=+—HLFE"
EEREEFHERARBRENEESH

31 December 2020 are set out below: IR
Number of share options
BREHA
As at As at Exercise
Category of 1 January Lapsed 31December  Exercise price
participants 2020 Granted Exercised (Note ¢) 2020  period HK$
R=Z2-%%
R-2-%% BN t=Ah e
SHEATER -BA-AH E&i [BXig:d (MaEc) =+-8 &8 B
Category I: Employees
8RS
20.3.2018 104,500,000 - (1,280,0000  (11,720,000) 91,500,000  20.3.2018-19.3.2021 (Note a) 0.188
“Z-\$=A=+H “E2-\$=ZAZt+HE
—EZ-¥=A+NhA
(HizEa)
30.12.2020 - 150,000,000 - - 150,000,000  30.12.2021-29.12.2025 0.200
(Note b)
“ECRFETZAZTNE
(FtzEb)
Category Il: Consultants
BRI B
20.3.2018 336,080,000 - - - 336,080,000  20.3.2018-19.3.2021 (Note a) 0.188
ZE-\E=RZ+H “Z-\$=zA=t+RZ
ZZZ-%=fAt+ANH
(HizEa)
30.12.2020 - 150,000,000 - - 150,000,000  30.12.2021-29.12.2025 0.200
(Note b)
ZEZFFtZAZTA e
—E_RFTZAZTAA
(HzEb)
TotaJrl 440,580,000 300,000,000 (1,280,000)  (11,720,000) 727,580,000
ok
Weighted average 0.188 0.200 0.188 0.188 0.193
exercise price
MEFHTRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

41.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 41 08I EETEl (1)
Movements of the Company’s share options held by HE_T-—NWFTA=1T—HLFE"
employees and consultants during the year ended BENERMAFAEARARGBRENZEEEH
31 December 2019 are set out below: N
Number of share options
EREZA
As at As at Exercise
Category of 1 January Lapsed 31December  Exercise price
participants 2019 Granted Exercised (Note c) 2019  period HK$
R
ZB-nF
R=B-h& BN t=A TEE
S2RALTER -R—-H E&i 217 (MzEc) =t-B 1S B
Category I: Employees
BRI EB
20.3.2018 115,000,000 = - (10,500,000) 104,500,000  20.3.2018-19.3.2021 (Note a) 0.188
“E2-\$=A=1H “Z-\FZA=tAHZE
—E--%=AthA
(HizEa)
Category Il: Consultants
BRI B
20.3.2018 336,080,000 - - - 336,080,000  20.3.2018-19.3.2021 (Note a) 0.188
—Z-\$=A=+H “Z-\$=ZAZtHE
—E--%=A+hA
(Bizta)
Total 451,080,000 - - (10,500,000) 440,580,000
@5t
Weighted average 0.188 - - 0.188 0.188
exercise price
MEFHTEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

41.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 20 March 2018, the Company granted options to subscribe
for a total of 457,580,000 shares under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme to employees and consultants of the Group. The validity
period of the options is 36 months from the date of grant of
the options, that is from 20 March 2018 to 19 March 2021.
The options will entitle the grantees to subscribe for a total of
457,580,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each at an exercise price
of HK$0.188 per share.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before
20 March 2018, the date of grant was HK$0.187.

The weighted average closing price of the Company's shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was HK$0.240 on 17 May 2018 and HK$0.213 on
19 June 2018.

On 30 December 2020, the Company granted options to
subscribe for a total of 300,000,000 shares under the 2011
Share Option Scheme to employees and consultants of the
Group. The validity period of the options was 60 months from
the date of grant of the options, that is from 30 December
2020 to 29 December 2025. The options entitled the grantees
to subscribe for a total of 300,000,000 new shares of HK$0.001
each at an exercise price of HK$0.200 per share.

The share options were divided into 3 tranches exercisable
from (i) 30 December 2021, (ii) 30 December 2022, and (iii)
30 December 2023 to 29 December 2025.

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before
30 December 2020, the date of grant was HK$0.199.

The share options were forfeited or lapsed due to resignation of
employees and consultants during the year.

mE B RRME

T_TFE+_HA=1T—HLFE

4108 EETEl (7)
B 3

(a)

RPESHMERBRAT | —T_FFFR

RZEBE-—N\F=ZA=Z+H ARFRE=
T——FHEBREFIRAAEERE RERH
5 1 B8 A% 4 LA SR BB & ££457,580,000% %
m-BREZAEXPAABRERTL B
BE36EA (M ZE—NF=ZA=-+H=Z
T —FZA+AhR) -BERESET
7¥<&M%E%IJLM71§{“51HXO188,%75 LR
& ,\457 580,000% & % {E0.001 7T 2
it

KRB REEZE -_ZT—\FE=ZA=-+H
(B2 B ER) Army e i (8 20.1878 7T -

RAE R BB AREEITEE B BBATAY N
EEHWTFEBAR _S—\ERLA++H
0240 T RN —E—NEXA+TNEB
#0.21378 7T °

RZBEZZEF+-A=+H AQaRE
—E-—FEREFERNIEEREE LR
] 15 H B A% 42 DA SR BB & ££300,000,0008% A%
m-BREZEXPAEBRERT B
BEOEA (M ZE=-FEF+=-A=1+H
EZE-_RAFTZAZt+NHE) - BRE
15 B F AR ARE R A 1T (B B 120.20078
7T A B A $£300,000,0000% & A& E {50.001
B TT 2 TR AD ©

BERES>A=ZH ATHEHEEE-Z
—EHE+= Hf‘f’j'LElJt,HﬁF?—IYT'TT@-
Hh—BE-_—F+-_A=+H () —T==
F+-A=+H"  K(i)Z2ZTE=-_=F+—-A4
=+H8-

ARRBOREE T _TF+ A=+
B (AR B H) ATeY T B R0.1998 7T

BREE RWEKRB DEFANES ME
ﬁﬁ%?ff(’
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

41.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 41.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a Binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted and the following inputs to the model:

AR 2] (3

RERAREEENREBE 2 2 FETIR
R AR - AAREEEL G

I B R B IR RE R P IR O A6 S A6k £

TREHNEL PR A I A B

30 December 20 March

2020 2018

S 323 —T-)N\F

+=B=+B  =A=+H

Fair value (HK$) NFE (BTT) 0.02 0.09
Exercise price (HK$) TEE (BT) 0.200 0.188
Share price at the date of grant (HK$) L HERRE (BT) 0.199 0.187
Dividend yield (%) % B 5 (%) — S
Expected volatility (%) T8 5 R 18 (%) 54.00 78.10
Risk-free interest rate (%) 47 21 B2 71 2= (%) 0.368 1.627
Expected life of options (years) TEHAB IR ESH (F) 5.000 3.000

The expected life of the options is based on the contractual
life and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2020 was HK$7,081,000. The fair value
per option granted was HK$0.02. The Group recognised a
share option expense of HK$13,000 during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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BRERHFHOREBEAOFHEE K
WRFRE R MITER T - BHIK I8
RERFESL N B AARKREZHEZENRER &

REBEE-Z-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE"
BER B E R FEA7,081,000%8 7T
FHERLBERENDFER02EBIL
RBE-_ZE-_FTF+-_A=+—RHILEE"
AEEERERER13,0008 T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

42 B RRE N ET &

42.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group is required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme, the MPF Scheme, in respect of its employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Both the Group and its employees contribute 5% of
the relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme. The maximum
contribution for each employee is limited to HK$18,000
(2019: HK$18,000) per annum. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years.

The employees of PRC subsidiaries are members of defined
contribution plans organised by the municipal and provincial
government authorities in the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are
required to make monthly contributions to these plans at
a fixed percentage of the employee’s basic salary. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme in the PRC is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

Contributions to the retirement benefit schemes for the year
amounted to HK$4,249,000 (2019: HK$2,534,000).

43.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group:

43.

AEEEAHEBREELQHETHABNE
BgEestdl -BEETENEERASE
EMEETAITRBAITAZINES
BE-AEEEEESYEREBEHINK
KE5% ME BT EELER - TR E
EnmEHREATF18,000E T (ZZ
— L 18,0008 7T ) o I AT ] 4 )R Uk £
KA ARIRAR R E E AR

FEMBARINEES BT ESE DA
B8 = % B TE BB R RET B A B - o BB
REABAREEEAFENETEAD L
[A) 5% % &1 8 5% - AN S B Bt o B AR IR AR A
AENE-BERREBZEIELHREN
WK 7 BT B B RR KRB
2 ERARE - I B HOR WA KA AR
HRARREE B

AN ERKE R 5 8 89 3k A4,249,000
7T (ZZF— 15 : 2,534,000/ 7T ) °
& = A

B3t AR S B 4 — AR AR AT 5 BT 1 IR
w2y AEREENT

2020 2019

—EBDERF  —_TNF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Property, plant and equipment M - B MR 79,087 82,650
Right-of-use assets — leasehold lands in PRC FREEE-NABRZEE i 22,515 21,914
101,602 104,564

RAESHMERBRIF | — T _ZTFFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

44.RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 44BN TR 5
(a) Balance with related parties (a) BEALTHER
2020 2019
—B-BF T NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FE& T
Deferred considerations (note i) FEIERAE (FI5E) - (5,853)

JEM — TR R 2 B

Loans and interest receivables to

a non-controlling interest (note ii) SN E=ATD) 56,550 -
Loans and interest receivables to Rl —RIE R R 2ERK

an associate (note iii) FE (B EEii) 7,562 =
Amount due to non-controlling interests

(note iv) FEAT IEIE AR e 2R KR (P 5Eiv) (9,975) -
Notes: M= -

—tF+AZ+H AEEE

(@)

(iii)

(iv)

On 20 October 2017, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Sino Wealth Group with New Wealth
Investment Co., Limited (“Sino Wealth Vendor”) and
Mr. Yang Dayong, who is the beneficial owner of the entire
equity interest of the Sino Wealth Vendor (“Sino Wealth
Vendor Guarantor”) and one of the shareholders of the
Company. With effect from 8 June 2018, Mr. Yang Dayong,
was also appointed as the executive director and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

At 31 December 2020, the loan to a non-controlling
interest, Wangxin Technology was unsecured, interest
bearing at 10.0% and repayable within one year. The
maximum amount of the loan to the non-controlling
interest was RMB325,661,000 (approximately
HK$386,755,000) during the year of 2020.

At 31 December 2020, the loan to an associate, Zhongyan
E-commerce was unsecured, interest bearing at 10.0% and
repayable within one year. The maximum amount of the
loan to the non-controlling interest was RMB20,000,000
(approximately HK$23,752,000) during the year of 2020.

As at the end of the year, the amount due to non-
controlling interests is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.
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(O =

(iii)

(iv)

New Wealth Investment Co., Limited
(I'Sino WealthE 5 ]) RiG KB E
(Sino WealthE 5 2 2 Eiik e B = %
EARAQNRHEP—ERKRE) ([Sino
Wealth B 7 #E4R A L) 5T K & Sino
Wealth& B -8 =-Z— \FEXA/\H
BBRBAEENTEZEAARRAH
TEER{ITHREE-

RZEZZTF+-A=+—H RA¥k
TR AT T EL N ER A EER
B 1£10.0% B F K5 230 AR — E
NEE- R_ZT_ZFTFRN MIELER
= {/EHjE)JEW\EﬁE’WW\IEZ%/\EM
325,661,0007T (4 4386,755,000/8
JL) ©
RZEZZTF+=—A=+—80 R
M‘T#ﬂkﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ*%{”ﬁﬁm%ﬁkﬁ
A 1210.0% WF R B AR
—FRNEE-R-_ZT-_ZTFRN M}
TRERELNERNRERIERA
R #20,000,0007T (# 423,752,0007%
JT) °

RER B FEERHE

£ o A E B IR
W BEREREREE-
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mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

44.RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Transaction with related parties

The Group undertook the following transactions with

44 FIB AN TR 5 (%)
(b) BBEA LS
7 £ (B 30 AN 4 i B2 B3 A+ 4T 5

related parties during the year: R :
2020
—z-%%
Relationships Nature of transactions HK$'000
B & RHEME THAT
Non-controlling interest Interest income 7,640
FEVERRHE S B A
Associate Interest income 1,125

ol /N

B KA

Note:

Interest income charged to a non-controlling interest and an
associate at interest rate of 10.0% and terms as agreed by both
parties involved.

Furthermore, the Group effected the following
material non-recurring transactions for the year ended
31 December 2020 and 2019:

(i)

(ii)

On 27 March 2019, the Group was entitled
to the compensation from non-fulfillment of
profit guarantee given by Sino Wealth Vendor of
HK$6,341,000. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group paid the net amount of deferred
consideration of HK$4,659,000 to Sino Wealth
Vendor after deducted the Compensation.

On 30 March 2020, the Group was entitled
to the compensation from non-fulfillment of
profit guarantee given by Sino Wealth Vendor of
HK$39,631,000. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group received the net amount of
HK$33,631,000 (note 24) in cash from Sino Wealth
Vendor after deducting the remaining deferred
consideration of HK$6,000,000 to be paid to Sino
Wealth Vendor.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year is HK$8,902,000 (2019:
HK$8,902,000) as disclosed in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

s

[A) FE 12 A A 2 Mo BSe 2 8 ) WCER A B
1£10.0% B F R 5T B IR & 75 1 F B
47 -

W RBE—ZE-_ZEER_ZE—h
F+-_A=t—BILFE KEEE
TUATERELFTHERS

) RZE—NAF=ZA=-++H =&«
£ B HEESHSino Wealth &/
B AR B 17 % F AR 86,341,000
THEE-BHE -_T—h&E+ =
A=Z+—RHALFE X&EEMSno
WealthBA X HELEREBEFHE
4,659,000 7T (&M ER) °

WNZE_ZEF=A=+H K&
EREEB HBSIno WealthE 77
B KRB 1T% A 4R 39,631,000
BTHNBEE- BHE_ZT_FTF
+ A=+ BHIEE KX&£H
#€ Sino Wealth & F SR £ )F 88
33,631,000/ 7T (KT5E24) (&40
& 1A Sino Wealth & 7 X #9886 T~
iE T 186,000,000 T4 ) °

HETEEEASR

RERN BENEMTEESEKREFHMNA
8,902,000 7t (ZZ&— J14F : 8,902,000/%
TO)RE S ISR MIFE13 143 55 -

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

45.SUBSIDIARIES 45.0f1 BB 2 7]
45.1 General information of subsidiaries BABE AR Z—RER
Details of the major subsidiaries directly and indirectly ERFRBARFEELRBEEREN
held by the Company at the year ended are set out FTEWBRRFBHIINAT
below:
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
HMAYRE CRARME AATFHERTRARE, \
a8 SR LERE ERER HEMEAREEL A FEER
2020 2019
It et 23 —BNF
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B % Bk A%
Delight Link Enterprises Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - 100% - Provision of
Limited administrative
services to group
companies
MECLEARAF BB ERRA2ET &R ARETH
R
AREBIERBEB AR  PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Industrial property
(transliterated as Taicang RMB80,000,000 development
Keycharm Storage Company
Limited#)
AEEEIERHERRLA HE FMERARE IXANREE
80,000,0007T
ARBHESHEBRDF**  PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100% Trading of goods
(transliterated as Taicang RMB5,000,000
Haopu Trading Company
Limited#)
ARENEHBERRDA e FMERARE EmEH
5,000,0007C
Greater China Financing HK Ordinary HK$1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of money
Limited lending
APERERRATF B ERRAIET REEE
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45.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

45.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

45.01 B A 7] (%)
SAMBATZ—RER (B)

Proportion of nominal

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
SMATE CRARME ARAFEERTRAAE B
a8 EXHH EERE ERER M EAREEL A IEXH
2020 2019
It et %3 “B-NF
Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B G Bk [GikES
Greater China Wealth & Risk  HK Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Provision of insurance
Management Limited HK$2,000,000 brokerage services
APEERERERLDA  FE ERRA RERRELRY
2,000,000/ 7T
Greater China Securities HK Ordinary - 100% = 100%  Provision of securities
Limited HK$18,000,000 brokerage services
APEZFERAA BB & 7%18,000,000 RUEBHELRE
BT
Greater China Asset HK Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Provision of assets
Management (HK) Limited HK$1,000,000 management
services
ATPEBEER (FE) FE LR RUBEEERYE
BRAT 1,000,000 7
EREHENEEERER PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Provision of loan
A ** (transliterated as RMB 100,000,000 referral consulting
(Beijing Xin Nuo Wei Assets services
Management Limited#)
EREHBEEER th AMERAREK REETEN RHD
BRRA 100,000,000 R
Spruce Light Asset HK Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Provision of assets
Management Company HK$5,000,000 management
Limited services
ERBEEEBRAA B LR RUEEEERSB
5,000,000/ 7T
TRERUITREERE  PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Provision of financial
B8 72 &) ** (transliterated RMB220,000,000 guarantee and
as (Beijing An Jia Shi consulting services
Hang Financial Guarantee
Company Limited#)
TR FETREER hE AMERARK RAERE BRI
BRAT 220,000,0007T R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

45.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45. 00 B 2 A] ()
45.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 5 1HMBLATIZ—RER (8)
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
SRR ERTRER FARFBEERTRARE/
a8 EXHH EERE ERER M EAREEL A IEXH
2020 2019
It et %3 “B-NF
Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B G Bk f%
FIEHENBEREER  PRC Registered capital = 100% = 100%  Provision of
N ** (transliterated as RMB50,000,000 commercial
Shenzhen Xin Nuo Wei factoring services
Commercial Factoring
Company Limited #)
RYMEHMEERE i AMERARE REBERERY
BRAR 50,000,000
ERRIRUCEFARE PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Provision of consulting

BB A ** (transliterated RMB1,000,000 services
as Khorgas Nuo Li

Enterprises Consultation

Service Company Limited #)

ERRNHEUCEFARYE 18 AMERARE R AR
BRAT 1,000,007
ERRILRUITRERH PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Provision of consulting

MRBBR AR ** RMB1,000,000 services
(transliterated as Khorgas

An Jia Shi Hang Enterprises

Consultation service

Company Limited #)

EBRILZFUIILE g FMERARE R AR
AAREAERAT 1,000,0007C

ERHEREBRAR*  PRC Registered capital - 100% - - Investment holdings
(transliterated as Ninbo US$30,000,000
Ruixin Investment Company
Limited#)

ERnEREBRAA th =T & 730,000,000 REZRR

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ T -ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

45.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45.011 BB 2 &) (4
45.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) BLAKBARZ—RER (8)
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
HAMRYR  ERTRER ARRAFBERTRAAEE/
a8 EES: LERE ARER M EAREEL A IEXR
2020 2019
— 7 —= ¢ :g_ﬂﬁ
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
=R Gk Bk %
I ERHTREAR  PRC Registered capital - 51% = ~ Investment holdings
A a]" (transliterated as RMB100,000,000
Zhejiang Xin Yunlian Digital
Technology Company
Limited#)
LA EBE TR hE TMERARE REZK
BRAF 100,000,0007T
LM EHERRER PRC Registered capital - 51% - - Investment holdings
A A" (transliterated as RMB 173,000,000
Zhejiang Xin Yunlian Cloud
Technology Company
Limited#)
FIHEMERRARLAA T AMERAREK REZR
173,000,0007T
PMnERSmEERYE  PRC Registered capital - 51% = - Provision of loan
OmL) AR DA ** RMB100,000,000 referral service

(transliterated as Wangxin
Xin Yunlian Financial
Information Service
(Zhejiang) Company

Limited#)

BIENEHERESRE  E AERARE RERENRE
(MI)BRARA 100,000,0007T

NEBESERE(HI)E  PRC Registered capital = 31% = - Provision of advertising
f2 2 =] ** (transliterated RMB50,000,000 service

as Xin Yunlian Advertising
Media (Zhejiang) Company

Limited#)

MEMESEE ONT) B FMERARE R B 5 R
BRAF 50,000,000

EREBNEERERAF PRC Registered capital - 31% - - Provision of loan
it (transllterated as Ninbo RMB 150,000,000 financing service
Yunlian Micro-Financing
Company Limited#)

ERERNEEFERAR 7 FMERARE REE TR E RS

150,000,0007T
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZE—

45.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

TE_TF+_A=T—HLEE

45.M1 B R~ &) ()

45.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

SAMBATZ—RER (8)

*  The English transliteration of Chinese name is included in
this report for reference only and should not be regarded

as its official English name.

*  Established in PRC as wholly foreign owned enterprises.

** Established in PRC as limited liability companies.

N

Established in PRC as sino-foreign joint venture.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the financial year.

45.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of major non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests in 2020:

Proportion of

fORXERNEXFRESHR2EMNH
ARBE TERBEEAR LM

* RPBERZZIEEERE-
* RABERZZEREERA
O RRBIKMZRINEERE

ERINHEERBIEFEARASEE
BEREENARAIMNBAR -EER
A AHEMMNBATNFESER
BB ITEK -

RUVBEER BENBARCDET
EAERES -

2R EERFERER 2K ZEWE R

A2 B

TRIWAR-ZE-_ZEFHEAEERIETER
R AEEEREZENBRARZ
EI

ownership
interest and
Place of voting right held Loss allocated to Accumulated
incorporation by non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary and operation interest interest interests
FEREZRAEN
2R K BERREER PEFHER
G- PR TEERBE REELA BENEE Rt FERER
Ningbo Ruixin Investment Company PRC 49% 6,597 209,117
Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Ningbo Ruixin Group”)
ERnEREBRARRAMBE AR e

(IERRiEEE])
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

45.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45.f1 B~ 7] ()
45.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have AS2BEEERFERERZIZENEA
material non-controlling interests (Continued) RlZ#F#E (&)
Summarised financial information in respect of Ningbo BAR_Z_ZTFLtA=T—HKE
Ruixin Group, which was acquired on 31 July 2020 is set ZERREEENMBERTZSHT
out below. The summarised financial information below MT-THHBEHMEREEAR
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. AR HAT S R
At
31 December
2020
i
—T_FTF
+=—A
=+—H
HK$'000
FHET
Current assets mENEE 337,737
Non-current assets EMBEE 25,062
Current liabilities mENEE (158,707)
Deficit attributable to owners of the Company KRAREB AELEA (5,085)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR MR 209,177
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45.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45.F1 B 2 A ()
45.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have B2EBERFEREZZHFZERBL
material non-controlling interests (Continued) Rl2#F#E (&)
From 31 July
2020 (date of
acquisition) to
31 December
2020
B-2-FF
+A=+—H
(KERH) =
—T_FTF
+—A=+—H
HK$'000
T
Revenue WA 36,787
Profit for the year RKEE %G 3,162
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: INTATEIERFE R (EE)
Owners of the Company KRREB A (3,435)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR M 21 6.597
Profit for the year NF & g A 3,162
Other comprehensive income AT ATRIEARFE B2
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRREB A 1,374
Non-controlling interests FEVE R 2 12,966
Other comprehensive income for the year REZHMEEKE 14,340
Total comprehensive income (expense) IWTATEERFEEZEH
for the year attributable to: Weas (R ) %58
Owners of the Company KRRHEB A (2,061)
Non-controlling interests FEYE IR HE 2 19,563
Total comprehensive income for the year REEEHEKRERE 17,502
Net cash outflow from operating activities KEEHRE R FEE (4,751)
Net cash inflow from REEZBHERANFRE
investing activities 2,343
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEREFRESMAFRE 9,027
Net cash inflow REMAFRE 6,619
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

46.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS 46. B RABIMIRE EW FE

DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES LN ENGIE S
The Company b /N

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT—NF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE_ETRR D - AR 376,602 376,602
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B REDREEE (376,602) (351,131)
- 25,471
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Ug BT B~ Bl FRIE 1,393,621 1,067,535
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B RETREEE (978,353)  (1,000,623)
415,268 66,912
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A~ B /B A B KA 1,827 1,715

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and are repayable on demand.

Y ENMEBARRBEREER 28
%0

MARENRER

RAESHMERBRIF | — T _ZTFFRH

223



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—Z

ZEFE+ A=+ —HILEE
47.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

47.78 X BB BA 7% B R

2020 2019
—EEF —ZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE& T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NGO - 25,471
Interests in associates AR/ OF = vy - -
- 25,471
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL BT B~ B 518 415,268 66,912
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits £ 1 f& Yg 5% 18 « T8 1~ 5018 M 3% & 848 802
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEBR EREE
through profit or loss 15,380 -
Bank balances and cash RITEHR IR 3,537 319
435,033 68,033
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H BN FRIBREFER 1,868 1,740
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A1 Bf /B A B FK3E 1,827 1,715
3,695 3,455
Net current assets RBEEFE 431,338 64,578
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERS 431,338 90,049
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Convertible notes AR ES 161,707 =
Net assets BEEFRE 269,631 90,049
Capital and reserve BEXR#E
Share capital & 72 7,775 6,924
Share premium &1 5 B 2,119,567 1,969,211
Contributed surplus EBERR 64,379 64,379
Convertible notes equity reserve AR R IR o 53,452 -
Share option reserve B ERE 37,662 38,808
Accumulated losses 25tEE (2,013,204)  (1,989,273)
Total equity FEEEE 269,631 90,049

MBEBRRIIEEEFEN_FT_—F=A
ST AMERFENE YHATALR

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2021 and are

signed on its behalf by: REEGHRE:
Mr. Liu Kequan Mr. Yang Dayong
ARmREE BRERE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
£ EFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

48.RESERVES

(a) Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value. The
application of the share premium accounts is governed
by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the New Bye-
Laws of the Company.

(b) Share option reserve

(c)

Share options reserve represents the portion of the grant
date fair value of the unexercised share options of the
Company.

Convertible notes equity reserve

The convertible notes equity reserve represents the equity
component (conversion right) of convertible notes issued
by the Company. Items included in convertible notes
equity reserve will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

(d) Translation reserve

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net
assets of the Group's operations outside Hong Kong from
their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation
currency are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the translation reserve. Such
exchange differences accumulated in the translation
reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the operations outside Hong Kong.

48. 1%
(a) IR0 sfE

B fn st B 45 FIR B @ A BB 2 B 1%
BT ATEE 25 B - IR m B R
ZRAXBRE-NN—FREER
RRREF R B ADRIRE

(b) B EREAE

8 P AR £ 48 8 AN 12 B [ R 7T (5 P ASCHE
B AR FERSD

() TR FREEDHE

MR EEERFEEREAAGTEET
ARSI (ERE) o5t
AR EEERFEENEETSE
FoEEER-

(d) EX A

BAKREEFBUIINEBEEFEHRE
D EKBRERAKREZIE %mﬁ
HELEZEEENEbE2E K
&KER%ﬁ%ﬁ'MEEﬁ%%ﬁ
WERELZBENHEBTBENINED
REHHEERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

48.RESERVES (Continued) 48 178 (&)
(e) EfEEEME

(e) Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents cumulative net change
in the fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI that have
been recognised in other comprehensive income. The
amounts will be reclassified to accumulated losses when
those financial assets are disposed of.

(f) Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Articles of Association of the subsidiaries
and associates incorporated in the PRC these entities
are required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory
net profits, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as
determined under the PRC accounting standards, to
the statutory surplus reserve fund before distributing
a dividend. When the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve fund reaches 50% of the share capital of the PRC
subsidiaries and associates, any further appropriation is
at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to offset prior years' losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by issuing
new shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholding or by increasing the par value of the shares
currently held by them, provided that the remaining
balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund after such
issue is no less than 25% of share capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

49.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

BMEAPEL BB

TRFANAGERERDELCABEE
HB ERREMREEH -BELD
EXZAERASRECHARKERERE
KR AEEGARERERDBAREE
PR ERENEE-

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
& HEERE ot

(Note 34) (Note 35)

(KI&E34) (BF&E35)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THET

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity holders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues or bank
borrowings. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the years.

At 1 January 2019 R-_E—-NE—H—H 88,226 25,952 114,178
Financing cash flows BEBREEeRE (8,512) (13,359) (21,871)
Interest paid B FE (5,599) = (5,599)
Foreign exchange translation HNERE (1,412) (159) (1,571)
New lease entered RN E - 7,986 7,986
Interest expenses FMERZ 5,599 1,405 7,004
At 31 December 2019 and RZT—N%F
1 January 2020 +=—A=+—H8xXK

—TFTHF

—H—H 78,302 21,825 100,127
Financing cash flows BMERERE (33,236) (15,759) (48,995)
Interest paid ERFE (6,212) - (6,212)
Addition through acquisition FRWERBARARE

of subsidiaries 77,503 553 78,056

Foreign exchange translation HNEHRE 8,388 173 8,561
New lease entered RN HEE - 176 176
Interest expenses FMERX 7,681 1,009 8,690
At 31 December 2020 i

+-—A=+—H 132,426 7,977 140,403

50.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT B[R g TR

AEBEREANERERREAEERNE
REMBE UBBERE ARKERIA
FEEMENEES AKERRENER
REBUAREERAREK  BHFHFEER
B ARERBEBBRITHRMDKRITE
EVHEEREARB-ZER AEH

SELELT RN 2
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

50.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group is subject to externally imposed capital
requirements for (i) a subsidiary registered under the
Insurance Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“ICO") which are subject to the relevant minimum
capital requirement; and (ii) three subsidiaries which are
regulated entities under the SFO and subject to the relevant
minimum paid-up share capital and minimum liquid capital
requirements under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R"). Management
closely monitors, on a daily basis, the capital level of these
entities to ensure compliance with the minimum capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R and ICO.

Particularly for the financial guarantee operation, the Group
monitors regularly the residual balance of outstanding
guarantees for single customers and multiples of the total
outstanding guarantees in relation to net assets and paid-in
capital of the subsidiary in the Group engaging in guarantee
business, so as to keep the capital risk within an acceptable
limit. The decision to manage the net assets and paid-in
capital of the subsidiary in the Group to meet the needs of
developing guarantee business rests with the directors.

The Group has no other material exposure to capital
requirements externally imposed with regard to the Group
other than described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
strategy remained unchanged. The Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

The management considers the gearing ratio at the year
ended date is as follows:

50.

BAREREIR (8)

REEBBTATINEBHEINAEARIRE : (i)
RIEBEBRBR A BMEH (TR A FHEH )
Eﬂ%ﬂﬁ—ﬁaﬁﬁfﬂ% A RBTHBAREER
BE i) B %&HﬂfﬂﬂﬁUIﬁTx%ﬁa
TN _ﬁzﬁﬁﬁ% RIABTEBE S M
*b(ﬁﬂtﬁléff)%ﬁﬁﬂ(FE’i%&ﬁHi"i(ﬁﬁﬁ
B)HRED) THEBRESRKRA K&
@Jéﬁ‘i\%ﬁm EEESHRRYERZ
BRNESKE UBERFAEEZEEFNRE
7T BER) BB RRBR D GHEG TH
KEESHRTE -

LERBEEREEMS  AKETEHE
RE-XPNARIMERSKELBAAE
l%%#ﬁ%%%%% RIEEREND
BRERNARIHEREBOMEE 1M
B ARRE BRI R IR EN - EIE
AEBENBRARNFEENEHEEARIA
mEBEREREFOTRKOREDRNE
=o

B XAt E SN AR E W EE H EA
SEINERHEINE AR TE K E AR

HBE_Z_ZET-_A=T-HIEFR:
AEBHRBLESEE - AEERFEEN
BELREEER Eittfﬁhz%f‘?ﬁ@%ﬁ
FRARDRIHRA ARIGERAE

EEERSNFEANERABLRNT

2020 2019

—E-BF —_TNF

HKS$’'000 HK$ OOO

Total borrowings BEREE 132,426 78,302
Equity attributable to owners of RARHEE AEGEER

the Company 348,677 451,737

Gearing ratio BEXRBELX 38% 17%

Note:

Total borrowings represent bank and other borrowings of the Group
as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS SRR T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments () €M I ADE
2020 —E-=f
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets
Financial
Financial assets at Financial
assets at amortised assets at
FVTPL cost FVTOCI Total
BAFE
BAFE R PN
FFABEZ B 5 BR 1 2EKEZ
CRMEE SRMEE SREE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx FTEx FTEx TEx
Equity investments designated EBEREATEF AL
at FVTOC| PE WG RERE - - 11,175 11,175
Profit guarantee and w R E LB
incentive payment 26,309 - - 26,309
Unlisted investment funds FLEmMREES 19,959 - - 19,959
Unlisted trust fund FLmETES 244 = = 244
Early redemption option on REBELIRRER
convertible notes B 15,380 - - 15,380
Loans and interest receivables EME R RFE - 359,938 - 359,938
Loans and interest receivables to B — & IEIER R 2
a non-controlling interest EREFE - 56,550 - 56,550
Loans and interest receivables to  JEff —fEH & AR 2
an associate EREFE - 7,562 - 7,562
Trade and other receivables R M B 0 I Lt KO RRIR - 52,297 - 52,297
Deposits ®e - 68,988 - 68,988
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEENER: - 1,015 - 1,015
Restricted bank deposits ZRBIBITTR = 117,430 = 117,430
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED - 90,241 - 90,241
61,892 754,021 11,175 827,088
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

5.2 T A ()
() EMIEHE (&)

Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R
AR5 BR #Y
cRaEd
HK$'000
FHET
Trade and other payables JE 1 BR X Je EL b FE 5 SR IB 148,515
Borrowings BE 132,426
Lease liabilities HEBE 7,977
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE A 3E 1R R #E 2 2 FRIA 9,975
Convertible notes AR EE 161,707
460,600
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mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51.8 /T A (#)
(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued) () eWMIADE (&)
2019 —ET-NF
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial
Financial assets at Financial
assets at amortised assets at
FVTPL cost FVTOCI Total
b N
BATE e Xic! HAEAD
BN :F- VA AR A BR A 2EWEZ
CRMEE TRMEE SREE mst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Equity investments designated EBEREATEFALM
at FVTOC| PHWERERE - - 6,369 6,369
Contingent consideration MK ARE
receivables 39,136 - - 39,136
Unlisted investment funds FLTREES 30,260 = = 30,260
Loans and interest receivables JEUE R F B = 152,449 = 152,449
Trade and other receivables JFEE Uiz B 3R N L Ath B W 3R 0A = 24,895 = 24,895
Deposits ®e - 82,570 = 82,570
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEENRE = 843 = 843
Restricted bank deposits ZRBIBITTR = 54,056 = 54,056
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREZFEY = 205,530 = 205,530
69,396 520,343 6,369 596,108
Financial liabilities ERMEaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
12 8 5
AR 1) BR A
TREE
HK$'000
FHET
Trade and other payables JRE 1<t B 5K B L At B < SRR 126,209
Borrowings BE 78,302
Lease liabilities HEEaE 21,825
Deferred consideration EIERAE 5,853
232,189
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.2 T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or
combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial
business, and the operational risks are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group's aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk
and returns and minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed
to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and procedures to reflect changes
in markets and products.

The Group's major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTOCI, profit guarantee and incentive
payment, unlisted investment funds, unlisted trust funds,
early redemption option on convertible notes, loans and
interest receivables, contingent consideration receivables,
loans and interest receivables to a non-controlling
interest, loans and interest receivables to an associate,
trade and other receivables, deposits, cash held on
behalf of clients, restricted bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, other payables, borrowings,
lease liabilities, deferred considerations, amount due
to a non-controlling interest and convertible notes.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has entered into financial guarantee contracts
in which it has guaranteed the lenders the repayment of
loans entered into by customers of the Group. The Group
has the obligation to compensate lenders for the losses
they would suffer if customers fail to repay.

The Group has taken measures to identify credit risks
arising from financial guarantees issued. The Group
manages credit risk at every stage along the approval
process, including pre-transaction, in-transaction and
post-transaction monitoring processes. The Group
conducts due diligence and evaluates customers by
internal credit assessment system during the pre-approval
process. Financial guarantees issuance is subject to
approval of the management.

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the
Group conducts on-site inspection and ongoing post
transaction reviews focusing on various aspects, including
but not limited to customers’ product markets, operating
income, assets and liabilities, cash flows from operating
activities to detect potential risks. The Group takes
proactive preventive actions based on the risk analysis
and design contingency plans accordingly.

5. T A ()
(b) tREREEEERKE (&)

1= B /m B K 5 (8 A1

RZEZTF+_A=+—8B K&
B AEAREF I RERITEEM
EYAEEELMBEBRZZAEER
RETIREEREERERMEE 2K
H{E (REEMBARRAKRET)

AEBEEFURERERAN ZFA
MAERTERASEREFPSEERM
RIMHER - MEPREET  KN&EH
BEEREEFIARIMNEBR

AREBERERERHNCEITREE
RFEANEERR AEEEERE
HWRESERRNEERR ZFF
HRBERXZH XZHRX5HE
MERBE AKBREBHRAAES
ETEBAEL BB EEFER
BAGEP BRRERERAKER
JEHLfE

RRZEERRET AEEETE
WREAHHZET EETHENR
SR BEETRREFPEMD
HoRERN BEENRABE Z2ELD
WEEREEHNEERRETE-
ANEBRE R DM SRERFB TR 81T
B0 M AR AT B TASE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.2 T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

When a certain number of customers undertake the
same business activities, stay in the same geographical
locations, or bear similar economic features for their
industries, their ability to fulfill contracts will be affected
by the same economic changes. Concentration of credit
risk reflects the sensitivity of the Group’s operating results
to specific industries or geographical locations. As the
Group mainly operates its financial guarantee businesses
in the PRC, there exists a certain level of geographical
concentration risk for its guarantee portfolios in that
it might be affected by changes in the PRC economic
conditions.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has a credit policy in place for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts on an ongoing
basis. The Group only extends credit to customers
based on careful evaluation of the customers’ financial
conditions and credit history. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring
credit terms. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments and current abilities to
pay and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as to the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 8% and
24% (2019: 21% and 77% concentration of credit risk)
of loans and interest receivables from loan financing
business was due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively as at 31 December
2020. The Group has concentration of credit risk to the
largest securities margin client’s exposure representing
74% of total loans to margin clients as at 31 December
2019. The management is of the view that the allowance
made is adequate taking into account the historical
experience in the collection of loans and interest
receivables from these largest customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 11% and
28% (2019: 14% and 42% concentration of credit risk)
of trade receivables from loan financing business was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively as at 31 December 2020.

The credit risk on trade receivables from clearing houses
and brokers in securities brokerage and trade receivables
from product issuers in insurance brokerage service
are considered as insignificant taking into account the
good market reputations and high credit ratings of the
counterparties.

The credit risk on cash held on behalf of clients, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks located in Hong Kong
and the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE
51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.8 T B (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) cREKMEEBEERBE (&)

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Impairment assessment policies

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amounts regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market conditions.

The management is responsible in developing and
maintaining the processes for measuring ECL, the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9. The Group
applies simplified approach to measure ECL on trade
receivables (except for secured margin loans); and general
approach to measure ECL on secured margin loans and
other financial assets classified at amortised cost. Under
the simplified approach, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the
general approach, financial assets migrate through the
following three stages based on the change in credit risk
since initial recognition: Stage 1: 12-month ECL, Stage 2:
Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime
ECL - credit-impaired.

For such financial assets classified as Stages 1 and 2,
the management assesses loss allowances using the
risk parameter modelling approach that incorporates
key parameters, including PD, LGD and EAD. For credit-
impaired financial assets classified as Stage 3, the
management assesses the credit loss allowances by
estimating the future cash flows expected to arise from
the financial assets.

Financial guarantees carry similar credit risk to loans
and the Company takes a similar approach on risk
management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

The Group conducted an assessment of ECL according
to forward-looking information and used complex
models and assumptions in its expected measurement
of credit losses. These models and assumptions relate to
the future macroeconomic conditions and customer's
creditworthiness (for example, the likelihood of default
by customers and the corresponding losses). The
Group adopts judgement, assumptions and estimation
techniques in order to measure ECL according to the
requirements of accounting standards such as:

(i) Criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk

The Group assesses whether or not the credit risk
of the relevant financial instruments has increased
significantly since initial recognition at each reporting
date. While determining whether the credit risk
has significantly increased since initial recognition
or not, our Group takes into account reasonable
and substantiated information that is accessible
without exerting unnecessary cost or effort, including
qualitative and quantitative analysis based on the
historical data of the Group, credit rating grade, and
forward-looking information. Based on the single
financial instrument or the combination of financial
instruments with similar characteristics of credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of default of financial
instruments on the reporting date with that on the
initial recognition date in order to figure out the
changes of default risk in the expected lifetime of
financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(i) Criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial instrument to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk when
one or more of the following quantitative, qualitative
or backstop criteria have been met:

e Quantitative criteria: At the reporting date, the
increase in remaining lifetime probability of
default is considered significant comparing with
the one at initial recognition.

e Qualitative criteria: Significant adverse change in
debtor’s operation or financial status.

For loans to margin clients and loans receivables,
the number of days past due and loan-to-collateral
value were used to estimate significant increase in
credit risk. Other financial assets at amortised cost
use number of days past due as determinant of credit
risk.

(i) Definition of credit-impaired financial asset

e Internal rating of the debtor indicating default or
near-default;

e Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
customer,

e The debtor leaves any of the receivables of the
Group overdue for more than 365 days;

e |t is becoming probable that the customer will
enter bankruptcy or other financial restructuring;

e The credit impairment on a financial asset may be
caused by the combined effect of multiple events
and may not be necessarily due to a single event.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE
51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.2 T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) cREKMEEBEERBE (B)

(Continued)

1= B /mE R s EFF G (4)
ERAEEER (&)

(i) FFERMEEBHRNZHK

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(i) Parameters of ECL measurement

According to whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk and whether there is an impairment of
assets, the Group measures the impairment loss for
different assets with ECL of 12 months or the entire
lifetime respectively. The key measuring parameters of
ECL include probability of default (“PD"), loss given
default (“"LGD") and exposure at default (“EAD"). The
Group takes into account the quantitative analysis
of historical statistics (such as internal rating grade,
manners of guarantees and types of collaterals,
repayments, etc.) and forward-looking information in
order to establish the model of PD, LGD and EAD.

e PD refers to the possibility that the debtor will
not be able to fulfil its obligations of repayment
over the next 12 months or throughout the entire
remaining lifetime. For loans to margin clients
and loans receivable, the Group estimates PD
by the internal credit ratings. For other financial
assets at amortised cost the PD is adjusted based
on the credit rating of comparable companies
operating in similar businesses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(i) Parameters of ECL measurement (Continued)

e LGD refers to the Group’s expectation of the

5.2/ T A
(b) £RERE

(&)
BEEEREKE (8)

1= B /mE R E G (4)

S ERREEER (B)

(i) FAEEHEEBEEN2H (B)

s BHNBFBEXREAKBYHEN

extent of the loss resulting from the default
exposure. Depending on the type of counterparty,
the method and priority of the recourse,
past default experience and the realisation
of collaterals, the LGD varies. The LGD is the
percentage of loss of risk exposure at the time of
default, calculated over the next 12 months or
over the entire remaining lifetime.

EAD is the amount that the Group should be
reimbursed at the time of the default in the next
12 months or throughout the entire remaining
lifetime.

(iv) Forward-looking information

The assessment of a significant increase in credit risk
and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-
looking information. Through the analysis of
historical data, the Group identifies the key economic
indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL.

Credit risk exposure

Trade receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on accounts receivables individually or based on
provision matrix.
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=
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mE B RRME

—E-FTF+_A=t+—HLHFE
(&)
(b) @A E

BEEERKE (B)

1= B /mE R s EFF G (4)
EEREEHO (8)

Trade receivables (Continued) FEUBR R (48)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment AEEBFAN A EERREIE
comprises the following categories: AT %871 -

Internal credit

Basis of recognition of

rating Description ECL provision
BRANEEBRERE
A EBIE B R AR g ZE%E
Grade A The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have  Lifetime ECL — not
any past-due amounts credit-impaired
AR REBFENVRREE Y BT MENSE >HBEREEBR
- REERME
Grade B Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settles in  Lifetime ECL — not
full credit-impaired
B 4% EBABRANBHAREET HEEERMAEER T HFEHEEEE
-REERE
Grade C There has been significant increase in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL — not
recognition through information developed internally or credit-impaired
external resources
C#& FRABRHESINIRR 2 ERL BEFRRBEEER R 2HEHEEEER
BARMEET -REERE
Grade D There is evidence indicating the debtor is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired
D &% FRBETREKACDEERE > HEHEEER
-BEfEERE
Grade E There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
E#R ERBEREEARBARENK  mAKE B &YKE R M

& S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers in
relation to its operation. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables which are assessed based on provision matrix
within lifetime ECL. Debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired with gross carrying amounts
of HK$38,229,000 as at 31 December 2020 were

5.2 T A ()
(b) £RMEARE

BEEEREKE (8)

1= B /mE R E G (4)
EEREEHO (8)

PR BR TR (48 )
ERAKEEERRE

Bz —&5

AEBREHZERBECEFEAN

e

aHa

AR TRRREHAHEE

%Eﬁlﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁZFW

Rz EERBR
Eﬂﬁﬁé?ﬁfﬂaﬁa

il 02 B F e NREH
EREHERREE

REZEUER(R_ZE_FF+—
A=+—HZ#KRM{E&38,229,000

assessed individually. BT ) AT E R RS -
2020
—EB-EF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHEER REREE BEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Grade A A#R 0.0 49 -
Grade B B4k 71 7,584 541
Grade C C# 20.5 20,827 4,269
Grade D D& 57.2 38,229 21,871
2019
—NE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHIEE X HEREE E R E
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET THET
Grade A A#R 0.0 118 =
Grade B B4k 0.1 3,707 4
Grade C C# 13.1 21,284 2,784
Grade D D#& 100.0 3,425 3,425
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
provided HK$19,681,000 (2019: HK$4,241,000)
impairment loss for trade receivables, based on
the provision matrix. Impairment allowance of
HK$17,878,000 (2019: HK$3,425,000) was made on
debtors with significant balances and credit-impaired
debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.2 T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) cREKMEEBEERBE (&)

(Continued)

1= B /mE R E G (4)
EEREEHO (8)
PR BR TR (48 )

"Fi%%ﬂJﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁ%ftﬁ)ﬁ?fﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ
R2eHRREEEECE

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
(non-credit (credit
Impaired) impaired) Total
2HES 2HEH
FEEE FEEE
(KEE (BEE
RAE) RiE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 2,007 - 2,007
Changes due to financial instruments R_ZE_FF—H—H
recognised as at 1 January 2020: ERzE®IA
GEC-EIE
— Transfer to credit-impaired —HEREEERE ) 2 -
— Impairment losses, net of —WEBE (N
reversal recognised EREREE) 817 3,424 4,241
Exchange realignment BE B (34) M (35
As at 31 December 2019 and RZZE-NF+H
1 January 2020 =T+—BRZZ-ZF
—A— E| 2,788 3,425 6,213
Changes due to financial instruments RZZE_ZTF—H—H
recognised as at 1 January 2020: ERzEemIA
GEC-EIE
— Transfer to credit-impaired —BREEERE (338) 338 -
— Impairment losses, net of reversal —REEE (HIRER) 1,803 17,878 19,681
Addition through acquisition FERWENBARIAE
of subsidiaries 378 - 378
Exchange realignment BE 5, B 179 230 409
As at 31 December 2020 RZZZTF+-H
=+—H 4,810 21,871 26,681
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on loans and interest receivables individually.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit
rating Description

AREEFH

5. T A ()
(b) tREREEEERKE (&)

1= B /mE R s EFF G (4)
EEERHO (&)

e E R A B

7 g [ 4 5 TR B £ B 65 4B A 4 e g
BHRRF8 BB T RE T -

AEEEBFEHADEEARDE
TR

Basis of recognition of
ECL provision
BARMEESERE
ZEE

Lifetime ECL — not

Stage 1

FE1REER

There has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not credit-impaired upon
origination.

B ) 25 HE R AL BY 15 & R P I 48 FR 8 0 B0 A A RS MR
SRERENR -

Stage 2 There has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired.

F2MEER BV ERENEERRREEL I EWEEERENBR -

Stage 3 There have been one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cashflows of that asset
have occurred.

F3PEER ERLSUZEEGMAARRASREBEK TN EN—IA
HEEEM-

Stage 4 There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery.

FARBER Bl BEBRREBEABABRENMFEEE MAEE BRI

IR WL

credit-impaired

2HIRHEEER
—REERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
> HIFEHE E 18
—REERE

Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired

2HRHEEER
—BEERE

Amount is written off

T RE M8

The directors of the Company estimate the estimated loss
rates based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged
by the customers to the loans and interest receivables.

RAESHMERBRIF | — T _ZTFFRH

N 8 T AR I U B TR A
BRI E SR O Y EHBREE
TR URBALETUERAR
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BRI B B R 9 8 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.2 T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
provided impairment loss of HK$113,594,000 (2019:
HK$14,100,000) for loans and interest receivables.

The following table shows the exposure of ECL for loans
and interest receivables under the general approach:

(b) EREAMREERFERBEK (F)

1= B /mE R E G (4)
EERERHO (&)
EREZREANE (&)

BE_T_TF+_-_A=+—HL
FE -AEEREREREFEFIE
B 5 1B 5113,594,0008 T (=&
— L5 £ 14,100,000/ 7T) °

TRINTRE—RITERERETR K
MEBzBHEEEEMO

2020
—ECEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIRER FEAREY F3EER #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FERT FERT TET
Loans and interest receivables  FEUR & 3 K Fl &, 204,832 58,997 249,223 513,052
Less: Impairment allowance OB ERE (22,089) (758) (130,267) (153,114)
Loans and interest receivables, FEUE R FI 2 -
net of impairment allowance ~ 31BR R E B 182,743 58,239 118,956 359,938
2019
—E-NE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIEE FEE F3MER asr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHT FTAT TAT
Loans and interest EKEZRRFIS
receivables 2,036 152,393 17,302 171,731
Less: Impairment allowance B RER (10) (1,970) (17,302) (19,282)
Loans and interest EBEZRRFS
receivables, net of MR R ERE
impairment allowance 2,026 150,423 - 152,449
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12 months expected losses method, except
for the purchased or originated credit-impaired default
payment receivables from Xin Yunlian Group of carrying
amount approximately HK$7,953,000 at 31 December
2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group assessed the ECL for other receivables and
deposits, an impairment loss of HK$18,282,000 (2019:
HK$43,000) was recognised in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.2 T A (&)

(b) EREREERFERBE (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables to a non-controlling
interest and an associate

For loans and interest receivables to a non-controlling
interest and an associate, the directors of the Company
make individual assessment on the recoverability based
on quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition upon acquisition of subsidiaries on
31 July 2020 and the Group provided impairment based
on 12 months expected losses method.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
assessed the ECL for loans and interest receivables to a
non-controlling interest and an associate, a reversal of
impairment loss of HK$4,234,000 was recognised in the
profit or loss.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets at amortised cost include bank
balances, restricted bank deposit and cash held on
behalf of clients. The Group accounts for its credit risk
by appropriately providing for expected losses on a
timely basis. In calculating the expected loss rates, the
Group considers historical loss rates for each category
of other financial assets and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group assessed
that the expected credit loss rate is immaterial under
12 months expected losses method. Thus, no loss
allowance for other financial assets at amortised cost was
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) sT.2 Rt T A (|
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREMREEEERBEE (8)

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Financial guarantee issued

At 31 December 2020, the total maximum amount of
financial guarantee issued was HK$2,738,521,000 (2019:
HK$979,568,000). After considering the deposits received
from guarantee customers of amount HK$110,873,000
(2019: HK$98,426,000), the maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of the financial guarantees issued
and outstanding amounted to HK$2,627,648,000 as at
31 December 2020 (2019: HK$881,142,000).

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk as most of its monetary assets
and monetary liabilities are denominated in the
functional currency of the individual group entity.
The management is of the opinion that the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.
Accordingly, no foreign exchange risk sensitivity
analysis is presented. The significant balance carried
in the translation reserve account is occasioned by
the translation of the financial statements of the
Group's subsidiaries into the presentation currency of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group at
each reporting date.

() Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to borrowings, lease liabilities, convertible
notes and loans receivables. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to receivables from variable-rate cash and margin
clients, restricted bank deposits and bank balances.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. However,
the management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.2 T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) cREKMEEBEERBE (&)
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) TR (&)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIERE (B)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
that the financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis points (2019: 100 basis
points) increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management'’s assessment
of the reasonably possible changes in interest rates.
If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2019:
100 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the net effect of Group's post-
tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2020
would decrease/increase by HK$4,218,000 (2019:
HK$2,453,000).

(i) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities which are
classified as financial assets at FVTOCI. The fair value
of these financial instruments will be affected either
positively or negatively, amongst others, by the
changes in the closing market prices of the relevant
listed equity securities. The Group's listed investments
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
and in PRC. Listed investments held in the portfolio
have been chosen based on their longer term
growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations. The management
manages this risk exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risk and return profiles
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period. If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 10% (2019: 10%) higher/
lower, and held other variables constant, the other
component of equity of the Group would increase/
decrease by HK$1,118,000 (2019: HK$637,000), as
a result of changes in the fair value of listed equity
securities.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by
assuming that the price change had occurred at the
reporting date and has been applied to the Group's
investments at that date. In the management’s
opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent price risk as the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, and
to ensure compliance with SF(FR)R. In the management
of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents and credit facilities
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitors the current
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants regularly to ensure sufficient
working capital are maintained and adequate committed
lines of funding from reputable financial institutions meet
its liquidity requirement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Liquidity table
As at 31 December 2020

5.2 T A ()
(b) ERHEBREBEEREE (&)

nBEzmEE ()

TRERHEAHAHIHAEOR &
RS ASERITEERMABER
SERBRARETON TRKE
MEERBORFTRBASRE -

REBEE XK
A\ZEZEFE+ZA=1+—H

Weighted
average  On demand/ Total Carrying
effective less than 13 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months tolyear  1to5years cash flows 2020
mEL RER/ ABERE R-B-BF
BERAZ  SR-fER -2=fif Z=fRZE-% -Z1% REAE ZEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Non-derivative financial FTEEREE
liabilities
Trade and other payables AR REMER T - 43,412 1,228 103,875 - 148,515 148,515
Borrowings - fixed rate Fm T8 7.24% 603 1,206 79,194 67,985 148,988 132,426
Lease Liabilities ﬁﬁfﬁk 6.56% 1,363 2,680 4,250 56 8,349 7977
Amount due to non-controling  FEfIFIRIRIER
interests - 9,975 - - - 9,975 9,975
Convertible notes EREE 8.22% = = = 234,000 234,000 161,707
55,353 5114 187,319 302,041 549,827 460,600
Guarantees issued BIELMER
Maximum amount guaranteed ERERBE - 56,913 29,658 2,043,603 608,347 2,738,521 2,738,521
As at 31 December 2019 R_E-—NEF+_A=+—H
Weighted
average  On demand/ Total Carrying
effective less than 13 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1105 years cash flows 2019
T REX/ KBRS RIE-NF
ERME SRR —-2=f8f z=@RE-% —ZRF mERE LEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T T T T
Non-derivative financial FiTEeRAE
liabilties
Trade and other payables RS RE R FE - 40,526 1,286 84,397 - 126,209 126,209
Borrowings - fixed rate BE-E8 6.37% 416 831 14,749 79,318 95,314 78,302
Lease Liabilities HERRE 6.37% 1,291 2,582 11,646 7,616 23,135 21,825
Deferred consideration BERE
~ non-interest bearing —Rit8 - - - 5,853 - 5,853 5,853
42,233 4,699 116,645 86,934 250,511 232,189
Guarantees issued BEHMER
Maximum amount guaranteed ERERBE o 162,438 90,453 572,348 154,329 979,568 979,568
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

52.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT YR/NST e
(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at () AREMEERQAFTEHFTENSHME
fair value on a recurring basis ENRAFE
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair AEERHDEMEENEREHRE
value at the end of each reporting period. The following AVEFE - TREHRUNAEETZSE
table gives information about how the fair values of TREEZATFENER(LHEER
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the AefEERN R ASE) -
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-FEF+-A=+—-HWA¥F
BEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& B B=& Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FTHT FHT FHT
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFAEMEEKZE 2
other comprehensive income: SREE:
— Listed equity securities (note a) — EmRAES (Hita) 11,175 = = 11,175
Financial assets at fair value through R AFETABZEZ
profit or loss: SREE:
- Profit guarantee and incentive —BMRERSBE
payment (note b) (Ht3EDb) - = 26,309 26,309
- Unlisted investment funds (note ¢) ~ —JF EMREES (MizEc) - 18,264 1,695 19,959
— Unlisted trust fund (note d) —LmEEES (KEd) - - 244 244
~ Early redemption option on —REEOTRRRIREEE
convertible notes (note e) (FizEe) - - 15,380 15,380
Total FeBy 11,175 18,264 43,628 73,067
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2019 RZE-NWF+ZA=+—HHRF
e
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H £-® F=H st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFAEMEE K2
other comprehensive income: CREE:
— Listed equity securities (note a) — ETRAFES (Kzta) 6,369 = = 6,369
Financial assets at fair value through R AFETABZEZ
profit or loss: CREE:
— Contingent consideration receivables — U ARE (HisEh)
(note b) - - 39,136 39,136
- Unlisted investment funds (note )~ — 3 ETREE S (FitFtc) - 28,664 1,596 30,260
Total Har 6,369 28,664 40,732 75,765

RPESHMERARLIA | —T_FTFFH 253



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

52.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 52. 3 FEETE (&)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Notes:

(@) The valuation techniques and key inputs used of the listed
equity securities, classified as financial assets at FVTOCI,
for Level 1 fair value measurement are reference to closing
price quoted in an active market.

(b) The fair values of the profit guarantee and incentive
payment relating to the acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group
and contingent consideration receivables relating to
the acquisition of Sino Wealth Group are based on the
valuations performed by an independent professional
valuer, using a Monte Carlo simulation, which are reviewed
by and approved by the directors of the Company.

As the profit guarantee and/or incentive payment covers a
period of more than one year, there are more interactions
to be assessed for the results. Monte Carlo simulation
is therefore adopted as the simulation that produces
distribution of possible outcome values. By assuming
probability distributions, variables can have different
probabilities of different outcomes occurring. Probability
distributions are a much more realistic way of describing
uncertainty in variables of the result.

A decrease in the probability of fulfillment of profit
guarantee would result in an increase in the fair value
measurement of FVTPL and a decrease in discount rate
would result in an increase in the fair value measurement
of FVTPL, and vice versa.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the FVTPL are based on the management’s best
estimates. The value of the FVTPL varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE

5. N EEETE (#)

52.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The key inputs used of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss — profit guarantee and incentive payment in
relation to the acquisition of the Xin Yunlian Group for
the Level 3 fair value measurement at the end of reporting
period are as follows:

Significant unobservable inputs 2020 Range
Volatility 66.83%
Discount rate 9.08%
Time (in year) 4.00

The key inputs of contingent consideration receivable in
relation to the acquisition of the Sino Wealth Group for
the Level 3 fair value measurement at the end of reporting
period are as follows:

Significant unobservable inputs 2019 Range
Volatility 46.08%
Discount rate 17.42%
Time to settlement date (in year) 0.18

Due to the variety of basis of determination used in the
profit forecast of Xin Yunlian Group and Sino Wealth
Group, it is not practicable to provide any meaningful
sensitivity in relation to the critical assumptions concerning
future profitability of the acquired business and the
potential impact on the fair value changes on contingent
consideration receivables at the end of the reporting
period.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fair value
change of the contingent consideration receivable was
determined by reference to the financial statements of
AJSH and its direct wholly owned subsidiary for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Since the audited results of
AJSH and its direct wholly owned subsidiary issued in
March 2020 showed a net loss position, the Group was
entitled to a compensation of HK$39,631,000 which was
calculated in accordance with the formula stated in the
Acquisition Agreement S.

The fair value of an unlisted investment fund established
in the Cayman Islands of HK$18,264,000 (2019:
HK$28,664,000) is determined based on the net asset
value quoted by the fund administrator. The net asset value
of the fund is based on the quoted market price of the
underlying listed investment.

() AEEMEEZAFEFAENTHME
ENDFE(E)

Mist: (4&)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZE—

TE_TF+_A=T—HLEE

52.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

The fair value of an unlisted investment fund established in
the PRC of HK$1,695,000 (2019: HK$1,596,000) is based
on the valuation performed by an independent professional
valuer, using a Discounted Cash Flow method, which are
reviewed and approved by the directors of the Company.
The assets of the fund primarily represent an investment in
20% equity interest in the registered capital of an unlisted
company incorporated in the PRC which is engaged in
property development projects.

An increase in discount rate would result in a decrease in
fair value measurement of the unlisted investment fund,
and vice versa.

The significant unobservable input in relation to the
privately offered fund in PRC for the level 3 fair value
measurement at the end of reporting period is discount
rate at 12.32% (2019: 13.16%).

The fair value of an unlisted trust fund of HK$244,000 was
determined by an independent valuer. The assets of the
trust fund primarily represent a portfolio of loan receivable
with interest rates ranging from 1.5% to 2.0% per annum.

An increase in discount rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of the unlisted trust fund, and vice
versa.

The significant unobservable input in relation to the
unlisted trust fund for the level 3 fair value measurement at
the end of reporting period is discount rate at 3.4%.

The fair value of redemption option on convertible notes
of HK$15,380,000 is based on the valuation performed by
an independent professional valuer, using Crank-Nicolson
finite-difference method, which are reviewed and approved
by the directors of the Company.

An increase in risk-free rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of early redemption option on
convertible notes, vice versa. An increase in volatility
would result in increase in fair value measurement of early
redemption option on convertible notes, vice versa.

The significant unobservable input in relation to early
redemption option on convertible notes for the level 3 fair
value measurement at the end of reporting period are risk-
free rate and expected volatility at 0.32% and 53.52%
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ T -ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

52.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 52. N BT = (&)
(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (i) FE=M AL EFTEZHER

Financial assets through profit or loss:

ERERIIREREE:

- Early

- Profit redemption

- Unlisted guarantee option on

investment - Unlisted and incentive - Contingent convertible
fund trust fund payment considerations notes Total

-RERE

-kEW -kEm -RARE TRERRE
REES ERES kiEE  -AARE BERE @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TEL TAL TAL TAT TAL

At 1 January 2019 RZE-1%F
—-A-A 40,143 - - 13,686 - 53,829
Disposal/redemption HE/EBR (38,092) = = = = (38,092)
Compensation entitled [EZEH#HE - - - (9,152) = (9,152)
Change in fair value recognised FRRBRRRN
in profit or loss during the year ATERE (304) S = 34,602 = 34,298
Exchange realignment [ERAE (151) = S S S (151)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-N%F
1 January 2020 +ZA=+-
—ZTF
s d= 1,596 - - 39,136 - 40,732

Avrising from issue of convertible Ehli{ENG
notes on acquisition of subsidiaries {7 A AR ZE

EE - - - - 9,770 9,770
Addition through acquisition BRNENEA
of subsidiaries RE - 1,825 25,125 - = 26,950
Disposal/redemption l=y4{o = (1,675) = = = (1,675)
Compensation entitled to: EZARHE:
- deduct from deferred consideration — BB EMR = = = (6,000) = (6,000)
- receive in cash -REeWm - - - (33,631) = (33,631)
Change in fair value recognised FRRBREAN
in profit or loss during the year INSIV-E) = 79 1,184 495 5,610 7,368
Exchange realignment 5B 99 15 - - = 114
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_ZfF
+-A=1+-H 1,695 244 26,309 - 15,380 43,628
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-ZZT_TF+_A=+—HILFE

52.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 52. A FEFTE (#8)
(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at (i) EFEAUAQATFEIRNEHEERERE
other than fair value PANS I
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RAREZRR REEKKT EEZ
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities TEE ? )32 THEBENEREENEH
recorded at amortised cost are not material different from RZZFEZZEFR-FT-NFTA
their fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. =+—H E’J NFETEEAER-
53.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 53. 8 AN HE
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group and the RIB_ZEFR_F-NF+A=1+—
Company did not have any significant capital commitments. A RNEE KRR AW &M EKE AR
¥
54.GUARANTEE ISSUED 54E§§.ﬂ B FEIR
At 31 December 2020, the total maximum amount of AN_EZEFTZA=T—RH BELE
financial guarantees issued was RMB2,305,928,000 SR ERRAE R AKK2,305,928,000
(approximately HK$2,738,521,000) (2019: RMB875,709,000 7 (#92,738,521,00087L) (ZF—IF:
(approximately HK$979,568,000)). The total maximum A R #875,709,0007T ( £7979,568,000/%
amount of financial guarantees issued represents the TL) ) EREBMEERESBEAMWEF
maximum potential loss amount that would be recognised if ATRERBAKTHEANGANEEEERR
counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted. B o
55.CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SS.jZ,\ \EEKEE
The Group had no significant contingent assets or liabilities as N—_EEERZTE-NAF+ZA=1+—
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 other than those described A AEETEREANIAEEXEE K
in note 54 to the consolidated financial statements. ZERERE MKW TE54pTitE Sh o
56.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 56. % &5 12 =18
There is no significant event affecting the Company that have B EMERAR EEEERAZELRR
occurred since the end of the reporting period. AIME KEIE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

S EE
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Bz BZE BHE BE Bz
—ECEE “T-NE “E-N\E “T—+fF —E-RE
+=ZA=+-B +ZA=+-B +zZA=+-H +ZA=+-B +=ZA=1+-H
LEE LEE ItFE ItFE ItFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THL FHET THL
RESULTS £
Revenue WA 392,320 151,005 152,595 130,652 75,175
Cost of sales HEKAK (279,008) (62,402) (56,703) (62,969) (35,636)
Gross profit EH 113,312 88,603 95,892 67,683 39,539
Other income, gains and HiplA  Wm Rk
losses B 37,544 63,476 30,923 89,103 (218,969)
Administrative and other THREMEERY
operating expenses (126,060) (141,642) (115,836) (99,797) (82,187)
Share-based payment SRR X M FER %
expenses (13) - (40,313) - -
Provision for financial HEERRE
guarantees (122,544) (84,120) (1,302) - -
Finance costs BISACR (14,226) (8,232) (11,560) (16,340) (15,200)
Share of (loss) profit of JEfRREE AR
associates (B i\ )i H - - - - (98,410)
Impairment loss, REBRE (MRER)
net of reversal (147,323) (18,384) (7,523) - -
Impairment loss on goodwill  HEZREESE (32,722) (111,257) (7,143) (14,650) =
Impairment loss on BRYEECRERSE
intangible asset (1,618) (5,722) - = =
Impairment loss on EREEEREER
right-of-use assets (7,607) - - - -
Impairment loss on interests ~ FABE & A B HEZ 2
in associates REESE - - - - (267,410)
Net loss on de-consolidation ~ HR /ﬁ ma RN B
of subsidiaries AR EBEFE - - - - (324,478)
(Loss) profit before tax BEA (B8) &7 (301,257) (217,278) (56,862) 25,999 (967,115)
Income tax (expenses) credit ~ FT{3% (X )% (21,021) 10,883 (1,741) 43 (3,435)
(Loss) profit for the year Em(BE)&F (322,278) (206,395) (58,603) 26,042 (970,550)
Attributable to: UTATELR:
Owners of the Company NG 7=IN (335,628) (206,395) (58,603) 26,020 (970,550)
Non-controlling interests FERER 13,350 - - 22 -
(322,278) (206,395) (58,603) 26,042 (970,550)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B E
31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
i 33 “E-NF “E-N\% e o3 —E-RF
+=RA=t-B +ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—-B +ZA=+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL THT FEL THL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES &EHERE
Total assets BEE 1,286,657 786,027 910,656 1,065,243 706,346
Total liabilities BEaE (724,233) (334,290) (246,031) (350,414) (284,343)
Non-controlling interests R ER (213,747) = = - (776)
Equity attributable to RARERA
owners of the Company bR 348,677 451,737 664,625 714,829 421,227
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